
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA  94604-2688 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

August 22, 2019 
9:00 a.m. 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, August 22, 2019, in 
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Third Floor, Oakland, California. 
 
Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.  
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room) 
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board.  If you wish to discuss a matter 
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment. 
 
Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted. 
 
Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved, 
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a 
Director or from a member of the audience. 
 
Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as 
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 
 
BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who 
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters.  A request must be made 
within one and five days in advance of  Board meetings, depending on the service requested.  Please 
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. 
 
Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing 
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the 
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail. 
 
Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website 
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email 
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART_
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary.  Complete agenda packets 
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website and bart.legistar.com no later than 48 
hours in advance of the meeting.  
 
Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in 
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor, Oakland, CA  94612;  fax 510-464-6011; or 
telephone 510-464-6083. 
 
       Jacqueline R. Edwards 
       Assistant District Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART_1904
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART_1904
mailto:BoardofDirectors@bart.gov


    
 

* Attachment available  2 of 5  

Regular Meeting of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire 
in connection with: 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

  

 A. Roll Call.   
 B. Pledge of Allegiance.   
 C. Introduction of Special Guests. 

i. BART Police Department – Presentation on Commission on 
Accreditation of Law (CALEA). 

 

  

2. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. New Fee for the Review of Unsolicited Proposals for Property 

Development on District-owned Land. 
  

  

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

  

 A.  Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of July 25, 2019.*   
           Board requested to authorize. 
 

  

 B. Fixed Property Tax Rates Fiscal Year 2019-2020 General Obligation 
Bonds.*  Board requested to authorize. 

 

  

 C. Invitation For Bid No. 9065, AC Traction Motor Encoder Assembly.*  
Board requested to authorize. 

 

  

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – 15 Minutes 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters 
under their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.  An additional period for Public Comment is 
provided at the end of the Meeting.) 

  

 
5. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 

Director Simon, Chairperson 
 

  

 A. Responses to the 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report, 
"Crime and Quality of Life: Impact on BART Ridership".*   
Board requested to authorize. 
 

  

 B. Award of Agreement No. 6M4625, with KPMG, LLP, for the Project 
Portfolio Management System. *   
Board requested to authorize.   
 

  

 C. Actuarial Report on Changes to Pension. *  For information. 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 



    
 

* Attachment available  3 of 5  

6. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS 
Director Foley, Chairperson 
 

 

 A. Change Order to Contract No. 05HA-100, El Cerrito Del Norte  
Station Modernization Project, with Clark Construction Group, LLC. 
i. Upgrade the Planned 10KW UPS to 40KVA (C.O. No. 33).* 
ii. Revise Overhead Power and Communication Conduits and 

Layout 
(C.O. No. 39).* 

iii. Procure Additional Fire Alarms Devices, from 73 to 229  
(C.O. No. 54).* 

iv. 5 Month Delay Compensation (C.O. No. 55).* 
v. Accelerate Phase 1 of Water Intrusion Mitigation Project 

(C.O. No. 82).* 
vi. Retrofit Two Accessible Fare Gates (C.O. No. 90).* 
vii. Construct a New PG&E Service Meter for New Fire Pump 

(C.O. No. 91).* 
Board requested to authorize. 

 

 

 B. Quarterly Performance Report, Fourth Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 – 
Service Performance Review.*  For information. 

 

 

7. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS 
Director Raburn, Chairperson 
 

 

 A. BART’s Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amendment and New 
Review Fee: Unsolicited Proposals for Property Development.* 
Board requested to adopt. 
 

 

 B. Re-Authorization of the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement for Transit 
Oriented Development, with Brookfield Residential, for the 
North Concord/Martinez BART Station Project.* 
Board requested to authorize.  
 

C. Federal and State Legislation for Consideration.* 
Board requested to authorize. 
 

D. Irvington BART Station to Warm Springs Extension Project 
Modifications.*  Board requested to adopt. 
 

E. Update on the Proposed Implementation of FASTER Bay Area.* 
For information. 

 

 

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

  

 A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, 
Administrative, and Roll Call for Introductions Items. 
 
 
 
 

  



    
 

* Attachment available  4 of 5  

9. INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 

 A. Quarterly Report of the Independent Police Auditor.  For information. 
 

 

 B. Revised Citizen Oversight Model Implementation Report.* 
 For information. 
 

 

10. BOARD MATTERS 
 

 

 A. Resolution authorizing an amendment to the Money Pension Plan 
Contribution for General Manager.*  Board requested to adopt. 
 

 

 B. Board Member Reports.   
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are 
available through the Office of the District Secretary.  An opportunity for Board 
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board 
Meeting.) 
 

 

 C. Roll Call for Introductions.   
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future 
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.) 
 

 

 D. In Memoriam. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.) 

  

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 

  

 
12. 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION  (Room 303, Board Conference Room) 
 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Name of Case: SF BART vs California Public Utilities Commission, 
California Court of Appeals, 1st District   

Case No.: A157312  
Government Code Section:  54956.9(a) 

 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION  

Name of Case: State of California -Occupational Safety and 
Health Appeal Board 

Case No. 2014-RID4-2102, Inspection No: 31720357 
Government Code Section: 54956.9(a) 

 
 

  



    
 

* Attachment available  5 of 5  

 C. 
 

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
 
Property: 300 Lakeside Drive, Oakland, CA 94612   
District Negotiator:                 Sean Brooks, Department Manager, Property Development 
Negotiating Parties:  SIC – Lakeside Drive (Swig Company LLC and Rockpoint Group 

LLC) and San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District/Jones Lang 
Lasalle 

Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 
Government Code Section:  54956.8 
 
Property:   601 12th Street, Oakland, 94607 
District Negotiator:             Sean Brooks, Department Manager, Property Development 
Negotiating Parties:  Oakland T-12, LLC (Shorenstein Realty Partners and Met Life) and 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District/Jones Lang Lasalle 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 
Government Code Section:  54956.8 
 
Property:    2150 Webster Street, Oakland, CA 94612 
District Negotiator:   Sean Brooks, Department Manager, Property Development 
Negotiating Parties:              W/L 2150 Webster Holdings VIII, L.P. (Lane Partners and  
                                                 Walton Street Capital) and San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit  
                                                 District/Jones Lang Lasalle 
Under Negotiation:   Price and Terms 
Government Code Section:  54956.8 
 

13. OPEN SESSION   
 

A. Announcement from Closed Session, if any. 
 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,846th Meeting 

July 25, 2019 

DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held July 25, 2019, convening at 9:00 a.m. in 
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. President Dufty presided; 
Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon 
and Dufty. 

None. 

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were: 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of June 13, 2019 (Regular); June 27, 2019 
(Regular); July 11 , 2019 (Regular); and July 17, 2019 (Special). 

2. BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) Allocation of Funds for Membership Fees 
to National Association for Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement (NACOLE). 

3. Resolution Authorizing California State of Good Repair Program Funds for Fiscal Year 
2019 -2020. 

4. District Engineering Recruitment Sourcing Services. 

5. Employee Relocation Assistance for the Deputy Managing Director Capitol Corridor. 

6. Agreement with U.S. Bank Voyager Fleet Systems, Inc. , for Participation in the State of 
California Department of General Services Purchase Card (CAL-Card) Program for the 
Voyager Fuel Card Program. 

7. Award of Contract No. 15TC-23 l, Aerial Structure Fall Protection, M-Line. 

8. Invitation for Bid No. 9054, Fujitec Step Assemblies. 

9. Invitation for Bid No. 9055, Escalator Step Assemblies. 

10. Invitation for Bid No. 9061 , Uninterruptible Power Supply. 

11 . Reject the Single Bid for Agreement No. 6M3425, Systemwide Track Joint Elimination 
Services. 

12. Richmond Greenway Pedestrian/Bike Path Revocable License Agreement with the City 
of Richmond. 

-1-



DRAFT 
Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Raburn seconded the motions 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, ' 
McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes -0. 

1. That the Minutes of the Meetings of June 13, 2019 (Regular); June 27, 2019 
(Regular); July 11 , 2019 (Regular); and July 17, 2019 (Special), be approved. 

2. That the Board authorize the allocation of $400.00 per fiscal year for BART Police 
Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) membership fees to National Association for 
Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement (NACOLE). 

3. Adoption of Resolution No. 5413, Authorizing the Acceptance of Fiscal Year 
2019-2020 California State of Good Repair Program Funds. 

4. That the General Manager or his designee be authorized, in conformance with 
established District procedures governing the procurement of professional services, 
to obtain District recruitment sourcing services, to identify qualified candidates for 
engineering positions identified by the Human Resources Department. The cost of 
the sourcing services will not exceed an aggregate amount of $200,000. 

5. That the General Manager or his designee be authorized to enter into a relocation 
expense reimbursement agreement, if necessary, for the role of Deputy Director, 
Capitol Corridor, in accordance with Management Procedure Number 70, New 
Employee Relocation Expense Reimbursement. 

6. That the General Manager be authorized to enter into an agreement with U.S. Bank 
Voyager Fleet Systems, Inc., for participation in the State of California DGS Cal
Card Program, reference participating addendum No. 7-16-99-27, Amendment 1, 
Commercial Card Solutions Contract 00612-Category 2, for the period 
December 31, 2018, to December 31, 2020. 

7. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15TC-231, Aerial 
Structure Fall Protection, M-Line, to SDV Services, Inc., for the Bid price of 
$1 ,382,999.00 pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and 
subject to compliance with the District's protest procedures. 

8. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid No. 9054, an 
estimated quantity contract, for the purchase of Fujitec escalator step assemblies, to 
Precision Escalator for the amount of $1,611 ,437.05, including taxes, pursuant to 
notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the 
District protest procedures. 

9. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 9055, an 
estimated quantity contract, for the purchase of O & K step chain assemblies, to 
Kone Spares, Moline, Illinois, for the amount of $1,449,907.44, including taxes, 
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager. 

10. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 9061, an 
estimated quantities contract, for Uninterruptible Power Supply to Benning Power 
Electronics, Inc. for an amount of$893,0l 7.15 (including applicable sales tax), 

-2-



DRAFT 
pursuant to a notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to 
compliance with the District's protest procedures. 

(The foregoing three motions were made on the basis of analysis by the 
staff and certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available 
for this purpose.) 

11. That the General Manager be authorized to reject the proposal submitted by 
Holland, LP for Request for Proposal No. 6M3425 Systemwide Track Joint 
Elimination Services, to restructure the scope of services and to re-advertise the 
Request for Proposal. 

12. That the General Manager or his designee be authorized to enter into a revocable 
License Agreement with the City of Richmond for the operation and maintenance 
of an access point to the Richmond Greenway from South 45th Street in Richmond, 
and to amend the License Agreement to address landscape improvements on BART 
property adjacent to the Richmond Greenway. 

President Dufty announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 2-A 
(Public Employee Employment) and Item 2-B (Conference with Negotiators) of the Regular 
Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 9:02 a.m. 

The Board reconvened in closed session at 9:03 a.m. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon 
and Dufty. 

None. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 9:35 a.m. 

The Board reconvened in open session at 9:35 a.m. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, 
and Dufty. 

None. 

President Dufty announced that the Board had voted in closed session to appoint Robert Powers 
as General Manager by a unanimous vote, subject to the parties reaching agreement on terms and 
conditions of employment. 

-3-



DRAFT 
President Dufty brought the matter of Compensation and Benefits for General Manager before 
the Board, and moved that the Board approve the following terms of employment for Robert 
Powers, which shall be incorporated in a mutually satisfactory written employment agreement 
prepared by the General Counsel for execution by Mr. Powers and the Board President: Service 
for an indefinite term at the pleasure of the Board; base salary of $385,000 per year; twelve 
months' severance pay for involuntary termination unless a result of death or gross misconduct; 
annual accrual of vacation at the rate of five weeks per year with subsequent changes in the rate 
of accrual occurring according to the schedule for non-represented employees generally; benefits 
afforded non-represented management employees and retirees; and additional annual 
contributions to the Money Purchase Pension Plan as follows: 

Effective upon amendment of the Money Purchase Pension Plan, $30,000 per year contributed 
to Mr. Powers' Money Purchase Pension Plan account ratably for each payroll period. The 
additional contributions to the Money Purchase Pension Plan will be coordinated on Mr. Powers 
making the maximum deferral contributions to the District's 457(b) Plan under Internal Revenue 
Code Sections 457(e)(15) and (18). The actuarial impact upon future annual costs to the District 
will not exceed $30,000 per year. The Board will work with the Office of the General Counsel 
and District staff to take the necessary steps to amend the Money Purchase Pension Plan to 
provide for such additional contributions, including compliance with Government Code Section 
7507. Vice President Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic 
vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and 
Dufty. Noes - 0. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 9:39 a.m. 

The Board reconvened at 9:51 a.m. 

Director Raburn introduced Mr. Michael McGill, Chairperson of the Bond Oversight Committee. 
Mr. McGill presented the committee' s Annual Report. 

Director Raburn introduced Mr. Rick Goldman, Chairperson of the BART Bicycle Advisory 
Task Force. Mr. Goldman gave a presentation on behalf of the task force. 

Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Construction and Development introduced the 
2019 Summer Interns from the departments of Planning, Development and Construction, and 
Maintenance and Engineering. 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. 

The following individuals addressed the Board: 
Gena Alexander 
Michael Granat 
Aleta Dupree 
Izzy Meckler 

Director Simon exited the meeting. 

Director Allen, Vice-Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of 

-4-



DRAFT 
Award of Agreement No. 6M4674, with APEX Investigation, for District's Workers' 
Compensation Investigative Services before the Board. Ms. Pamela Herhold, Assistant General 
Manager, Performance and Budget; and Mr. Rod Maplestone, Human Resources Division 
Manager, presented the item. Director Saltzman moved that the General Manager be authorized 
to award Agreement No. 6M4674, Investigative Services for the District ' s Workers' 
Compensation Program, to APEX Investigation for an amount not to exceed $1,152,470.85 for 
the base three-year period, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and 
subject to compliance with the District's protest procedures; and that the General Manager also 
be authorized to exercise Option Year One (1) for an amount not to exceed $430,942.60 and 
Option Year Two (2) for an amount not to exceed $430,942.60, subject to availability of funds. 
President Dufty seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. 
Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Dufty. 
Noes - 0. Absent - 1: Director Simon. 

Director McPartland exited the meeting. 

Director Foley, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter of 
Agreements for Quality of Life Programs before the Board. Ms. Tamar Allen, Assistant General 
Manager, Operations; and Mr. Tim Chan, Group Manager, Planning, presented the item. The 
item was discussed. Director Li moved that the General Manager be authorized to enter into 
negotiations with the listed agencies for the specified services: 

1. Urban Alchemy for elevator attendants at Civic Center, Powell Street, Montgomery and 
Embarcadero stations. In Fiscal Year 2020 (FY20) not to exceed $1,500,000, Fiscal Year 
2021 (FY21) not to exceed $1,900,000 and Fiscal Year 2022 (FY22) not to exceed 
$3,279,000. BART will enter into a separate reimbursement agreement with San Francisco 
Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMT A) for 50% of actual costs for these services. 

2. San Francisco Public Works (SFPW) for three Pit Stop locations at Powell Street, 
16th Street and 24th Street In FY20 not to exceed $257,500, FY21 not to exceed $265,225 
and FY22 not to exceed $273,182. 

3. Contra Costa Health Services (CCHS) for one dedicated Homeless Outreach Team in 
Contra Costa County. In FY20 not to exceed $180,000, FY21 not to exceed $187,000 and 
FY22 not to exceed $194,000. 

4. Alameda County Healthcare Services Agency (ACHSA) for one dedicated Homeless 
Outreach Team (HOT) in Alameda County. In FY20 not to exceed $250,000, FY21 not to 
exceed $257,500 and FY22 not to exceed $265,225. 

5. San Mateo County Human Services Agency (SMCHSA) for one dedicated Homeless 
Outreach Team (HOT) in San Mateo County and San Francisco International Airport 
(SFO). In FY20 not to exceed $250,000, FY21 not to exceed $257,500 and FY22 not to 
exceed $265,225. BART will enter into a separate reimbursement agreement with SFO for 
up to 50% of the costs based on the actual time spent at the airport. 

Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. 
Ayes - 7: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, Saltzman, and Dufty. Noes - 0. 
Absent - 2: Directors McPartland and Simon. 

-5-



DRAFT 
Director Foley brought the matter of Single Source Procurement with Motorola Solutions, Inc., 
for an Independent Public Safety Tunnel Radio System before the Board. Ms. Tamar Allen; and 
Mr. Shane Edwards, Chief Maintenance & Engineering Officer, presented the item. The item 
was discussed. Director Allen moved that pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 
20227, the Board finds that Motorola Solutions, Inc. is the single source for the purchase of 
equipment for the Project, and that the purchase is for the purpose of duplicating or replacing 
equipment in use at the District; and that the General Manager be authorized to enter into direct 
negotiations and execute a contract with Motorola Solutions, Inc. for the procurement of an 
Independent Public Safety Tunnel Radio System for an amount not to exceed $1,930,000 plus 
applicable taxes. President Dufty seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic 
vote by the required two-thirds majority. Ayes - 7: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, 
Saltzman, and Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - 2: Directors McPartland and Simon. 

Director Foley brought the matter of Award of Contract No. 07EA-120, 19th Street/Oakland 
Station Modernization Project, before the Board. Mr. Holmes and Ms. Shirley Ng, Group 
Manager, Capital Programs, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Raburn 
moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 07EA-120, 19th Street 
Oakland Station Modernization Project, to Proven Management, Inc., for the Bid Price of 
$32,691 ,000 pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the 
District' s protest procedures and Federal Transit Administration requirements related to protests; 
and that the General Manager be further authorized to exercise Option 1, Track Wall Mural 
Painting, subject to certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funding is available. Director 
Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by electronic vote. Ayes - 6: Directors Ames, 
Foley, Li, Raburn, Saltzman, and Dufty. Noes - 1: Director Allen. Absent - 2: Directors 
McPartland and Simon. 

President Dufty exited the meeting. 

Director Foley brought the matter of Agreement No. 6M3426 with Loram Maintenance of Way, 
Inc., for Production Rail Profiling Services before the Board. Ms. Tamar Allen; Mr. Laurence 
Farrell, Group Manager, Maintenance and Engineering; and Mr. Gregory Shivy, Principal Track 
Engineer, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Li moved that the General 
Manager be authorized to award Agreement No. 6M3426 to Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc., to 
provide Production Rail Profiling Services for a one (1) year base period with (2) two, (1) one
year options, for an amount not to exceed $12,636,749.00, pursuant to notification to be issued 
by the General Manager. Director Raburn seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous 
electronic vote. Ayes - 6: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, and Saltzman. Noes-'-- 0. 
Absent - 3: Directors Dufty, McPartland and Simon. 

Director Foley brought the matter of Change Orders to Contract No. 09DJ-l50A, TBT Cathodic 
Protection Reference Cell Replacement, with DMZ Builders before the Board. Ms. Tamar 
Allen; Ms. Maansii Chiraq Sheth, Project Manager; and Mr. Myat San, Group Manager, 
Mechanical/Electrical Engineering, presented the item. Director Allen moved that the General 
Manager be authorized to execute the Change Orders 9 .1 through 16 ( a total of 8 Change Orders) 
for Contract No. 09DJ-150A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement for a total 
estimated amount of $380,588.00, with a time extension to the Contract Duration of 61 Days. 
Director Li seconded the motion which carried by unanimous electronic vote. 
Ayes - 6: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, and Saltzman. Noes - 0. Absent - 3: 
Directors Dufty, McPartland and Simon. (A description of the eight change orders is attached 
and hereby made a part of these Minutes.) 

-6-



DRAFT 

President Dufty re-entered the meeting. 

Director Foley brought the matter of Change Order to Contract No. 47CJ-120, Procurement of 
Ticket Vending Machine Transport Installation Kits with Software Modifications, 
with Cubic Transportation Systems, Inc., to Dispense Clipper Cards (C.O. No. 1) before the 
Board. Ms. Tamar Allen and Ms. Mitra Moheb, Manager of Engineering Programs, presented 
the item. The item was discussed. Director Saltzman moved that the General Manager be 
authorized to execute Change Order No. 001 to Contract No. 47CJ-120, Procurement of 
Clipper® Vending Machine Transport Installation Kits and Software Modifications to Dispense 
Clipper® Cards in the amount of $687,911.00. Directors Allen and Dufty seconded the motion, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 7: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, 
Raburn, Saltzman, and Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - 2: Directors McPartland and Simon. 

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation 
Committee, brought the matter of Award of Agreement No. 57RR-110, with Alex Kushner 
General, Inc., for Embarcadero and Civic Center Bike Station Modifications before the Board. 
Mr. Holmes; Mr. Steve Beroldo, Manager of Access Programs; and Mr. Maceo Wiggins, 
Department Manager, Office of Civil Rights, presented the item. The item was discussed. 
Director Raburn moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Contract 
No. 57RR-1 10, for Embarcadero and Civic Center Bike Station Modifications, to Alex Kushner 
General Inc., of San Francisco, California, for the bid price of $573,260, pursuant to notification 
to be issued by the General Manager and subject to compliance with the District's protest 
procedures. President Dufty seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. 
Ayes - 7: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, Saltzman, and Dufty. Noes - 0. 
Absent - 2: Directors McPartland and Simon. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of Update on Transbay Core Capacity Project before the 
Board. Mr. Holmes; Mr. Duncan Watry, Project Manager; Ms. Nikki Foletta, Project Manager; 
and Mr. Thomas Dunscombe, Group Manager, Capital Projects, presented the item. The item 
was discussed. 

President Dufty called for the General Manager's Report. 

Ms. Tamar Allen reported on the faregate pilots at Richmond and Fruitvale Stations. 
Mr. Roddrick Lee, Acting Assistant General Manager, External Affairs, reported on the 
development of a survey on the modified fare gates to gain customer feedback. General 
Manager Powers reported on steps he had taken and activities and meetings he had participated 
m. 

President Dufty called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In 
Memoriam. 

Director Raburn reported he had met with Blueshield regarding their pending move near the 12th 
Street/Oakland City Center Station and with Alameda County Supervisor Carson and Alameda 
County Administrator Muranishi on homeless outreach and transit oriented development, and 
had attended the Family Bridges Gala, a Service Review Advisory Committee for East Bay 
Paratransit meeting, the SPUR housing, transportation and urban development symposium, and a 
meeting of the Tanforan Memorial group. 

-7-



DRAFT 
President Dufty requested an In Memoriam for Joseph "Bunny" Simon, who owned 8 nightclubs 
in the Fillmore District in the 50's and 60's, and was credited with bringing black jazz to San 
Francisco. Mr. Simon was the grandfather of Director Lateefah Simon. 

Director Saltzman reported she had met with the El Cerrito Democratic Club to discuss transit 
oriented development and Assembly Bill 2923 and that she would be participating in .community 
outreach with District staff to discuss the San Pablo specific plan. 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. No comments were received. 

President Dufty announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 13-A 
(Conference With Legal Counsel) of the Regular Meeting agenda, and that the Board would 
reconvene in open session upon conclusion of the closed session. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:57 p.m. 

The Board reconvened in closed session at 1 :07 p.m. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, Saltzman, and Dufty. 

Directors McPartland and Simon. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 1: 11 p.m. 

The Board reconvened in open session at 1: 12 p.m. 

President Dufty announced that there were no announcements to be made from the closed 
session. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 1: 12 p.m. in honor of Joseph "Bunny" Simon. 

-8-

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

ATTACHMENT #1 
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

Name of Contractor: 

Contract No./NTP: 

Contract Description: 

Percent Complete as of?/ 15/2019 

COST 

Original Contract A ward Amount 

Change Orders: 

Other than Board Authorized C.O.s 

Pending Board Authorized C.O.s 

Subtotal of all Change Orders 

Revised Contract Amount: 

SCHEDULE 

Original Contract Duration: 
Time Extension to Date: 
Time Extension Due to Pending COs: 
Revised Contract Duration 

DMZ Builders Co., Inc. 

09DJ-150A I July 25, 2018 

TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement 

85% 

% of Award 

9.91% 

40.07% 

49.98% 

CO Totals 

$ 94,120.42 

$380,588.00 

$474,708.42 

360 Days 
0 Days 
61 Days 
421 Days 

Contract Amount 

$ 949,850.00 

$1,424,588.42 

SUMMARY REASON FOR THESE CHANGE ORDER{S) 

To address access and coordination conflicts with TBT Retrofit Project and differing site conditions 
encountered. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENE~:N: GER APQ VAL: 14 "-, 2 tlf ' 

/ l...l,t" ~ - r u---
DATE: 8 6 2019 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD 1:\'ITIATED ITD1: Ye;; 

General Counsel Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

~ .. ( 
I I \~.,\~! 

FIXED PROPERTY TAX RA TES FY 2019-20 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

PURPOSE: 
Fixing the rate of property taxes for BART in San Francisco, Alameda and Contra Costa 
Counties for Fiscal Year 2019-20 as required by Public Utilities Code Section 29126 to pay 
for the debt service on the District's General Obligation Bonds. 

DISCUSSION: 
The net debt service required on the District's General Obligation Bonds for levying the 
property tax rate during Fiscal Year 2019-20 is $89,818,187 as determined by BAR T's 
financial staff. The District's General Obligation Bonds are composed of two separate 
measures, Measure AA (Election of 2004) and Measure RR (Election of 2016). The net debt 
service required on the District's Measure AA (Election of 2004) General Obligation Bonds 
for Fiscal Year 2019-20 is $55,619,585 as determined by BART's financial staff. The net 
debt service required on the Measure RR (Election of 2016) General Obligation Bonds for 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 is $34,198,602 as determined by BAR T's financial staff. 

The net debt service tax rate required for both Measures by the District for Fiscal Year 2019-
20 is .0120 percent which equates to $12.00 per one hundred thousand dollars of assessed 
valuation for the three counties within the District as determined by their Auditor-Controller's 
Offices. The net debt service tax rate required by the District for Fiscal Year 2019-20 for the 
Measure AA (Election of 2004) General Obligation Bonds is .0074 percent which equates to 
$7.40 per one hundred thousand dollars of assessed valuation for the three counties and the 
net debt service tax rate required by the District for Fiscal Year 2019-20 for the Measure RR 



FIXED PROPERTY TAX RATES FY 20 19-20- GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

(Election of 2016) General Obligation Bonds is .0046 percent which equates to $4.60 per 
one hundred thousand dollars of assessed valuation for the three counties within the District 
as determined by their Auditor-Controller's Offices. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Revenues collected on the basis of the above tax rate will be sufficient for the debt service 
requirements for the General Obligation Bonds for Fiscal Year 2019-20. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
None. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the tax rate fixed for Fiscal Year 2019-20 be approved. 

MOTION: 
Adopt attached Resolution. 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

In The Matter of Fixing The Rate of Taxes 
For San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit 
District for Fiscal Year 2019/20 Resolution No. -----

WHEREAS, this Board desires to fix the rate of taxes for the District, for the fiscal year 
July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, and make valid assessments of property and valid levies of 
taxes in accordance with Public Utilities Code Section 29126; and 

WHEREAS, Section 93( c) of the Revenue and Taxation Code authorizes the District to 
levy an ad valorem property tax in order to produce revenues in an amount equal to the 
amount ne.eded to make annual payments of principal and interest on the General 
Obligation Bonds which were approved by over two-thirds vote of the District's voters on 
November 2, 2004 (Measure AA) and November 8, 2016 (Measure RR); and 

WHEREAS, this Board has determined the tax rate for the District taxes for the counties 
in the District for the fiscal year 2019/20 from the budget of the District for the fiscal year 
2019/20 and from the values of property transmitted to this Board by County Auditors; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the rate of taxes for payment of the General 
Obligation Bonds of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, for the fiscal year 
July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, is hereby fixed at .0120 percent, which equates to $12.00 
per one hundred thousand dollars of assessed value of property. Per Measure AA General 
Obligation Bonds, the rate of taxes of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, 
for the fiscal year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, is hereby fixed at .0074 percent, which 
equates to $7.40 per one hundred thousand dollars of assessed value of property. Per 
Measure RR General Obligation Bonds, the rate of taxes of the San Francisco Bay Area 
Rapid Transit District, for the fiscal year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, is hereby fixed at 
.0046 percent, which equates to $4.60 per one hundred thousand dollars of assessed value 
of property. AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Secretary shall immediately 
after the effective date of this resolution transmit to the County Auditor of the Counties in 
which the District is situated a statement of such tax rate. The effective date of this 
resolution is August 22, 2019. 

Adopted: ------

Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 

DATE: 7/30/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Cristiano Torresi 

Dept: RoUing Stock and Shops 

[ l 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD lNITlA TED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

[ l 

AW ARD OF INVITATION FOR BID NO. 9065, ENCODER ASSEMBLY FOR AC 
TRACTION MOTORS 

PURPOSE: To request Board Authorization to Award Invitation for Bid ("IFB") No. 9065 
to ITP Rail Associates, Inc. , Avon Connecticut in the amount of $1,188,592.50 (inclusive of 
all taxes) for the purchase of Encoder Assembiy for AC Traction Motor. 

DISCUSSION: The District 's fleet currently consists of 439 A2/B2 cars each of which is 
equipped with 4 AC Traction Motors. The encoder assembly, is mounted on the front of 
each traction motor and provides a signal which indicates train movement and signals the 
door system preventing the doors from opening above zero speed. Failure of the encoder 
results on a locked axle indication causing the train to stop and causing mainline service 
delays. Based upon the bearing manufacturer' s projection the expected life of the encoder is 
eight (8) years. 

This is a two (2) year estimated quantity contract. Pursuant to the terms of the District's 
standard estimated quantities contract, during the term of the contract, the District is required 
to purchase from the supplier a minimum of 50 percent of the contract bid price. Upon 
Board approval of this contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to purchase 
up to 150 percent of the contract bid price, subject to availability of funding. 

A notice requesting bids was published on May 21, 2019 and correspondence was sent to 1 
prospective bidder inviting it to view the solicitation on the Vendor Portal. Bids were opened 
on June 11, 2019 and one bid was received. 

Bidder Units Unit Price (each) Total flnCluding al taxes) 
ITP Rail Associates, INC Avon, er. 760 $ 1,425 $ 1,188,592.50 



AWARD OF INVITATION FOR BID NO. 9065, ENCODER ASSEMBLY 

Independent Cost Estimate by BART Staff: $1,165,237.70 

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to 
Invitations for Bid. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business 
Enterprise ("MBE") or Women Business Enterprise (''WBE") Availability Percentages for 
this IFB. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 5% Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certified by 
the California Department of General Services. ITP Rail Associates is not a certified Small 
Business and, therefore, is not eligible for the 5% Small Business Prime Preference. 

Staff has determined that the only bidder, ITP Rail Associates, INC. submitted a responsive 
bid. Staff has also determined that the bid pricing is fair and reasonable based upon the 
Independent Cost Estimate. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding of$1,188,592.50 for this procurement will come from Rolling 
Stock and Shops ("RS&S") Inventory Material Usage Account (#680-010) as materials are 
procured. Funding for FY20 is included in the operating budget of department #0803622. 
Funding for FY21, will be requested as part of next year's operating budget cycle and is 
subject to Board approval. The proposed award of this Contract will not result in any 
operating costs above the current year·s adopted budget. This action is not anticipated to 
have any fiscal impact on unprogrammed District reserves in the current Fiscal Year. Total 
funding for this contract in the amount not to exceed 150% of $1,188,592.50, is based on 
the following totals by year: 

FY20, $ 594,296.25 
FY21, $ 594,296.25 

ALTERNATIVE: The alternative to awarding this Contract would be to reject the Bid and 
re-advertise the Contract. Staff does not believe that re-advertising the Contract will result in 
additional bids or lower prices. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award IFB No. 9065 for the purchase of 
Encoder Assemblies for Vehicle Traction Motors to ITP Rail Associates, Inc. for the Bid 
price of $1,188,592.50 including tax, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General 
Manager. 



m 
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GElliERAL MANAGER APPRO\.AL: 

OrltlHlorlPr•parH lty: Grrg Marr•• • 

D&>pl: Pufara aacc Ii Bud1 c1 

s,, .. ,. 

/ + A., JO·~ GENERAi. MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

Responses to the 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report, "Crime and 
· Quality of Life: Impact on BART Ridership" 

PURPOSE: 

To obtain Board approval of Responses to findings and recommendations contained in the 
2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report, "Crime and Quality of Life: Impact on 
BART Ridership" 

DISCUSSION: 

On June 11 , 2019, the 201 8-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury issued a Final Report entitled 
"Crime and Quality of Life: Impact on BART Ridership" ('Report'), which contained five 
findings and seven recommendations relating to the BART system, including crime, safety 
and homelessness, fare evasion, system cleanliness, and transparency. Although the Report 
stands as·a thoughtful illustration of these issues, a fuller understanding requires that they be 
considered within the context of BAR T's current and planned future efforts in each area. As 
such, BART welcomes the opportunity to respond in detail to each of the findings and 
recommendations to describe our position, provide explanatory information, and add 
clarifying detail. 

In conformance with the statutory response requirements, we have indicated agreement or 
disagreement with the Report findings (supplemented by a narrative response), and provided 
brief but comprehensive responses to the Report recommendations. These proposed 
responses are provided as Attachment A and are accompanied by the Report for reference. 



RC!ponses to Alameda County Grand Jury Final Repon 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Board approval of the responses has no fiscal impact. BART is already advancing several 
major initiatives as described in Attachment A, and any new initiatives that may be 
recommended would be determined as part of future budgets. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Direct staff to amend responses based on Board input. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Attachment A, Responses from the BART Board of Directors to the 2018-2019 
Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report, "Crime and Quality of Life: Impact on BART 
Ridership" 

MOTION: 

The Board approves the attached Responses from the BART Board of Directors to the 
2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report, "Crime and Quality of Life: Impact on 
BART Ridership" and directs staff that those responses be transmitted to the 20I8-2019 
Alameda County Grand Jury. 



Attachment A - Responses to the 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report, "Crime and Quality of 

Life: Impact on BART Ridership" 

FINDINGS 

Finding 19-30: 

BART's police department staffing has been insufficient to meet crime levels, as reported by an outside 
expert, who recommended substantially more patrol officers and revamped patrol assignments. 

RESPONSE: Agree 

We agree that we need to increase our police staffing to address the challenges impacting BART riders. The 
adopted FY20 budget continues BART's efforts to increase police staffing, by adding 19 new police officer 
positions and four new Fare Inspector positions. BART's future staffing model includes adding more police 
officers to increase presence at stations, on trains and having overlap/cover officers. This model will provide a 
more saturated police presence to increase safety on BART. 

Finding 19-31: 

Although overall crime on BART is up only slightly from 2014 to 2018, the incidence of violent crime more 
than doubled during that time. All crime is serious, but the potential for violent crime is particularly 
frightening to riders. The high volume of lesser offenses, especially thefts of items like phones, computers, 
wallets, etc., dramatically affects riders' perceptions of safety and well-being on the BART system. 

RESPONSE: Disagree partially 

The significant driving factor in the increase of violent crime is the robbery of cell phones and other electronic 
devices, which is defined by the FBl's Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) Program as a violent crime. Unfortunately, 
electronic device robbery is a growing trend in modern society, and public transit is a target rich environment 
for cell phone thieves. In the BART system, this is evidenced by the concentration of cellphone thefts which 
have occurred in our high-density, commuter rich downtown San Francisco stations. As is true on most transit 
systems, a significant number of riders can be seen using smart phones while commuting on BART. Since the 
perception of safety is high priority for BART, we continue to educate our riders on how they can reduce the risk 
of having their cell phone stolen. 

It is important, however, to view crime statistics in comparison to the number of riders. When considering the 
485 violent crimes reported in 2018, it is important to note that BART carried nearly 120 million passengers 
during the same year, resulting in a per passenger rate of 0.0004%. We absolutely agree that all crime is 
serious, particularly violent crime, but the likelihood of becoming the victim of a crime on BART is relatively low. 

We also acknowledge that quality of life issues affects the perception of safety on the system. BART expends 
significant resources to address quality of life issues, including the presence of police personnel to offer 
resources to homeless persons. When criminal conduct is witnessed, our police officers may take enforcement 
action as appropriate under the circumstances. 

BART Response to 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Report Page 1 1 



Finding 19-32: 

Public concern about fare evasion has been one of the top issues on every customer satisfaction study since 
2014. The lack of enforcement erodes confidence in BART and costs upwards of $25 million, or 5% of 

passenger revenue. 

RESPONSE: Disagree partially 

While it's correct that the largest declines for this attribute have occurred in the last three surveys (refer to the 
table below), it was first identified as an issue for customers in the 2016 survey and became a much greater 
concern in 2018. It was not a top issue for customers in the 2014 survey, as measured by relative percent 
change. 

Enforcement 

against fare 

evasion 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 

% change in 

mean vs. 

prior survey 1.1% -0.4% 1.7% 5.9% -1.2% -1.2% -3.3% -1.3% -3.9% -6.3% -19.8% 

• In 2014, this attribute was not one of the top declines. (Out of the 48 attributes rated, it was number 21 
when sorted by% decline. The largest declines were around seat availability, station cleanliness, and 
onboard temperature.) 

• In 2016, it was the 4th largest decline among all attributes. 
• In 2018, it was the largest decline among all attributes. 

• Note that despite the relatively large declines in 2016 and 2018, the attribute did not appear as a 
"Target Issue" in the quadrant chart. ("Target Issues" are determined by relatively low attribute ratings 
combined with relat ively high derived importance scores.) 

BART's estimated fare revenue value of a fare evasion rate of 3% to 6% is approximately $1SM to $2SM. It is 
important to note, however, that not all of this value is potentially recoverable, for two reasons: First, some fare 
evaders would not ride BART if they were prevented from fare evading; Second, based on the experience of New 
York City Transit, which has far more physically hardened stations than BART, it is likely not feasible to prevent 
100% of all fare evasion. 

Although the finding asserts a "lack of enforcement", it does not accurately reflect BART's actions in responding 
to this issue. Over the last several fiscal years, we've added funding for community service officers, dedicated 
fare inspectors, and 19 additional police officers. BART has also committed substantial capital funds directly to 
station hardening, as well as incorporating hardening design and equipment into our ongoing station 
modification program. Modifications and additions include raised railings, alarmed swing gates, fare gate 
pressure increase ("cinch" modification), enclosure of platform elevators to paid areas, additional security 
cameras, and electronic service gates. BART is also exploring long term solutions for new fare gates, which will 
include fare evasion mitigation in design and deployment strategy. 

BART Response to 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Report Page I 2 



Finding 19-33: 

Cleanliness of BART trains and stations was the concern most cited in the Customer Satisfaction Study from 
2012 through 2018. BART introduced several initiatives to target cleaning resources where most needed and 
to prevent messes in the first place (e.g., elevator attendants, Pit Stop program). However, continuing 
dissatisfaction with cleanliness was repeatedly cited in the most recent survey, in large part due to an 

increase in the homeless population using BART facilities. 

RESPONSE: Disagree partially 

The top 3 attribute declines in the 2018 survey revolved around enforcement and personal security. While 
issues with cleanliness appeared within four of the 10 attributes with the largest declines, describing them as 
the most cited concern isn't accurate. 

While some customers did comment on cleanliness issues in relation to homelessness, we do not have 
quantitative data to draw the conclusion that dissatisfaction with cleanliness is due in large part to an increased 
homeless population on BART. We can conclude that it is a factor, but it would be very difficult to determine 
how large of a factor with existing Customer Satisfaction Survey data. 

Train interior cleanliness and station cleanliness were reviewed for the last few surveys. Here are results after 
sorting in ascending order on % change: 

• 2018: Train interior cleanliness: -14.1%; station cleanliness : -9.2% (#4 and #12 of 45 attributes with prior 
year ratings) 

• 2016: Train interior cleanliness: -0.7%; station cleanliness: -4.4% (#38 and #10 of 47 attributes with prior 
survey comparisons) 

• 2014: Train interior cleanliness: -4.7%; station cleanliness: -7.8% (#13 and #3 of 48 attributes with prior 
survey comparisons) 

• 2012: Train interior cleanliness improved vs. prior year (+1.8%), while station cleanliness was -2.6% (#3 
of 46 attributes with prior survey comparisons) 

• 2010: Train interior cleanliness: -3.7%; station cleanliness: -4.0% (#5 and #4 of 47 attributes with prior 
survey comparisons) 

Finding 19-34: 

Board-related documents are difficult to find on the BART website because some, especially those related to 
the board, are not searchable. 

RESPONSE: Disagree partially 

All Board related documents are posted in the Board of Directors section of bart .gov. Prior to July of 2011, 
Board Meeting agenda pdfs were searchable. Unfortunately, the software used to create the agenda pdfs was 
changed in mid-2011 and agendas were uploaded to the website in a way that terms within the agenda were 
not searchable, although many of the attachments, which contained written reports and presentations, 
remained key-word searchable. In May 2018, the District began to use industry-standard Legistar electronic 
agenda creation software, with all agendas accessed through Legistar searchable. 

BART Response to 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Report Page I 3 



RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation 19-30: 

BART must increase police patrol officer staffing over the next five years to make the entire BART system 

safer, in accordance with the expert study it commissioned and received in 2018. 

RESPONSE: 

The BART District is committed to increasing police officer staffing. As recommended in the staffing study, the 
BART Board of Directors recently approved 19 additional police officer positions in the FY20 budget. The BART 
Police Department and BART Human Resources are working together to aggressively recruit and hire police 
officers. During the recent labor negotiations, the District negotiated with our BART Police Officer Association to 
allow the outsourcing of background investigations for police officer applicants. This allowance has significantly 
increased our ability to hire officers at a much faster pace. In addition, the new labor agreement provides for an 
improved compensation package that will make BART more salary competitive and support increased 
recruitment. BART has also instituted, and recently increased, a hiring bonus for lateral applicants with prior law 
enforcement experience. Lateral officers are trained and become solo officers more quickly than entry level 
applicants. 

The hiring of additional police officers is a very high priority for BART, and we are making significant progress. 

Recommendation 19-31: 

BART must better educate the public on crime prevention to reduce opportunities for robberies and thefts on 
the transit system. 

RESPONSE: 

In keeping with our longstanding practice, BART remains committed to using a variety of channels to educate 
the public on crime prevention and reducing opportunities for robberies and thefts. This includes frequent 
overhead Public Address announcements, safety tips that scroll on our platform digital signs, posters on board 
train cars, social media messages. passenger bulletins inside stations, website postings, a dedicated Safety and 
Security webpage, in-station outreach and community outreach with safety tip flyers in multiple languages. and 
frequent interviews with the media to spread the message beyond our riders. BART also has the following 
message in bold at the bottom of BART Service Advisories that are emailed out: Ride Safe: Download the BART 
Watch App, save 510-464-7000 for BART Police in your phone, and secure electronic devices when the train 
door is opening. More tips and info about what we are doing to help keep BART safe can be found at 
www.bart.gov/ridesafe. 

In May 2019 BART Communications and BART Police teamed up to renew the call for riders to protect their 
phone. A public information campaign was deployed, electronic theft data was shared, and we released 
surveillance footage showing how quickly the thefts can occur. BART Police Detectives walked trains handing 
out cards advising riders to be aware of their surroundings, so they can avoid falling victim to thieves who are 
after their cellphones. The index-card sized handout includes tips in multiple languages for keeping cellphones 
safe with an emphasis on the importance of looking up from your device near train doors and while waiting on 
station platforms. 

BART Response t o 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Report Page I 4 



BART Police and BART staff also participate in several community outreach events each year including National 
Night Out. Coffee with a Cop. Trunk or Treat. having booths at local fairs and festivals handing out flyers with 
safety tips and special events during the busy holiday shopping season to remind riders to be aware of their 
surroundings. These education and outreach efforts work in tandem with BART's efforts to increase police 
staffing and visibility, as well as improvement and enhancement of security surveillance systems (cameras in all 
cars and comprehensive digital coverage in stations) to reduce crime in the system. 

Recommendation 19-32: 

BART should continue the enforcement crackdown on fare evaders and improve its overall process for 
handling the collection of fare evasion fines. 

RESPONSE: 

BART's primary fare payment enforcement tools involve Proof of Payment verification and Fare Evasion 
observation and detention, and there are important distinctions between the two. 

Proof of Payment violations result in a civil citation, predominantly issued by our non-sworn Fare Inspectors. 
This occurs when our Fare Inspectors asks persons to present a ticket or Clipper card inside the paid area of 
BART or on BART trains. Our Fare Inspectors are limited in their ability to verify a person's identity, which results 
in civil citations issued to fictitious names. Our Fare Inspectors are trained on how to ask for valid identification 
and how to detect if someone is likely giving false information. If a Fare Inspector has reason to believe that a 
person is giving false information, the Fare Inspector can request an officer to respond and run and 
identification check. Civil citations for Proof of Payment are processed through an outside service 
contractor. Late payments are assessed an additional fee, and unpaid fines are referred to the Franchise Tax 
Board. The service contractor has a process to refer unpaid fines to collections agencies, and BART is 
considering that as an option. 

Fare Evasion citations issued by our police officers are criminal infractions. This occurs when a police officer 
witnesses someone entering or exiting the paid area of BART without processing fare media. When police 
officers detain someone for fare evasion, the officer runs an ID check to confirm identity and to check for 
warrants. Consequently, fare evasion citations are most often issued to accurate names. Fare Evasion citations 
are processed through court, since they are a criminal infraction. Unpaid criminal citations have the potential of 
being sent to collections and/or becoming a warrant, at the discretion of the court. BART is not involved in the 
collection of fare evasion fines for criminal infractions. 

As we continue to enhance enforcement efforts, in FY20 BART is expanding the number of Fare Inspectors by 
four and adding 19 more Police Officers. This will allow for more focused enforcement. BART also deploys 
managers, staff and additional police officers to select downtown San Francisco stations starting with the 
opening of revenue service to provide an active presence to deter early morning fare evasion. While resource 
intensive, this effort has resulted in measurable improvements to the passenger experience. 

BART Response to 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Report Page I 5 



Recommendation 19-33: 

BART must continue and expand its initiatives to keep trains and stations clean and to respond more quickly 
to bio-hazard complaints. 

RESPONSE: 

BART continues to focus on station and tra in cleanliness. Within the last two fiscal years, BART has restructured 
its system service department to achieve greater efficiencies in deploying t rain and station clean ing resources, 
committed additional resources for station brightening, station refresh, and maintaining stat ion entrances, 
increased frequency of "deep" cleaning of cars from 120 to 90 days, increased frequency of end-of-l ine car 
cleaning coverage, and added permanent mid-line cleaning staff. Stations receive full cleanings each 
day involving a sweeping of the platforms, concourse, escalator steps and stairs, damp mop of any spills, and 
cleaning of elevator floors and panels. Any mess encountered will be removed and surface sprayed with the 
appropriate cleaning agent. We are also establishing a robust training system for station cleaners, instituting 
audits to ensure better results, and taking steps to make sure our workers have access to the most effective 
cleaning tools available. These changes also include new staffing levels for each station designed to make sure 
our cleaning teams are making the greatest impact. 

Additionally, in May 2018 BART added a feature to its website and mobile website (and made it available on the 
official BART app when it launched November 2018) that allows customers to report biohazards to BART. The 
feature alerts cleaning crews of the biohazard so they can be immediately cleaned up. BART continues to work 
with local outreach organizations to address the spillover of the regional opiate epidemic into the system. 

Recommendation 19-34: 

BART should continue to partner with social service agencies that serve the homeless, while strongly 
advocating for a comprehensive regional, rather than county by county, program to aid the homeless, 
especially those with mental health conditions. 

RESPONSE: 

While BART supports a regional approach/strategy for this regional problem, BART operates in four, soon to be 
five, counties, each with varying levels of challenges with homeless populations. As a transit agency, BART has 
limited resources and our system is not a suitable shelter for homeless people. BART is committed to providing 
our riders with a safe and clean environment and a key part of that is developing a comprehensive strategy that 
includes connecting homeless people with support services. We are strongly advocating for a regional 
approach and are working with county agencies to develop a strategy and plan 

BART is partnering with SFMTA and the City of San Francisco's Department of Homelessness to provide two full
time Homelessness Outreach Teams (HOT) in the Downtown San Francisco and Mission St. stations. BART is also 
partnering with Contra Costa Health Services to provide one full-time HOT team in Contra Costa County. In 
FY20, BART will partner with Alameda County Healthcare Services Agency to provide one full-time team in 
Alameda County and with San Mateo County Human Services Agency and SFO for another full-t ime team in San 
Mateo County/SFO. 

BART Response to 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Report Page I 6 



The comprehensive plan also brings a renewed focus on improving the station environment. That includes 
hiring new station cleaners to focus on our busiest stations and increasing the visible employee presence. BART 
is adding more community service officers to disrupt drug injection sites as well as recruiting additional police 
officers. BART is also positioning fully attended Pit Stop bathrooms above ground at major station entrances 
and exits in downtown San Francisco to provide safe and clean access to restrooms for the public. 

Recommendation 19-35: 

BART must establish a method to track and report on emerging concerns within the Customer Satisfaction 
Study report, initially drawing on passenger comments that document new and persistent concerns of riders. 

RESPONSE: 

This recommendation will be implemented as part of BART's next Customer Satisfaction Study, tentatively 
scheduled for fall of 2020, with the final report expected by June of 2021. The final report will include a section 
covering emerging concerns among BART customers. Emerging concerns will be determined by evaluating the 
following items in unison: 

o Attribute rating trends; 
o Verbatim comment category counts, including any new categories if applicable; 
o Qualitative review of verbatim comments. 

Recommendation 19-36: 

BART must increase the transparency of BART policies, decisions, and operations by making all Board-related 

documents and staff reports searchable, so information may be more easily found by the public using the 
BART website's search feature. 

RESPONSE: 

BART has recently implemented an industry-standard product called "Legistar" that is a legislative document 
management system with robust search capabilities. This system is already linked to BART.gov in the area where 
agendas and Board packets are posted. This new solution, along with reposting all the previous PDFs as 
documents with Optical Character Recognition (OCR), will enable searchable PDFs, and a robust overall search 
tool. The District Secretary's Office has begun the process of re-creating and re-posting all agenda packets from 
mid-2011 to present, and all future agenda packets will continue to be created in a searchable format. 

BART Response to 2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Report Page I 7 





2 018-2 019 Ala meda County Grand J ury Final Report 

CRIME AND QUALI'IY OF LIFE: 
IMPACT ON BART RIDERSHIP 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The last few years have been challenging for the Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) system. The 
public was shocked by the news of a young woman's murder at the MacArthur BART station in 
July 2018, the same week that two men were killed by attackers in other BART stations. These 
tragedies drew attention to crime, safety and quality oflife concerns by riders . 

Violent crime on BART, including robberies and 
aggravated assaults, increased by 115% over the last five 
years. Perhaps not coincidentally, BART lost 8% of its 
ridership since its 2016 peak, even as the Bay Area 
population grew and several new stations were added to 
the system. 

Violent crime on BART, including 
robberies and a99ravated 

assaultshincreased by 115% over 
t e last five years. · 

The Grand Jury identified four interrelated quality of life issues that appear to discourage 
residents of Alameda County and the greater Bay Area from riding BART. These are not new 
issues, but have increasingly touched a nerve in current and former riders: 

(A) Homelessness 
(B) Cleanliness of the trains and stations 
( C) Fare evasion 
(D) Security and perception of safety. 

The media is aware of these problems; local TV stations and newspapers routinely broadcast or 
publish reports on BART's problems. 

BART's current riders are aware of these problems; public opinion as measured by customer 
satisfaction studies and letters to the editor consistently mention these quality of life issues and 
their negative impacts on rider satisfaction.-

Most importantly, BART is aware of, and is trying to do something about these problems. 
Through its investigation, the Grand Jury sought to determine whether BART responded to 
these issues as quickly as it could, and whether there are other emerging customer satisfaction 
issues that BART should address. With the retirement of two top leaders - the general manager 
and the BART police chief - BART's Board of Directors (board) must ensure continuity of 
leadership on these issues, particularly crime and perception of safety. 

123 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report 

BACKGROUND 

BART is a public agency that provides rapid transit rail service for the San Francisco Bay Area, 
with 48 stations and 121 miles of track. All five BART lines run in part through Alameda County, 
and serve county residents. BART is governed by a nine-member elected board of directors, with 
a general manager to oversee day-to-day operations. Funding for the transit system's $768 
million operating expense budget21 in FY2019 comes from passenger fares (63%), parking (5%), 
other revenue (5%), and sales tax, property tax and other financial assistance (27%). 

BART first opened nearly 50 years ago and the system now requires extensive and expensive 
infrastructure investments to maintain its services. At the same time, it is extending lines to new 
parts of the Bay Area (Warm Springs in 2017 and Antioch in 2018, with an extension to San Jose 
scheduled to open in late 2019 and a later extension to Santa Clara.) 

Fewer p_assengers means less revenue for 
BART, which is counting on about 60% of its 
operating expenses to oe covered by fares in 
FY 2020, compared to 74%.five years ago. 

BART's average weekday ridership has 
steadily declined from its Fiscal Year (FY) 

2016 peak of 433,400 riders to 407,600 in FY 
2019 (Table 1). This is a loss of 25,800 daily 
riders, or 6% fewer passengers each weekday 
than three years ago. Weekend ridership tells 

a similar but more extreme story, with a peak in average weekend ridership in FY 2015, dropping 
by 23% since then, with 82,500 fewer passengers now riding BART on a typical weekend. 

Forecasted ridership for FY 2020 is even lower, especially on weekends. This downward trend 
in ridership is occurring despite a 2% increase in the Bay Area's population from 2016 to 2018 
and despite the new service line extensions. 

Fewer passengers means less revenue for BART, which is counting on about 60% of its operating 
expenses to be covered by fares in FY 2020, compared to 74% five years ago. Between lower fare 
revenue and expected increases in operating expenses, BART anticipates facing an operating 
budget deficit this year and over the next few years. 

21 Excluding bond debt service and allocations. The total budget including those costs is $922 million. 

124 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand J ury Final Report 
-·------·---

Table 1. BART Ridership, FY 2014 to FY 2020 

Fiscal Year Total Annual · %Change Average % Change Average % Change 
Ridership Weekly Weekend 
(millions) Ridership Ridership 

2014 117 -- 410,000 -- 353,900 --

2015 126 7.6 423,100 3.2 359,100 1.5 

2016 129 2.0 433,400 2-4 345,200 -3.9 

2017 124 -3-4 423,400 -2.3 321,700 -6.8 

2018 121 -2.9 414,200 -2.2 303,200 -5.8 

2019 118 -1.8 407,600 -1.6 276,600 -8.8 
(projected) 
2020 116 -2.0 404,900 -0.7 256,500 -7.3 
(forecast) 

Note: Average weekend ridership is the sum of Saturday and Sunday riders. 

BART management knows the major reasons for the recent decline in ridership: 

• Rider satisfaction with BART fell from a high of 84% in 2012 to a low of 56% in 2018, as 
measured by the 2018 Customer Satisfaction Study (2018 Study), presented to the BART 
board on January 24, 2019. Respondents clearly identified homelessness, cleanliness, 
fare evasion, and security and 
perception of safety as the critical 
areas that needed improvement. 
Interestingly, BART's core function 
as a transportation system received 
generally high ratings, with the 
Clipper Card especially appreciated. 

• Ride sharing services like Uber and 
Lyft cut sharply into ridership, 
especially on weekends and off-peak 
hours when traffic congestion is less 
of an issue so automobile travel is 
faster. Ride sharing services also capture many short trips during peak hours. BART still 
remains the quickest way to travel long distances during peak commute hours. 

The Grand Jury was particularly interested in investigating the reasons for the public's 
, dissatisfaction with BART that are within BART's ability to control, and how quickly BART 

responded to those problems, recognizing that some causes are beyond BART's control. 

125 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand J ury Final Report 

INVESTIGATION 

The Grand Jury examined BART public documents, including consultant reports, attended or 
viewed BART Board meetings and agendas, toured the BART Operations Center in Oakland and 
interviewed BART senior executives. The difficulty of finding relevant documents on the BART 
website hampered our investigation. Many board-related documents are saved as images, so the 
public cannot search for terms within written reports such as agendas, attachments, 
presentations, and minutes. 

As part of its investigation, the Grand Jury looked at how BART's board and management 
addressed quality of life issues with budget initiatives from FY 2014 to the present. Generally, 
the budget initiatives proposed in each annual Fiscal Year Preliminary Budget Memo reveal the 
board's and management's priority projects for each year, with a description and roadmap for 
funding in the upcoming budget cycle. Once an initiative is approved, funding is usually renewed 
in subsequent years. Although not all new initiatives are ultimately implemented, these 
proposals are windows into BART's priorities. 

A Customer Satisfaction Study that BART conducts every two years informs many of these 
priorities. Trends in responses are important indicators for management of which areas need 
improvement, and help set priorities to improve customer satisfaction. Proposed initiatives 
should align with customer concerns, especially regarding quality oflife issues. 

The Grand Jury reviewed customer responses to BART's Customer Satisfaction Study for 2012, 
2014, 2016 and 2018 to see which aspects of the BART ridership experience were rated lowest. 
Each survey uses the same questions and methodology to ensure that results from different years 
are comparable. BART identifies targeted areas for improvement based on low customer rating 
of performance and high "derived" importance2 2 to customers. Table 2 presents the lowest
ranked performance issues from surveys between 2012 and 2018, along with a summary of 
riders' most frequent written comments on quality of life issues. 

Some issues oflesser concern to customers in the earlier years, as measured by low ratings, grew 
in importance. For example, on a scale where 1 is poor performance by BART and 7 is excellent, 
the public's rating of fare evasion enforcement steadily declined from 4.65 in 2012 to 4-47 (2014), 
4 .19 (2016), and 3.36 (2018). 

Following are discussions of the major quality of life issues reported in the customer satisfaction 
studies, along with actions BART took in response to these problems in recent years. 

22 The importance measure is statistically derived from a correlation of an issue with overall satisfaction with 
BART's performance. 

126 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report 

Table 2. BART Customer Satisfaction Study - Selected Responses, 2012-2018 

Overall Areas needing improvement (by Written comments 
Year satisfaction importance) (by frequency) 

2012 84% • Cleanliness of facilities (train • Police/ security 
seats/ floor/ interior, stations, • Carpets/ musty/ doors 
restrooms, elevators) • Seats on 

• Availability of space (luggage, trains/ crowding 
bikes, etc.) • Parking 

• Police presence 
(train/ station/ parking lot) 

20.14 74% • Cleanliness of facilities • Seats on 
• Availability of seats/ space trains/ crowding 

• Police presence • Police/ security 

• Parking •Parking . 

• Fare evasion enforcement • Homeless/ panhandling 

2016 69% • Police presence, personal security • Seats on 
• Cleanliness of facilities trains/ crowding 

• Availability of seats/ space • Police/ security 

• Fare evasion enforcement • Homeless/ panhandling 

• Parking • Parking 

2018 56% • ·Addressing homelessness Comments not yet 

• Cleanliness of facilities available (4/ 12/ 2019) 

• Police presence and personal 
security 

• Availability of seats/ standing 
room/ space 

• Fare evasion enforcement 
• Parking 

Homelessness 

The growing problem of homelessness is not unique to the Bay Area. Poverty, untreated mental 
health conditions and su,bstance abuse are complex public issues, and have contributed to a 
nationwide increase in homelessness. Some people ride BART to stay warm and safe and to sleep 
on trains. However, passengers often do not feel safe sitting next to someone who is unkempt, 
using drugs or alcohol, or behaving erratically. Of the three homicides on the BART system in 
2018, all three perpetrators were homeless, as was one of the victims. 

Members of the BART Police Department are often called on to work with homeless and 
impaired people in the transit system. As with police departments elsewhere, this becan;ie 
increasingly difficult as the number of homeless with mental health and medical problems 
increased. BART's efforts have included: 

127 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jmy Final Report 

• In 2014, BART Police hired a full-time Crisis Intervention Training Coordinator to 
coordinate homeless programs and partnerships with social service agencies throughout 
BART's service area, including Alameda County. 

• In 2017 BART first partnered with the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency 
and Department of Homelessness and Supportive Services in creating a Homeless 
Outreach Team dedicated to the Powell and Civic Center BART stations. The team 
expanded to Montgomery and Embarcadero stations in 2018, and will add the 16th St. 
and 24th St. stations in 2019: Staff contact homeless people on BART property to offer 
housing, social, and health services that may benefit them. A similar outreach team began 
working overnight at Contra Costa County BART stations in January 2019 in partnership 
with the county's Coordinated Outreach, Referral, & Engagement program. BART is 
proposing to establish homeless outreach teams for Alameda and San Mateo Counties in 
FY2020. 

The Grand Jury is well aware that BART is not set up to provide social services, although BART 
perhaps could have introduced these measures sooner to help relieve the effect of this crisis -on 
its patrons and on the homeless themselves. The outreach teams are a compassionate step in the 
right direction, but BART could and should advocate even more strongly for a regional solution. 

Cleanliness of Trains and Stations 

Riders are increasingly dissatisfied with the cleanliness of train interiors, stations, elevators, and 
restrooms. The 2018 Study included quotes from some riders who linked the dirty environment 
to the increase in homeless riders. However, since at least 2012, cleanliness has been a top 
concern for riders who responded to the survey. Eating and drinking on trains, while prohibited, 
nonetheless occur and contribute to the problems. As the system ages, cleanliness becomes more 
of a problem. 

BART budget initiatives during the years we reviewed included measures to hire more cleaners 
and equipment as ridership grew. Over the last couple of years, as ridership declined and 
problems associated with the homeless increased, BART implemented several programs 
targeting cleaning and sanitation: 

• Since FY 2017 BART has contributed to San Francisco Public Works' Pit Stop program, 
which provides attended restrooms for the homeless in San Francisco, including at the 
16th St./Mission, Powell St., Civic Center and Embarcadero Stations. 

• In April 2018 BART began funding elevator attendants at the Powell Street and Civic 
Center stations as part of a pilot program with the San Francisco Municipal 
Transportation Agency (Muni). As a result, the elevators are cleaner and passengers who 
ride them feel safer, according to a survey of riders at the Civic Center. 

• In June 2018 BART created several rapid response cleaning teams to respond to 
biohazard and other complaints. Now, when customers report problems, a team is 

128 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand J ury Final Report 

dispatched to clean up the area as soon as possible, rather than leaving the problem for 
clean up at the end of the line, or possibly not until the end of the day. 

• BART introduced a new staffing structure and an improved training program for car and 
station cleaners. 

A bright spot for riders this year was the introduction into service of the first of 775 clean new 
cars to replace the existing ones, many of which have been in use since BART's 1972 opening. As 

many as 1,200 cars in total may be purchased, depending on demand and funding. 

Fare Evasion 

Recent news reports about fare evasion at BART showed or described people pushing through 
emergency gates, jumping over fare gates and fences, or riding street level elevators directly into 
the station - all without paying their fares. Violators include people in a hurry to get to work, 
students who want to save money, and others who for personal or financial reasons decide not 
to pay their fare. 

Some residents are of the opinion that fare evasion is not a priority, but customer survey data 
would say otherwise. Commuters and others who pay for their rides are frustrated by the 
unfairness of this behavior. Riders gave "enforcement against fare evasion" the largest service 
rating decline in the 2018 Study, compared to the earlier surveys. Furthermore, fare evasion 
contributes to a perception oflawlessness, and fear for personal safety. There are major financial 
consequences of lax enforcement as well; BART estimates that it loses $25 million each year 
from fare evaders, representing 5% of passenger fare revenue23. 

The Grand Jury learned from BART senior management that an estimated 15% of riders do not 
pay their fares, which means that approximately 17. 7 million passengers annually are not paying, 
out of the 118 million total passengers. The comparable rate of fare evaders on similar transit 
systems is much lower (about 8%) according to the same source. 

In response to this problem, BART adopted a two-pronged approach: cite fare evaders, and 
modify ("harden") infrastructure to make fare evasion more difficult. Measures that BART 
recently initiated include: 

• The Board adopted a proof of payment requirement, effective January 1, 2018. Not paying 
the proper BART fare now subjects the violator to a civil citation fine of $75 for adults and 
$55 for minors. Community service options are available instead of cash payments for 
those who cannot afford the fine or who prefer that option. An adult with a third violation 
in a 12-month period is issued a criminal citation, with a fine up to $250 arid/ or 
community service. BART may pursue collection of unpaid fines from an individual's 
California personal income tax refund, through the CA Franchise Tax Board's Interagency 
Intercept Collection Program. However, that option does not yet appear to have been 
implemented. 

23 Since fares are based on distance, the percentage loss of revenue is not necessarily equal to the percentage of riders not 
paying fares. 

129 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report 

• Although BART police do issue fare evasion citations when they find a violator, BART 
hired six dedicated fare inspectors in 2018, and in September 2018 approved hiring ten 
more to conduct targeted night and weekend inspections. Four more inspectors are 
proposed for FY 2020. The cost of the fare inspectors is close to $125,000 each, so the 
total complement of inspectors will cost approximately $2.5 million annually. 

• After two months of issuing warnings to persons who could not provide proof of fare 
payment, the fare inspectors began issuing citations to violators in March 2018. Results 
for the first six months were discouraging: 

• 3,813 citations were issued (90% to adults) 
• 89% of recipients ignored their citation 
• 9% of recipients paid the fine 
• 2% of recipients performed community service 
• Only $29,000 was collected in fines. 

These dismal results meai:i that only 0.04% of violators were caught during that first six 
months, according to BART's statistics; for every violator cited, 2,300 got away with not 

Only 0.04% of violators were 
caug_ht durmg the.first six 

months .. .for every violator 
cited, 2,300 got away with 

not paying. 

paying 24 • BART recognizes that some passengers 
can't afford the full fare, so currently offers Clipper 
Cards with a 50% discount on fares for youths age 5 
to 18 and a 62.5% discount for seniors 65 and over 
and persons who are disabled. The board is also 
looking into participating in a pilot program to 

provide a 20% discount for low income persons. 

• As a more permanent solution to fare evasion, BART undertook station hardening 
projects in FY 2018 and FY 2019 to make fare evasion more difficult, including raising 
railing heights in stations, installing alarms on swing gates and emergency doors, moving 
elevators into paid areas, upgrading the security camera network, and retrofitting fare 
gates by increasing air pressure to make them more difficult to force open. These and 
similar station hardening measures will continue in 2020 and beyond. BART is currently 
studying the costs and feasibility of replacing fare gates to prevent people from pushing 
through or jumping over them. In FY 2018, $2 million was budgeted for these efforts, 
with an additional $1.2 million in FY 2019. 

While it is encouraging that BART is serious about responding to fare evasion, one step of 
enforcement - collecting fines from violators - is seriously lagging, as noted above. If violators 
face no real consequences for ignoring citations, then the estimated $2.5 million annual 
investment in fare inspectors may not be a good use of the public's money, unless BART can 
demonstrate that the presence of inspectors deters fare evasion and other crimes. It appears that 

24 For calendar year 2018, BART reported that 6,799 civil citations and 2,668 criminal citations (given to adult repeat offenders) 
were issued for fare evasion after 10 months, which is a slight improvement: 0.06% of violators were cited. 

130 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report 

investment in station hardening and improved fare gates is a better permanent solution to the 
problem, perhaps in conjunction with fare inspectors. 

Security and Perception of Safety 

While perception of security and actual passenger safety are different, riders closely link the two. 
Respondents to the 2018 Study cite "personal security in BART system" as the second largest 
service rating decline from the prior survey, just after fare evasion. Lack of visible police presence 
on trains and in stations has long been a concern of riders, according to the surveys. News reports 
of the three homicides in July 2018 and video in October 2018 of a man swinging two chainsaws 
while riding BART reinforced worries among Bay Area residents about their safety on BART. 

BART police officers are the first responders to crime on BART property and trains. In 2018 

BART police. staffing was authorized for 228 sworn officer 
positions, of which 150 were patrol officers. The BART 
Police Department is still very much aware of its damaged 
relationship with residents throughout the Bay Area, 
particularly African-Americans, in the wake of the death 
of Oscar Grant, an unarmed man who was shot and killed 

Violent crimes increased by 115% 
from 2014 to 2018, with robberies 

and aggravated assaults accounting 
for nearly all of those crimes. 

by a BART police officer on January 1, 2009, at the Fruitvale BART station. 

Table 3 describes crime on BART from 2014 to 2018, derived from FBI Uniform Crime Reporting 
data. Violent crimes increased by 115% over that period, with robberies and aggravated assaults 
accounting for nearly all of those crimes. According to the BART website, "Much of the violent 
crime increase has been driven by snatch-and-run cellphone thefts that are considered robberies 
because they involve the use of force or fear." 

Non-violent property crime dropped slightly over the same period, with larcenies now 
accounting for 87% of this category. Larcenies include thefts without the use of force, of phones, 
computers, wallets, bicycles, etc. from distracted patrons on trains and in the stations. 

In 2014, BART introduced its phone app ''BART Watch" for 
riders to report and document crime as it happens so police are 

able to reach the scene faster. 

131 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report 

Table 3 - BART 5-Year Crime Data, Calendar Years 2014 to 2018 

CRIMES 2014 2015 2016 ·2017 2018 Change 
2014-18 

Homicide 0 1 1 0 3 (a) 

Rape 2 3 4 8 3 (a) 

Robbery 153 161 232 290 349 +128% 
Aggravated assault 71 73 93 121 130 +83% 

Subtotal-
Violent 
Crimes 226 238 330 419 485 +115% 

Burglary 7 4 12 15 18 (a) 
Larceny 2,597 2,325 2,217 2,593 2,590 +0% 
Auto theft 522 480 480 420 354 -32% 
Arson 0 0 1 4 4 (a) 

Subtotal-
Property 
Crimes 3,126 2,809 2,710 3,032 2,966 -5% 

(a) Values are too small to compare over different years. 

To address crime, BART has taken the following steps in recent years: 

• In 2014, BART introduced its phone app "BART Watch" for riders to report and document 
crime as it happens so police are able to reach the scene faster. 

• BART implemented a Safety and Security Action Plan in August 2018 partly in response 
to the three homicides. While it is not clear that BART could have prevented any of the 
deaths, BART police worked extensive mandatory overtime in the three weeks after the 
homicides to reassure riders with a greater police presence. The plan calls for improved 
surveillance cameras, police callboxes on station platforms, public safety awareness, and 
related measures, including fare evasion prevention. 

• To determine whether there are enough police to patrol the system, BART commissioned 
a five-year strategic patrol staffing plan in 2017. The consultant2s recommended adding 
94 new patrol officers over the next s years - 18 or 19 each year - to reach the optimal 
patrol coverage for the BART system. BART management is requesting that the board 
authorize an additional 19 police officer positions in the FY 2020 budget to meet this 
recommendation. 

• BART is taking steps to attract more police officer candidates, offering a hiring bonus 
(now $15,000) for new officers and lateral transfers from other law enforcement agencies. 
The latest police union contract includes a 16% pay raise over the next four years, and a 
provision that allows BART to hire outside contractors to help with background checks 

2s Professor Eric Fritsch, Professor and former Chair of the Department of Criminal Justice at the University of North Texas 
presented the report to the BART Board on September 27, 2018. 

132 



2018-2 019 Alameda County Grand J ury Final Report 

for officer candidates, which should shorten the time to hire new officers after retirements 
and departures. 

The Grand Jury believes that BART needs to accelerate its hiring of patrol officers to reduce 
crime, make riders feel safer, and restore their confidence in BART. 

Budget Initiatives in Response to Rider Concerns 

Generally, BART has paid attention to rider concerns expressed in the customer satisfaction 
studies. In the earl.ier years of the period we examined (FY 2014 to FY 202 0), most quality oflife 
budget initiatives supported more funding to clean BART stations and cars. This agreed with the 
survey responses from riders. Policing and security were important issues as well, both in survey 
responses and comments, but only recently did BART begin to fund additional officers and 
security infrastructure. 

Although there were no questions on the customer satisfaction study about homeless issues until 
2018, many patrons wrote in comments on the 2014 and 2016 surveys. BART prioritized some 
staffing to coordinate with other agencies on homeless issues. However, it wasn't until FY 2017 

that funding to conduct homeless outreach was first requested ($50,000). The following year, 
BART funded additional homeless outreach and staffing to report and control illicit activities at 
downtown SF stations ($1.2 million). 

Riders flagged fare evasion enforcement as an issue starting in 2014, but it wasn't until FY 2018 

that specific initiatives to combat fare evasion (enforcement teams, $0.8 million; station 
"hardening" /barriers, $1.9 million) were first introduced. Previously, only BART police were 
responsible for issuing citations, in addition to their other duties. BART continues to identify 
fare evasion as a priority initiative, in part because of the revenue lost from people who do not 
pay. 

As noted above, policing and security continue to be priority issues of concern to riders. Without 
additional officers, BART Police were limited in what they could do, especially as the violent 
crime rate grew in recent years. Their 2018 strategic patrol staffing plan laid out a blueprint for 
additional officers and assignments to provide effective coverage for the transit system, and 
BART is proposing to hire 19 officers next year pursuant to the recommendations. 

For FY 2019 BART chose "Quality of Life on BART" as the main strategic focus of its budget, 
with a suite of projects to combat fare evasion (new inspectors, $0.2 million; station hardening 
and fare gates $2.2 million), improve security ($11 million) , and assist homeless-related projects 
(attended elevators and restrooms in downtown SF, outreach teams, and increased security to 
reduce encampments on BART property, $1.6 million). While removing homeless encampments 
is not likely to directly affect ridership unless the camps are around station entrances, camps 
located near tracks and electrical infrastructure can be dangerous for occupants. BART's 
FY 2020 Preliminary Budget Memo continues to prioritize selected quality of life issues, 

133 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report 

proposing funds for more station hardening projects, fare inspectors, additional patrol officers, 
and security infrastructure. 

The Grand Jury is concerned that BART, with its responsibilities as a transportation provider 
and its emphasis on specific quality oflife issues, may not be looking forward to emerging quality 
of life issues on the horizon, or to longstanding irritations that could affect ridership. For 
example, parking and seat availability, even with declines in ridership, are consistent concerns 
of riders, based on ratings and comments. However, news reports state that BART is considering 
removing parking at certain stations to allow for transit-oriented development. Similarly, BART 
removed seats on cars in 2017 to allow more room for standing passengers and for bicycles. The 
new BART trains do not increase the number of seats per car. The Grand Jury recommends that 
BART add a section on emerging concerns to the customer satisfaction study report, drawing on 
passenger comments to document their concerns. 

Ridership on BART may continue to decline for reasons outside BART's control. However, the 
agency should aggressively design and fund strategies to make sure that riders don't leave 
because of their negative experiences on BART that are indeed within BART's control. 

CONCLUSION 

BART is at the center of the Bay Area's transportation upheaval. A growing and far-flung urban 
population in need of transport to work, home, shopping and socializing has many modes from 
which to choose. Rising dissatisfaction with crime on BART, fare evasion, and the perception of 
dirty train cars and stations threatens to marginalize the agency amid the other choices available 
to riders. The Grand Jury notes that BART's Board of Directors, senior management and police 
have undertaken measures to address these issues, but the board has been slow to react to many 
problems. To win riders back, the board must convince the public that BART is once again clean 
and safe to ride and that a rigorous effoi:t to stop crime, including fare evasion, is in progress. 
Furthermore, BART must do this while facing serious competition from industry disrupters like 
Uber and Lyft. 

The seriousness of the issues facing BART was recently enhanced with the announced 
retirements of two key leaders. Extra diligence and resolve will be necessary to complete plans 
underway in an increasingly complex and competitive environment. 

134 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand Jury Final Report 

FINDINGS 

Finding 19-30: 
BART's police department staffing has been insufficient to meet crime levels, as reported by an 
outside expert, who recommended substantially more patrol officers and revamped patrol 
assignments. 

Finding 19-31: 
Although overall crime on BART is up only slightly from 2014 to 2018, the incidence of violent 
crime more than doubled during that time. All crime is serious, but the potential for violent 
crime is particularly frightening to riders. The high volume of lesser offenses, especially thefts of 
items like phones, computers, wallets, etc., dramatically affects riders' perceptions of safety and 
well-being on the BART system. 

Finding 19-32: 
Public concern about fare evasion has been one of the top issues on every customer satisfaction 
study since 2014. The lack of enforcement erodes confidence in BART and costs upwards of 
$25 million, or 5% of passenger revenue. 

Finding 19-33: 
Cleanliness of BART trains and stations was the concern most cited in the Customer Satisfaction 
Study from 2012 through 2018. BART introduced several initiatives to target cleaning resources 
where most needed and to prevent messes in the first place (e.g., elevator attendants, Pit Stop 
program). However, continuing dissatisfaction with cleanliness was repeatedly cited in the most 
recent survey, in large part due to an increase in the homeless population using BART facilities. 

Finding 19-34: 
Board-related documents are difficult to find on the BART website because some, especially 
those related to the board, are not searchable. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation 19-30: 
BART must increase police patrol officer staffing over the next five years to make the entire 
BART system safer, in accordance with the expert study it commissioned and received in 2018. 

Recommendation 19-31: 
BART must better educate the public on crime prevention to reduce opportunities for robberies 
and thefts on the transit system. 

135 



2018-2 019 Alameda County Grand Jmy Final Report 

Recommendation 19-32: 
BART should continue the enforcement crackdown on fare evaders and improve its overall 
process for handling the collection of fare evasion fines. 

Recommendation 19-33: 
BART must continue and expand its initiatives to keep trains and stations clean and to respond 
more quickly to bio-hazard complaints. 

Recommendation 19-34: 
BART should continue to partner with social service agencies that serve the homeless, while 
strongly advocating for a comprehensive regional, rather than county by county, program to aid 
the homeless, especially those with mental health conditions. 

Recommendation 19-35: 
BART must establish a method to track and report on emerging concerns within the Customer 
Satisfaction Study report, initially drawing on passenger comments that document new and 
persistent concerns of riders. 

Recommendation 19-36: 
BART must increase the transparency of BART policies, decisions, and operations by making all 
Board-related documents and staff reports searchable, so information may be more easily found 
by the public using the BART website's search feature. 

RESPONSES REQUIRED 

BART Board of Directors Findings 19-30 through 19-34 
Recommendations 19-30 through 19-36 

136 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand J ury Final Report 

REQUEST FOR RESPONSES 

Pursuant to California Penal Code sections 933 and 933.05, the Grand Jury requests each entity 
or individual named below to respond to the enumerated Findings and Recommendations 
within specific statutory guidelines: 

Responses to Findings shall be either: 
•Agree 
• Disagree Wholly, with an explanation 
• Disagree Partially, with an explanation 

Responses to Recommendations shall be one the following: 
• Has been implemented, with a brief summary of the implementation actions 
• Will be implemented, with an implementation schedule 
• Requires further analysis, with an explanation and the scope and parameters of an 
analysis or study, and a completion date that is not more than 6 months after the 
issuance of this report 
• Will not be implemented because it is not warranted or is not reasonable, with an 
explanation 

137 



2018-2019 Alameda County Grand JUI)' Final Report 

[This page intentionally left blank] 

138 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: , 4 /t. .. ~ Zo I~ 

~-?~ 
DATE: 8/9/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Angi e West 

Dept: Office of th e CIO 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

[ l 

Project Portfolio Management Initiative 

PURPOSE: 

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Agreement No. 6M4625 to 
KPMG, LLP for implementation of a Project Portfolio Management (PPM) system. The 
Agreement term is for one (1) year, with two (2) one-year Maintenance Options, for a total 
not-to-exceed amount of $5 ,830,601. 

DISCUSSION: 

With the passage of Measure RR, implementation of the Transbay Corridor Core Capacity 
Program, and overall focus on infrastructure, the number of capital projects and programs 
that BART must plan for, track, and delivery will continue to grow. The PPM system will 
align and improve Districtwide capital project planning, management, and monitoring of both 
spending and project/program deliver across multiple disciplines by establishing a common 
singular platform that will improve collaboration among BART employees, contractors, 
vendors, and other third-party stakeholders. 

The PPM system will improve the process for developing BART's Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) and provide reporting to project/program managers, and senior and executive 
management within BART as well as its funding partners. The system will be flexible and 
scalable to support new technologies, will integrate with existing BART systems, and will be 
designed to adapt to rapidly changing processes and standards. 

On February 12, 2019, BART issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 6M4625 to more 
than 400 firms, which included small business entities and large system integrators. A Pre
Proposal Meeting was held on February 26, 2019, with ten ( 10) firms in attendance. 



AW ARD AGREEMENT NO. 6M4625 TO KPMG, LLP 

On April 9, 2019 proposals were received from five (5) firms as follows: 

1. Accenture, LLP - San Francisco, California 

2. D.R. McNatty and Associates Inc. - Mission Viejo, California 

3. e-Builder Inc, A Trimble Co. - Plantation, Florida 

4. KPMG LLP - San Francisco, California 

5. Stellar Services Inc - San Francisco, California 

The proposals were reviewed by the BART Selection Committee, chaired by Contract 
Administration, which consisted of representatives from a wide range of departments and 
disciplines. All five proposals were determined to be responsive and to have met the RFP 
minimum technical requirements. 

In accordance with the provisions of the RFP, the selection of firms was based on the best 
value methodology. Under this approach, the District retains the right to award to other than 
the lowest cost proposal, based on a determination that certain technical advantages available 
from a proposal will equate to added value for the District. The Selection Committee scored 
the written statement of qualifications and key personnel qualifications. The score for the 
written statement of qualifications was based on each firm's technical approach, the firm's 
experience and references, proposed services and implementation approach, project plan 
and schedule, and proposed key personnel and project team organization. 

The Selection Committee then reviewed the price proposals and determined that all five (5) 
proposals were within the competitive range. All five proposing teams were requested to 
provide a technical demonstration of their proposed solutions. The technical solution 
demonstrations were conducted from May 29, 2019 through May 31, 2019. 

After the technical demonstrations, the Selection Committee combined the 
qualifications/technical scores and technical solution demonstration scores and based on 
best value analysis determined that KPMG with its EcoSys solution provided the best value 
to the District. 

KPMG is a private limited liability partnership firm with over $9.5 billion in revenue as of 
September, 2018. By all key market metrics, KPMG is a responsible firm that demonstrates 
financial and management stability required to provide services to BART. KPMG has 
subcontracted with Hexagon, the provider of EcoSys software. Hexagon is a world-leading 
provider in asset life cycle solutions for design, construction, and operations and has over 
five (5) decades of project delivery experience. The EcoSys software has been implemented 
in over 300 large global organizations in both the public and private sectors. EcoSys is a 



A WARD AGREEMENT NO. 6M4625 TO KPMG, LLP 

fully integrated, cloud-based platform that integrates all phases of project and portfolio life 
cycle. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 5% Small Business Prime Preference for this Agreement for Small Businesses certified 
by the California Department of General Services (DGS). D.R. McNatty is a certified Small 
Business, making it eligible for the 5% Small Business Prime Preference for this Agreement 
for evaluation purposes. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for this Agreement are 5.5% for Minority-owned Business Enterprises (MBEs) 
and 2.8% for Women-owned Business Enterprises (WBEs). KPMG committed 0% MBE 
and 0% WBE participation. KPMG did not meet either the MBE or WBE Availability 
Percentages; therefore, KPMG was requested to provide the Office of Civil Rights with 
supporting documentation to determine if it had discriminated based on race, national origin, 
color, gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information submitted by KPMG, the 
Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of discrimination. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Funding in the amount of $5,830,601 for award of Agreement No. 6M4625 is included in the 
total project cost of the Project Portfolio Management system. 

The contract will include a base component ( capital) and two (2) one-year maintenance 
options ( operating). The breakdown of costs for the base contract year and the two (2) 
maintenance options is: 

Year 1 Year2 Year3 TOTAL 
Base Year Maintenance Maintenance 

Option (1) Option (2) 
Agreement $4,003, 161 $913,720 $913,720 $5,830,601 

Ii 
6M4625 

The Office of the Controller I Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet 
this obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District 
Reserves. 

Capital Fiscal Impact 

Funding in the amount of $4,003,161 for the Project Portfolio Management (PPM) initiative 
is included in the total Project budget for FMS #65HFOOO - Project Portfolio Management 
System. 

.. 



A WARD AGREEMENT NO. 6M4625 TO KPMG, LLP 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 

Fund No. Fund Description Source Amount 

8533 FY 2019 Operating to Capital Allocation BART $3,000,000 

8534 FY 2020 Operating to Capital Allocation BART $1,172,560 

TOTAL $4,172,560 
II 

As of 08/09/2019, $4,172,560 is the total budget for this project inclusive of $169,399 for 
BART labor. BART has expended $4,205 and committed and reserved $0 to date. This 
action will commit $4,003,161, leaving an available fund balance of $165,194 in the fund 
sources for this project. 

Operating Fiscal Impact: 

Funding in the amount of$913 ,720 will be included in account 681355-Software & Tech 
Support of the proposed budget of the Assistant General Manager of Performance & 
Budget (Cost Center 1101466) in Year 2 (for Maintenance Option 1) and Year 3 (for 
Maintenance Option 2), subject to Board approval. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Cancel the RFP 
2. Do not enter into an Agreement with KPMG, LLP 

These alternatives would delay the implementation of the PPM system, which would 
negatively impact the District's ability to effectively plan for and monitor capital projects, 
and potentially adversely impact the District's readiness review concerning its eligibility for 
the Federal Transit Administration's Capital Investment Grant. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adoption of the following motion. 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to award Agreement No. 6M4625 to KPMG, LLP in the 
amount not-to-exceed $5,830,601 for implementation of a Project Portfolio Management 
system, subject to compliance with the contract's insurance provisions and pursuant to 
notification by the General Manager. The General Manager is further authorized to exercise 
two (2) one-year Maintenance Options included in the price. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MA~ G-ER
0 

APPROVAL: 

14-A ~-
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

DATE: 8/9/201 9 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes 

Originator/Prepared by: Diane Iwata BARC 

..... ~:;t:;'"';" 
Signature/Date: r \\ I~ 

Actuarial Report on Changes to Pension under Consideration by the District 

PURPOSE: 

To provide a report on the actuarial impacts on potential changes to retirement benefits 
for employees of the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees Local 
3993 ("AFSCME"), the Amalgamated Transit Union Local 1555 ("ATU"), and the Service 
Employees International Union Local 1021 ("SEIU"). The General Manager has determined 
that Non-Represented employees (including the Board-appointees) should be subject to the 
same pension changes as AFSCME, A TU and SEIU members. Accordingly, this report will 
also include Non-Represented employees. 

California Government Code 7507 requires a local legislative body, before authorizing 
changes in retirement benefits or other postemployment benefits (OPEB), to "secure the 
services of an actuary to provide a statement of the actuarial impact upon future annual 
costs, including normal cost and any additional accrued liability," and also requires that the 
future cost of changes in retirement benefits or OPEB, as determined by the actuary, "be 
made public at a public meeting at least two weeks prior to the adoption of any changes." 

If the future costs of the changes exceed a specified amount, Section 7507 also requires that 
an actuary be present at the public meeting at which the change in benefits is adopted. Since 
each of the potential changes described below will result in cost savings to the District, an 
actuary will not be required to attend the public meeting at which the changes are adopted. 

This is an informational item. No Board action is required. As required by Section 7507, 
staff will return to the Board in no less than two weeks to present for a ratification vote the 
side letters implementing the changed pension contributions. 



Actuarial Report on Changes to Pension under Consideration by the District (cont.) 

DISCUSSION: 

The District is proposing to make the following changes to pension contributions: 

For Classic employees, the employee's pension contribution will be retroactively increased 
from the current level of 4% to 6% effective on July 1, 2019, and then increase to 7% on 
January 1, 2020. The employees will then pay a cost share ( employer's portion) of the 
District's pension contribution in the amount of 1 % beginning on July 1, 2020, for a total 
combined pension contribution (employee's and employer's share) of 8% beginning on July 
1, 2020. 

For Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) employees, employees will continue 
to contribute half of the normal cost of their pension benefits, as required by law. On July 1, 
2020, if the required pension contribution for PEPRA employees is less than 8%, PEP RA 
employees will pay a cost share of the Employer' s pension contribution in an amount equal 
to the difference between their required employee contribution and 8%, for a total combined 
pension contribution (employee's and employer's share) of 8% on July 1, 2020. 

COST SAVINGS AND ACTUARIAL IMPACT: 

1. The change to the pension contribution by represented employees is estimated to save the 
District $3,691,000 in the first year of the CBA, and a total of$10,863,000 over the 
remaining term of the CBA. 

2. The change to the pension contribution by Non-Represented employees including Board
appointed employees is estimated to save the District $1 ,038,000 in the first year, and a total 
of$3 ,153,000 over the two-year period. 

This proposed change was reviewed by the District' s actuarial firm, Bartel Associates, LLC. 
Bartel Associates has concluded that there is no negative impact to normal cost, actuarial 
accrued liability, and future cost for this proposed change. 



August 12, 2019 

Diane M. Iwata, SPHR, SHRM-SCP 
Human Resources Division Manager 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
300 Lakeside Drive, 20th Floor 
Oakland, CA 94612 

Re: CalPERS Pension Plan 
Non-Police Miscellaneous Employees 

Dear Ms. Iwata: 

Section 7507 of the California Government Code requires agencies obtain a statement of actuarial 
opinion regarding the cost impact of retirement plan benefit changes. The San Francisco Bay Area 
Rapid Transit District (BART) has requested that Bartel Associates, LLC provide an actuarial opinion 
regarding the actuarial impact of changes related to the CalPERS pension benefits for the BART non
police Miscellaneous employees. 

Summary of Proposed Benefit Changes 

The District currently provides retirement benefits to eligible non-police Miscellaneous employees, 
with the District paying 3% of pensionable pay towards the Cal PERS-required member contributions 
on behalf of Classic members ("EPMC"). These members do not contribute any of their pensionable 
pay towards the District's required CalPERS contribution ("cost sharing"). 

Under the proposed change for non-police Miscellaneous employees: 
• Classic employees would increase the portion of the required member contributions they pay 

from 4% to 6% of pensionable pay effective retroactively to July I, 2019. The member 
contribution paid by these members would increase to 7% of pensionable pay effective the 
first full pay period after January I, 2020. 

• Effective the first full pay period after July 1, 2020, Classic employees would increase their 
required member contributions to 8% of pensionable pay. The additional 1 % of pensionable 
pay exceeds the CalPERS-required member contribution and would be considered employee 
payments towards the employer contributions or "employee cost sharing". 

• PEP RA employees would increase their required member contributions to 7% of pensionable 
pay retroactively to July I, 2019. This is Yi of their normal cost as currently required by 
CalPERS effective July I, 2019 and is not a plan change. 

• Effective the first full pay period after July I, 2020, PEPRA employees would increase their 
required member contributions to 8% of pensionable pay. The additional 1 % of pensionable 
pay would be considered employee payments towards the employer contributions (or 
"employee cost sharing") until such time as the CalPERS-required member contributions for 
PEPRA employees equal or exceed 8% of pensionable pay. PEPRA employees will pay the 
CalPERS required amounts even if they exceed 8% of pensionable pay. 

4 11 Borel Avenue, SU1te IOI • San Mateo, California 94402 

main: 650/ 37"' 1600 • fax: 650/ 34S 8057 
• web: www.bartd-associates.com 



Diane M. Iwata 
August 12, 2019 
Page 2 

Cost of Change 

We estimated the cost impact of this change using the following assumptions: 
• Census data was provided by the District as of December 3 1, 2018. Census data included 

pensionable and total pay. 
• Pay increases were assumed to follow CalPERS 2017 actuarial valuation assumptions, 

including 2. 75% total annual payroll growth 
• Current employees were assumed to terminate and retire in accordance with CalPERS 2017 

valuation assumptions. New employees were added to provide 2. 75% total payroll growth. 
The percentage of new hires assumed to be PEPRA increased from 70% in 19/20 to I 00% 
after 3 years. Future hires were assumed to have the same demographics as current 
employees. 

• Present values were calculated using a 7% discount rate. 
• We assumed the CalPERS-required PEPRA normal cost rate would not increase to be above 

7% of pensionable pay. 

Because the proposed changes have no impact on Ca!PERS pension benefits, there is no change in the 
Normal Cost and Actuarial Accrued Liability. However, the District's total payments to CalPERS, 
including employer-paid member contributions and net of employee cost sharing, will change. 
Therefore, the impact of the proposed changes has been measured based on expected changes in 
future District total payments to CalPERS. 

The estimated cost of the change in current dollars (not a present value) over 5 years is as follows. 

lncrease/(Decrease) in District Costs For 5 Years 
(Amounts in SOOO's) 

Classic PEPRA 
Employees Employees Total 

• Total increase/(decrease) in BART costs 
due to change in employer-paid member 
contributions (EPMC) or employee cost ($35,487) ($6,015) ($41 ,502) 
sharing or over 5 years ( current dollars; 
not a present value) 

• Above increase/(decrease) in BART 
costs over 5 years as a percentage of (1.73%) (0.29%) (2.02%) 
total (not pensionable) pay 

Over time the number of Classic employees will decline and the number of PEPRA employees will 
grow. To measure the long-term impact, we estimated the cost of these changes over 30 years. The 
cost impact is shown below, as the present value of the cost or savings for each year. 

411 Borel Avenue, Suae 101 • San ;\lateo, California 94402 

main: 650 3"'""' 1600 • fax: 650 345 8115"' • web: www.bartel-associates.com 



Diane M. Iwata 
August 12, 2019 
Page 3 

lncrease/(Decrease) in Present Value of District Costs Over 30 Years 
(Amounts in $000's) 

Classic PEPRA 
Emplovees Employees 

• Total increase/(decrease) in BART costs 
due to change in employer-paid member 
contributions (EPMC) or Employee Cost ($58,724) ($37,724) 
Sharing or over 30 years ( current dollars; 
not a present value) 

• Above increase/(decrease) in BART costs 
over 30 years as a percentage of total (not (0.88%) (0.57%) 
pensionable) pay 

Conclusion 

Total 

($96,448) 

(1.45%) 

Our calculations show the District's future annual costs would decrease over the next 5 years due to 
the change in Employer-Paid Member Contributions for non-police Miscellaneous Classic employees 
and the change in employee cost sharing for Classic and PEPRA non-police Miscellaneous 
employees. When evaluated as a present value over the next 30 years, the net impact of the proposed 
change is a decrease in the present value of the District's future annual costs. 

Note that we have not evaluated any other portion of the proposed agreement not outlined above. 
Bartel Associates is not a law firm and we are not qualified to render a legal opinion. 

Information provided in this report is for the District's management purposes. Future results may 
differ significantly if the Plan or District's experience differs from our assumptions or if there are 
changes in plan design or actuarial assumptions. The project scope did not include an analysis of this 
potential variation. Our calculations are based on benefit provisions, participant data, and actuarial 
assumptions, and other information provided by the District and CalPERS as summarized in this 
report. This study was conducted using generally accepted actuarial principles and practices. I am a 
member of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the Academy Qualification Standards to 
issue the actuarial opinion in this report. 

Please contact Mary Beth Redding (mbredding@bartel-associates.com) or Bianca Lin (blin@bartel
associates.com) with any questions about this information. 

Sincerely, 

I IJ r: , ,, 

/
11; I ., l L f..~~,(,,'-'. \ I,,,., L,• v 

.1 I 

Mary Elizabeth Redding, FSA, MAAA, EA, FCA 
Vice President 

c: Doug Pryor, Bianca Lin, Bartel Associates, LLC 
O:\Clt<nts\BART\rroJ«t:i'CalPERS.EPMC B&rpirung Study'8A BART 2019,.08-12 Lcttct - Impact ofCalPERS EPMC Change fo, All ~11e docll 

411 Borel A\'enue, Su te IOI • San J\latco, California 94402 

main: 650/377 1600 • Jax : 650/ 34'.) 8057 •web: \\'\\'\\' bartel associates.corn 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MA, 'IAGE:;;ROV AL: j + A1v'j .?O \. ' 

A.'1· t'~ 
DATE: 7/8/2019 

Originator/ Prepared by: Wahid Amiri 

Dept: Planning Development & 

Cons truction 

GE 'ERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Yes 

BOARD L'IITIATED ITE.\1 : No 

[ l 

Change Orders and Associated Delay Compensation to Contract No. OSHA-100, El 
Cerrito Del Norte Station Modernization Project 

PURPOSE: 

To authorize the General Manager to execute multiple Change Orders to Contract No. 
OSHA-100, El Cerrito Del Norte Station Modernization Project. These Change Orders will 
be in the amount not to exceed $6,500,000 which includes a compensable 149 calendar day 
extension to the Contract duration. 

DISCUSSION: 

On February 9, 2017, the Board authorized the General Manager to award Contract No. 
OSHA-I 00, El Cerrito Del Norte Station Modernization Project. This Contract expands and 
upgrades the existing paid area, constructs two new elevators and two new stairs, 
and provides new LED lighting throughout the station. The Contract also exercised four 
options to procure Automatic Fare Collection equipment to be used elsewhere on the 
system, relocate the passenger drop off area, enhance the Ohlone Greenway/bicycle 
path/hardscape, upgrade the concourse area, and provide new bus shelters. 

The Change Orders associated with this EDD will resolve Contract delays associated with 
design changes, differing site conditions as well as incorporating elements of work from the 
State of Good Repair (SOGR) Program which can be more efficiently performed through 
this Contract. 



Change Orders and Associated Delay Compensation to Contract o. OSHA- lOO, El Cerrito Del Norte Stati (cont.) 

Change Order #33 Uninterruptible Power Supply System (UPS) NTE $400,000 

This element of work was originally part of the SOGR Program and will be funded by 
Measure RR. This work addresses essential upgrades to the emergency lighting system for 
the station and can be more efficiently executed under this Contract. 

Change Order #39 Revise Overhead Conduits NTE $800,000 

Differing site conditions were uncovered during construction which required revisions to the 
overhead power and communication conduits and routing. 

Change Order #54 Fire/Life Safety & Other Design Changes NTE $1,500,000 

Design changes were necessary to bring the station up to current Fire/Life Safety building 
code requirements. This change order will be used to cover the costs to install a code 
compliant system in the station. In December 2018, the Board authorized the General 
Manager to procure long lead materials that will be used as part of this installation. An 
accurate estimate of the costs for installation was not available at that time. 

Change Order #55 5-months Delay Compensation NTE $2,500,000 

During the course of construction, the project made multiple design changes as a result of 
differing site conditions and design omissions which delayed the schedule. Change Notice 
No. 55 addresses the delays caused by these design changes as well as escalation of material 
and labor. Change Order No. 55 will provide the Contractor with an amount not to exceed 
$2,500,000 and will add 149 day calendar days to the Contract duration. 

Change Order #82 Water Intrusion Mitigation Measure NTE $250,000 

This element of work was originally part of the SOGR Program and will be funded by 
Measure RR. This work mitigates water intrusion in the station coming through the joints 
between the overhead track girders. 



Change Orders and Associated Delay Compensation to Contract No. OS HA- 100, El Cerrito Del Norte Stati (cont. ) 

Change Order #90 Swing-Style Fare Gate Pilot Program NTE $300,000 

In a continuing effort to address fare evasion the District would like to retrofit two of the 
Accessible Fare Gates procured through this Contract to incorporate swing-style fare gates 
for testing. 

Change Order #91 New PG&E Meter for New Fire Pump NTE $750,000 

This change order will provide for the design and construction of a new 800-amp PG&E 
service meter to support the new fire pump required for the code compliant fire/life safety 
system at the Station. 

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3 , Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000 
require Board approval. 

The Office of the General Counsel will approve these Change Orders as to form prior to 
execution. The Procurement Department will review these Change Orders for compliance 
with procurement guidelines prior to execution 

CAPITAL FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Funding in the amount of $6,500,000 to execute the various Change Orders for Contract 
05HA- l 00 is included in the following project budgets. 

FMS# 05HA002 - El Cerrito Del Norte Station Modernization ($5,700,000 for C0#33 -
Partial funding of $150,000; C0#39; C0#54; C0#55; C0 #91) 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following source: 

Proposed Funding 
FIG 802A - 2017 Measure RR $9,200,000 

TOTAL 9,200,000 



n 
n 

~ 

[I 

II 

u 

II 

II 

1 

!I 

IJ 

Change Orders and Associated Delay C ompensation to Contract No. 05 HA- IOO, El Cerrito Del Norte Stati (cont.) 

As of August 12, 2019, $9,20 0,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
290, and reserved $0 to date. This action will commit $2,005,471, committed $877, 
ble fund balance of $617,239 in this fund source for this project. $5,700,000, leaving an availa 

FMS# l 5IIRR1 - Stations E mergency Lighting ($250,000 for C0#33) 

The table below lists funding 
funding history against spend 
expended from the following 

assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
ing authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
source: 

Proposed Funding 
FIG 802A - 2017 Measure RR $ 27,010,696 

TOTAL 27,010,696 

As of August 12, 2019, $27,0 10,696 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
nd reserved $14,920,789 to date. This action will commit $3,156,420, committed $0, a 

$250,000, leaving an availabl e fund balance of $8,683,487 in this fund source for this 
project. 

FMS# l 5TC02 l - Water In trusion at C&R Lines ($250,000 for C0#82) 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
mg authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
source: 

funding history against spend· 
expended from the following 

Proposed Funding 
FIG 802A - 2017 Measure RR $ 20,254,325 

TOTAL 20,254,325 

As of August 12, 2019, $20,254,325 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
$89,880, committed $462,268, and reserved $0 to date. This action will commit $250,000, 
leaving an available fund balance of $19,452,176 in this fund source for this project. 

FMS# 1 STKOOO - M&E Capital Maintenance ($300,000 for C0#90) 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 



l 

n 

~ 

ll 

l 

-
~ 

Change Orders and Associated Delay Compensation to Contract No. 05HA-100, El Cerrito Del Norte Stati (cont.) 

Propose d Funding 
LOC FIG 850Z-CAPITAL MAINTEN. AL $410,025 

FIG 851 W - FY07-l l Capital Allocatio n $1,206,109 

FIG 8524 - FY12 Operating Allocation to Capital $1,100,000 

FIG 8525 - FY130perating Allocation to Capital $1,048,000 

FIG 8526 - FY14 Operating Allocation to Capital $1,600,000 

FIG 8529 - FY15 Bart Op to Capital ( BOAC) $1,200,000 

FIG 8530 - FY16 Operating Allocation to Capital $975,000 

FIG 8531 - FYl 7 Operating Allocation to Capital $200,000 

FIG 8533 - FY19 Capital Allocation $1,200,000 

FIG 8534 - FY20 Capital Allocation $1,200,000 

TOTAL 10,139,134 

As of August 12, 2019, $10,139,134 is t 
$7,095,187, committed $725,129, and re 
$300,000, leaving an available fund bala 

he total budget for this project. BART has expended 
served $628,741 to date. This action will commit 
nee of $1 ,390,077 in these fund sources for this 

project. 

The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifi 1es that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have an y Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Failure to issue these Change Orders for 
performed in a future contract at a potent 
District-caused delays, with the potential 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Contract No. 05HA-100 will require the work to be 
ially higher cost and will result in a claim for 
for litigation. 

It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to execute the various Change Orders in an aggregate 
amount not to exceed $6,500,000 to Contract No. 05HA-100, El Cerrito Del Norte Station 
Modernization Project. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: August 16, 2019 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: Quarterly Service Performance Review - Fourth Quarter FY 2019 

Attached is the "Quarterly Service Performance Review - Fourth Quarter FY 2019" presentation 
that will be presented at the August 22, 2019 Board meeting as an information item. 

If you have any questions about the document, please contact Tamar Allen, Assistant General 
Manager, Operations at (510) 464-7513. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Executive Staff 

Robert M. Powers 



EXECUTNE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER ~ VAL: 

12u~. - 14 4-J Z<H<) 
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

DATE: 819/2019 ~ BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Kimberly 

' ''"'~ 
Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

:·:\~ :~i:Jt1';J' 
\ ' 

\,J 

Jf#; II 
IJ 

"''"'""'° '" 'i .9 In bo1q 
I 

~/M rq [ l 'vii ~~"' [ l [ l ~ [ l 
I 

Amend the Transit-Oriented Development Policy to address Unsolicited Proposals, 
Adopt a Resolution creating a fee for Unsolicited Proposal Review, and Authorizing 

the General Manager to enter into reimbursement agreements for Unsolicited 
Proposals 

PURPOSE: 

To request that the Board of Directors 

1) Amend the Transit-Oriented Development Policy to address Unsolicited Proposals 
for property development. 

2) Adopt a resolution creating a new fee for Unsolicited Proposals for property 
development. 

3) Authorize the General Manager or his designee to enter into agreements with parties 
who submit an Unsolicited Proposal in order to reimburse the District for costs 
associated with the review. 

DISCUSSION: 

Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amendment 

Ordinarily BART will identify sites as priority opportunities for transit-oriented development, 
and then issue a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) or a Request for Proposals (RFP), which 
allows the District to identify a developer to work with to develop that property. BART 
occasionally receives unsolicited proposals from potential partners who are interested in 



Unsolicited Proposals for Property Development: TOD Policy Amendment, Fee, and Reimbursement Agreement 

developing BART -owned property that is not the subject of an RFQ or RFP and, in some 
cases, has not been identified as a priority development opportunity ("Unsolicited 
Proposals"). In the past, each Unsolicited Proposal has been reviewed and processed on a 
case by case basis. Staff proposes to amend BART's Transit Oriented Development Policy, 
adopted by the Board on June 9, 2016, in order to provide all interested parties with a clear, 
structured process for the consideration of Unsolicited Proposals. 

There are benefits to reviewing Unsolicited Proposals. An Unsolicited Proposal can indicate 
that the market is ready to support development at that site and that it could be in BAR T's 
interest to act expeditiously. An Unsolicited Proposal could also represent a unique 
development opportunity that is not typically received during a traditional RFQ/RFP 
process. However, there is a cost to BART when reviewing Unsolicited Proposals because 
resources are redirected from other already identified priorities. 

It should be noted that this proposed amendment is specific to BART's Transit-Oriented 
Development program, in which BART has land that could potentially be developed with 
private sector resources. The policy amendment is not intended to apply more broadly to 
BART's procurement processes, which need to follow BART's policies, and any applicable 
state- and/or federal-procurement guidance. 

To ensure that Unsolicited Proposals are reviewed consistently, and that the review process 
and criteria are transparent to the development community and the public, a review 
procedure document has been developed and is included for information purposes 
(Attachment 3). The review procedure would establish a two-step review process. Step 1 
is designed to be a short, technical review that evaluates certain minimum threshold criteria 
for Unsolicited Proposals and ensures that the Unsolicited Proposal offers something that is 
not readily available through BART' s traditional RFQ/RFP process. At the end of Step 1, 
BART staff would determine if the criteria have been met to continue with the next step in 
the review process. Step 2 is a more in-depth review that is consistent with what staff would 
consider when evaluating RFQs or RFPs. At the end of Step 2, staff would prepare a 
recorrunendation to the Board of Directors, and the Board would be requested to act on the 
Unsolicited Proposal. The three likely outcomes of the Step 2 process are as follows: 

1. The Unsolicited Proposal is determined to not meet the review criteria and is rejected. 
2. The Unsolicited Proposal is found to have merit, but BART decides to conduct a 

competitive procurement for the development opportunity. 
3. The Unsolicited Proposal meets the review criteria and BART decides it is in the 

District's best interest to enter into an Exclusive Negotiation Agreement (ENA) with the 
party that submitted the Unsolicited Proposal. 

BART's Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Policy does not specifically address 
Unsolicited Proposals for property development. It is recommended that the policy be 
amended to direct staff to develop a review procedure for Unsolicited Proposals that 



Unsolicited Proposals for Property Development: TOD Policy Amendment, Fee, and Reimbursement Agreement 

outlines the review process and criteria. In addition, the Policy would state that BART does 
not encourage Unsolicited Proposals but recognizes the potential benefits they may bring 
and therefore wants to provide a process for their evaluation. 

Review Fee for Unsolicited Proposals for property development 

Unsolicited Proposals for property development, by their very nature, are proposed by a 
third party at its own discretion. It is recommended that any staff time and any outside 
consultant time required to review an Unsolicited Proposal be reimbursed by the proposer. 
In order to recover staff costs, an hourly review fee of $149 has been calculated based on 
the current fiscal year (FY20) salary and benefit information for the employee classifications 
that are typically involved in reviewing TOD projects. Using a weighted average to account 
for some employee classifications spending more time on the review than others, the average 
hourly base and fringe labor cost was determined to be $112 per hour. Specifically, the 
following employee classifications and assumed percentage of review hours were used to 
determine the average base labor cost per hour: 

Employee OasmiaJio111 t_, Perce•~ •f Review Time _ 
Principal Development Officer 50% 
Department Manager, Property 5% 
Development 
Access Manager 5% 
Senior Planner 15% 
Senior Engineer 5% 
Principal Engineer 10% 
Group Manager, Engineering 10% 

In addition, BART utilizes a 33% Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) rate to account for BART 
overhead costs which brings the fee up to the recommended $149 per hour. The fee will be 
updated annually at the beginning of each fiscal year using the average hourly base and fringe 
labor cost rates then in effect. 

As a point of comparison, BART utilizes a review fee schedule to recover costs related to 
the review of Permits to Enter, Easements, and Plan Reviews. The current fee schedule was 
approved by the Board of Directors in 2006 and is updated annually. Currently the review 
fees included in the existing fee schedule are $146 per hour. 

A party who submits a Unsolicited Proposal to the District will be required to sign an 
agreement that requires all staff and consultant costs to be reimbursed. 



Unsolicited Proposals for Property Development: TOD Policy Amendment, Fee, and Reimbursement Agreement 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

There is no fiscal impact from the proposed amendment to the Transit-Oriented 
Development Policy. The new review fee for Unsolicited Proposals will allow BART to 
recover from developers, all staff costs required to review the proposals. Because BART 
cannot determine the amount or quality of Unsolicited Proposals it may receive, it is 
unknown what the fiscal impact will be for any given fiscal year. The fiscal impact will 
depend on the number of proposals received, project complexity, and how many steps the 
proposal makes it though. However, based on staff estimates, the following revenue 
estimates can be anticipated for each proposal review step: 

Unsolicited Proposal Estimated Staff hours Estimated Review Fee 
Review Step Revenue 

Step 1 40 $5,960 
Step 2 160 $23,840 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not amend the TOD Policy as presented. Continue to operate under the existing 
2016 TOD Policy. 

2. Do not adopt the new Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee. This would result in costs 
associated with the review of Unsolicited Proposals becoming part of BART operating 
costs . 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the following motions be adopted. 

MOTIONS: 

1. The BART Board of Directors hereby amends the Transit-Oriented Development 
Policy by adding the following new Section 4 under Strategy A: 

Develop a procedure that will allow BART to respond to unsolicited proposals for 
property development on BART-owned land. Although BART does not encourage 
unsolicited proposals, they can be a valuable means for BART to partner with local 
communities and/or the development community to produce innovative or unique 
developments that deliver benefits in excess of what is typically provided by the 
market. 

2. The BART Board of Directors hereby adopts the attached resolution regarding a new 



Unsolicited Proposals for Property Development: TOD Policy Amendment, Fee, and Reimbursement Agreement 

review fee for Unsolicited Proposals for property development. 

3. The BART Board of Directors hereby authorizes the General Manger or his designee to 
enter into agreements with parties that submit Unsolicited Proposals requiring that they 
reimburse the District for all expenses, including staff and consultant costs, associated 
with the review of those Unsolicited Proposals. 

Attachments: 

1. Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee Resolution 
2. Red line of 2016 TOD Policy showing proposed amendment 
3. Unsolicited Proposal Review Procedure (For Information Only) 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

In the matter of adopting a new fee for the review 
of unsolicited proposals for property development Resolution No. _____ _ 

WHEREAS, from time to time the District receives proposals for potential development of BART-owned 

property that are not submitted in response to a request for qualifications, request for proposals, or 

other solicitation from the District regarding the development of the property in quest ion ("Unsolicited 

Proposals"); and 

WHEREAS, the District incurs costs, in the form of staff time expended to review Unsolicited Proposa ls; 

and 

WHEREAS, the best interests of the District will be served by adopting a new fee to recover the costs 

associated with reviewing Unsolicited Proposals; and 

WHEREAS, the best interests of the District will be served further by the imposition of a deposit 

requirement and associated reimbursement agreement in connection with the submittal of an 

Unsolicited Proposal; and 

WHEREAS, the fee will be ca lculated annually, at the beginning of each fiscal year, based on the current 

fiscal year Salary and Fringe Rates (weighted as outlined in Exhibit A) and a 33% Cost Allocation Plan 

("CAP") Rate to ensure the District is able to recover costs incurred in reviewing Unsolicited Proposals; 

and 

WHEREAS, notice of the District's intent to institute the new fee was publicly advertised in accordance 

with statutory requirements; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the new fee was held on August 22, 2019. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the following policy is adopted; 

Effective August 23, 2019, BART will institute an Unsolicited Proposal Fee of $149 per hour of time spent 

by BART staff in conjunction with the review of Unsolicited Proposals. Thereafter, t he fee will be 

amended on a fiscal year basis based on the calculation descr ibed in Exhibit A to this Resolution. 



EXHIBIT A 

Unsolicited Proposal Fee Calculation 

Unsolicited Proposal Fee Employee Base and Fringe Rate Classifications and Weighted Average 

The Unsolicited Proposal Fee is determined by identifying the average base and fringe salary information 

for the BART employee classifications listed in the table below, and then calculating a weighted average 

of that salary information based on each position' s corresponding "Percentage of Review Time." That 

weighted average is then multiplied by 1.33, BART's "Cost Allocation Plan Rate," to account for BART's 

overhead costs associated with the listed employee classifications, and then rounding the resulting 

number to the nearest dollar. 

&nplowee ClassificatiollS Percentage of Review Time 
Principal Development Officer 50% 

Department Manager, Property Development 5% 

Access Manager 5% 

Senior Planner 15% ' . 
Senior Engineer 5% 

Principal Engineer 10% I 

Group Manager, Engineering 10% 

' An updated Unsolicited Proposal Fee shall be calculated annually on a fiscal year basis. 



Transit-Oriented Development Policy 

Adopted June 9, 2016 

VISION 

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) is a steward ofa large scale public investment. 

This includes real estate assets essential to BART's transit operations, and real estate assets that can be 

used to catalyze transit-oriented development in furtherance of BART's purpose and goals. BART 

leverages these opportunities by working in partnership with the communities it serves in order to 

implement the regional land use vision and achieve local and regional economic development goals. 

Strengthening the connections between people, places, and services enhances BART's value as a regional 

resource. 

GOALS 

A. Complete Communities. Partner to ensure BART contributes to neighborhood/district vitality, creating 

places offering a mix of uses and incomes. 

B. Sustainable Communities Strategy. Lead in the delivery of the region's land use and transportation vision 

to achieve quality of life, economic, and greenhouse gas reduction goals. 

C. Ridership. Increase BART ridership, particularly in locations and times when the system has capacity to 

grow. 

D. Value Creation and Value Capture. Enhance the stability of BART's financial base by capturing the 

value of transit, and reinvesting in the program to maximize TOD goals. 

E. Transportation Choice. Leverage land use and urban design to encourage non-auto transportation choices · 

both on and off BART property, through enhanced walkability and bikeability, and seamless transit 

connectivity. 

F. Affordability. Serve households of all income levels by linking housing affordability with access to 

opportuni ty. 

STRATEGIES 

A. Manage Resources Strategically to Support Transit-Oriented Development 
1. Develop a 4-Year Work Plan to assess how staff and financial activities toward TOD will be most fruitful. 

Identify BART staffing priorities and assignments to promote TOD on and around District property, including 

contributions to efforts such as planning and development, community engagement, funding and fi nancing 

strategies. 

2. Favor long-term ground leases of no more than 66 years, rather than sale of property, as the standard disposition 

strategy for joint development projects, except in cases where alternative approaches are required to achieve 

specific development objectives or where other strategies would generate greater financial return to the District. 

;L__Solicit proposals for transit-oriented development in localities that have an adopted plan allowing for transit

supportive land uses as defined in the TOD Guidelines. Utilize a competitive selection process but ensure the 
solicitation process considers property assembly with adjacent land owners for optimal TOD. 

Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amendment - Unsolicited Proposals August 22, 2019 



Transit-Oriented Development Policy 

Adopted June 9, 2016 

~ - Develop a procedure that will allow BART to respond to unsolicited proposals for property development on 

BART-owned land. Although BART does not encourage unsolicited proposals. they can be a valuable means 

for BART to partner with local communities and/or the development community to produce innovative or 

unigue developments that de! iver benefits in excess of what is typically provided by the market. 

4:-2,_Revisit the Transit-Oriented Development Policy every I O years. 

B. Support Transit-Oriented Districts 
1. Proactively support local jurisdictions in creating station area plans and land use policies that: a) encourage 

transit-supportive, mixed-use development on and around station properties, b) enhance the value of BART 

land, and c) enhance the performance of the BART system as a whole. 

2. Form partnerships with public agencies, developers and landowners, community development organizations, 

finance entities, and consider strategic land acquisition to help build TOD both on and off BART property. 

3. For BART system expansion, ensure that transit-oriented development and value capture opportunities are 

explicitly accounted for in major investments such as the location of new station sites, design and construction 

of station facilities, and acquisition of new properties. 

C. Increase Sustainable Transportation Choices using Best Practices in Land Use and Urban Design 
I. Utilize BART's TOD Guidelines to ensure future development and investments seamlessly connect BART 

stations with surrounding communities. 

2. Ensure that combined TOD/parking/access improvements on and around each BART station encourage net new 

BART ridership, utilizing corridor-level, shared, and off-site approaches to parking replacement as appropriate. 

Following the aspirational Station Access Policy place types, use the following guidelines to replace current 

BART parking as follows when developing BART property with TOD: strive for no or limited parking 

replacement at "Urban with Parking" Stations; and use the access model to maximize revenue to BART from 

development and ridership when determining a parking replacement strategy at all station types. 

3. Utilize strategies including mixed-use development, transportation demand management, and pedestrian

friendly urban design to encourage reverse-commute, off-peak, and non-work trips on BART and other modes 

of non-auto transportation, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

D. Enhance Benefits of TOD through Investment in the Program 
I. Evaluate the financial performance of proposed projects based on sound financial parameters and the ability to 

generate transit ridership, fare revenue, lease payments, parking revenues, grant resources, other financial 

participation, and/or cost savings. Consider the opportunity cost to the District of delaying or accelerating 

development opportunities. 

2. Use a variety of financing and governance mechanisms, includingjoint powers authorities, assessment districts, 

improvement districts, and lease credits to achieve station area TOD objectives. 

3. As appropriate, and in consideration of District-wide financial needs, reinvest revenues from the sale and lease 

of BART land into the TOD Program, informed by the priorities identified in the 4-Year Work Plan. 

E. Invest Equitably 
I. increase scale of development at and near BART stations through catalytic investments in TOD, to help address 

the regional shortfall in meeting housing and other sustainable growth needs. 

Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amendment - Unsolldted Proposals August 22, 2019 



Transit-Oriented Development Policy 

Adopted June 9, 2016 
2. Implement BAR T's adopted Affordable Housing Policy and aim for a District-wide target of 30 percent of all 

units to be affordable, with a priority to very low (<50% AMI), low (51-80% AMI) and/or transit-dependent 

populations. 

3. Ensure the 4-Year Work Plan addresses how BART wi ll achieve its affordable housing goals. 

Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amendment - Unsolidted Proposals August 22, 2019 



BART Property Development Unsolicited Proposal Procedure 

Article L Introduction 
Section 1.01 The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) is a steward of a large-scale 

public investment. This includes rea l estate assets essential to BART's transit operations, and real 

estate assets that can be used to cata lyze t ransit-orient ed development in furtherance of BART's 

purpose and goals. Unsolicited proposa ls can be a valuable means for BART to partner w ith local 

communities and/or the development community to produce innovative or unique developments that 

deliver community benefits in excess of what is typically provided by the market. An unsolicited 

proposal is a written proposal that is submitted to BART on the initiative of a prospective offeror 

(organizations or individua ls} for the purpose of developing or improving property owned by BART and 

is not in response to a formal or informal request issued by BART. 

Section 1.02 As a public entity, BART has an obligation to act as a good steward of public funds. Laws 

and regu lations require BART to seek fu ll and open competition for most procurement opportunities, 

including land development. This procedure is intended to faci litate the proper receipt and evaluation 

of unsol icited proposals while preserving the integrity of the procu rement process and conforming to 

applicable laws and regulations. 

Section 1.03 BART is under no obligation to accept an unsolicited proposal, or to enter into any 

agreements arising from an unsolicited proposal. 

Article II. Definition of Unsolicited Proposal 
Section 2.01 An unsolicited proposal is a proposal that is: 

(a) Innovative, unique, feasible 

(b) Independently originated and developed by the proposer. 

(c) Meets BART TOD Guidelines 

(d) Sufficiently detailed that its benefits in support of BART's goals and responsibilities are apparent 

(e} Not an advance proposal for property that BART plans/intends to acquire/develop through traditional 

competitive methods in the next 12 months 

(f) Not an offer responding to a currently or previously advertised (within the last 12 months) BART 

Request for Qualifications or Proposals. 

(g) Submitted by a we ll-capital ized development tea m with experience delivering on projects with similar 

scale and uses to those proposed 

Section 2.02 Unsol icited Proposals for Development Rights Review Process 

Section 2.03 This process wou ld be used for those who wish to ultimately enter into an Exclusive 

Negotiation Agreement with BART in order to procure development rights to a parcel of land owned by 

BART in accordance with BART's TOD policy and gu idelines. 

pg. 1 Ju'y 24, 2019 



Article Ill. Step 1: Technical Review 

Section 3.01 Proposer will submit a written inquiry to BART's Real Estate Manager that will include the 

following information : 

(a) Written description of proposed project that inc ludes uses, approximate density, planned 

improvements, and analysis of how the proposal meets BART's TOD guidelines, TOD performance 

targets, TOD workplan criteria, and current zoning. 

(b) Description of any partnerships, including any letters of support 

(c) Description of how proposal meets at least 4 of the Step 1 review criteria 

(d) Ridership projections, including ridership that would be considered "off-peak" or "reverse" 

(e) Concept plans and renderings if available 

(f) Description of current uses 

(g) Explanation of unique and/or innovative aspects of proposal 

(h) Anticipated impacts and benefits to BART 

(i) Map that includes subject property location, distance to nearest BART station, adjacent land ownership, 

current zoning 

(j) Development Team Description 

(i) Team members/roles and responsibilities 

{ii) Relevant experience 

{iii) Financial Capability 

(k) Reimbursement Agreement and deposit ($25,000) 

(i) All staff review time will charged towards the deposit. 

(ii) All review costs, including any consultant costs, will be reimbursed by proposer regardless of outcome of Step 1 

review 

(iii) Step 1 review is estimated to be 30 to 40 hours of staff time but can vary depending on complexity of proposal 

(iv) When the balance falls to $5,000 or below, the proposer will be asked to deposit additional funds based on the 

current estimate needed to complete review. 

(v) If funds remain after Step 1 review, they will either be returned to the proposer or the proposer can choose to 

have them apply to Step 2 review, if applicable. 

Section 3.02 Review Criteria: 

(a) Meets unsolicited proposal definition 

(b) Staff capacity exists to continue evaluation 

(i) Applicant must address how proposal meets BART work plan priority criteria 

(c) Determination made that there is not a transit operation need that precludes development of the site or 

would need to be incorporated into the project for it to be feasible 

(d) Proposal furthers BART's Performance Targets 

(e) Comparison of how proposal compares to planned uses and densities (including under AB2923 if 

applicable} by the following elements: 

(i) Number of housing units 

{ii) Number of affordable housing units 

(iii) Number of jobs 

(iv) Ridership 

pg. 2 July 24, 2019 



(f) Meets four or more of the following: 

(i) Offers benefit that has not been previously identified or had been identified but not budgeted for 

{ii) Provides a unique or significant active transportation access opportunity 

{iii) Significant partnership with City and/or other public or non-profit organization. 

{iv) Includes significant community benefit (as identified by previous plans) 

(v) Includes unique or innovative methods of development, approaches, or financing 

(vi) Existing zoning supports BART density guidelines 

(vii) Catalytic project as defined by BART's TOO policy 

(viii) Proposes a use that is desired by BART and difficult for the market to deliver (i.e integrated affordable housing in 

excess of 20%} 

(ix) Delivers a concentration of jobs with identified end user. 

(x) Delivers a regional use with substantial economic impact and ridership 

(xi) Adjacent land is integrated creating a more impactful project 

{xii) Demonstrates deep understanding of the community and city approval process 

Section 3.03 Review Process 

(i) BART Board notified that a proposal has been received 

(ii) Technical review may include a meeting between proposer and BART 

(iii) Technical review shall include soliciting input from applicable BART departments 

{iv) Technical review may also include soliciting input from the City where the project is located, or another public 

agency potentially impacted by the project 

Section 3.04 Step 1 review results : 

(i) BART Real Estate Manager determines proposal does not meet review criteria and will no longer be evaluated 

(ii) BART Real Estate Manager determ ines proposal meets technical review and can proceed to Step 2 

1) BART Board Informed of Staff decision 

2) BART will provide developer any design criteria determined from Step 1 review 

Article IV. Step 2: Substantive Review 
Section 4.01 Proposer will submit the following information: 

(a) Concept Plan 

(i) L~cation and layout of proposed development 

{ii) Building type, footprints, and planned use 

(iii) Proposed lot lines, lot widths, and setbacks 

{iv) Proposed parking (public and private identified) 

(v) Building heights and stories 

(vi) Proposed public spaces (if any) 

(vii) Proposed access, including those required for ADA 

(viii) Proposed EVA routes 

{ix} Proposed BART maintenance and operations access/parking 

(x) Proposed multimodal infrastructure 

(xi) Existing station entrances and roads 

(xii) Available architectural renderings or sketches 

(b) Written Narrative 

pg. 3 July 24, 2019 



(i) Highlights of proposal including innovative and unique aspects of proposal 

{ii) Description of potential BART impacts and benefits 

(iii) Ridership analysis that includes anticipated non-peak hours or direction trips 

(iv) if applicable, affordable housing percentage of residential units, number of units, income level. 

(v) Community benefits 

(vi) BART TOO policy and guidelines analysis 

(vii) Anticipated entitlement process 

(viii) Proposed TOM and/or multimodal transportation improvements 

(ix) Response to any operational impacts identified during the technical review process 

(x) Community engagement process 

(xi) Implementation/phasing plan 

(xii) Addresses Step 2 review criteria 

(xiii) Development Team description 

1) Team members and relevant experience 

(c) Financial Plan 

(i) Preliminary Pro Forma 

{ii) Development Financing Plan 

{iii) Market conditions summary 

{iv) BART Financial Offer 

(d) Reimbursement Agreement and deposit ($25,000} 

(i) Proposer will be responsible for all BART costs related to proposal review including consultant/outside attorney 
costs. 

{ii) All review costs will be reimbursed by proposer regardless of outcome of Step 2 review 

{iii) When the balance falls to $5,000 or below, the proposer will be asked to deposit additional funds based on the 
current estimate needed to complete review 

(iv) Any remaining funds after Step 2 review will be reimbursed to proposer 

(e) Any other information determined by BART to be requ ired during Step 1 review 

Section 4.02 Review Process 

(a) Step 2 review will be conducted within 120 days of the proposal being deemed complete unless 

developer and BART agree to a longer timeline to accommodate required studies that may be necessary 

for BART's review 

(b) BART staff time is estimated at 150-250 hours but will depend on project complexity 

(c) BART may utilize outside consultants for other studies as appropriate including ridership analysis 

(d) Evaluation Committee will evaluate proposal and will cons ist of representatives from BART, including 

representation from various departments. 

(e) Eva lu ation Comm ittee will make a recommendation on next step to the BART board. 

pg. 4 July 24, 2019 



Section 4.03 Review Criteria 

(a) Provides an opportunity that is not readily available through the open market including the 

incorporation of adjacent parcels 

(b) Includes unique or innovative methods of development, approaches, or financing 

(c) Integration with transit facilities 

(d) Transit benefits 

(e) · Community benefits 

(f) Depth and breadth of Commun ity Engagement Plan 

(g) Significance of partnersh ips 

(h) Significance of active transportation infrastructure (as determined by need, cost, or amount) 

(i) Economic and regulatory feasibility/certainty 

(j) Qualifications of development team and Proposer 

(k) Quality of design 

{I) Small business participation 

(m) Financial ret urn to BART Financial return to BART 

(n) Feasibility and timeliness of implementation/phasing plan 

(o) Significant ridership increase 

(p) Any other factors deemed appropriate for the proposal 

Section 4.04 Results of Step 2 review (Board action required) 

(a) No further action, proposal is rejected 

(b) Competitive RFP/RFQ process initiated 

(c) Determ ination made that proposa l qua lifi es for sole source 

(i) Refer to section 5.07 

Article V. Competitive RFP/RFQ process 
Section 5.01 Purpose : Ascertain whether other parties may desire and be able to offer a project within 

a similar scope to that contemplated within the original Unsolicited Proposal or could provide transit 

and/or community benefits of a similar magnitude. 

Section 5.02 Notification of BARTs interest in development on site of received unsolicited proposal: 

(a) BART w ill open a competitive process that wi ll include the following: 

(i) Basic elements of the original Unsolicited Proposal 

(ii) Include specific development goals/criteria by which proposals would be evaluated 

(iii) Include submittal requirements 

{iv) Give adequate opportunity to compete {30 - 90 days depending on complexity of project) 

pg. 5 Ju ly 24, 2019 



Section 5.03 Process: 

(a) Evaluation Committee formed in anticipation of multiple proposals 

(b) Proposer of original unsolicited proposal may choose to submit a new proposal or additional 
information 

(c) If no additional proposals are received: 

(i) BART board can approve the developer selection resulting from the original Unsolicited Proposal evaluation and 

a non-binding term sheet allowing sufficient time for the developer and BART staff to complete due diligence and 

negotiate final terms (typically, the exclusive negotiating agreement) based on a staff recommendation 

(d) If additional proposals are received : 

(i) Evaluation Committee engaged 

(ii) Written proposals are evaluated 

(iii) Interviews conducted with teams of the top-ranking proposals 

Section 5.04 Review Criteria: 

(a) BART TOD guidelines 

(b) All review criteria used to evaluate original Unsol icited Proposal 

(c) Any additional criteria/goals included in the competitive solicitation 

Section 5.05 Results: 

{i) Reject all proposals 

{ii) BART board to approve the developer selection resulting from the Competitive RFP evaluation and a non-binding 

term sheet allowing sufficient time for the developer and BART staff to complete due diligence and negotiate 

final terms (typically, the exclusive negotiating agreement) based on a staff recommenda t;ion 

Section 5.06 Possible exceptions to Competitive RFP Process 

(a) There are conditions by which BART may choose not to publicly notice an unsolicited proposal and move 

forward with a sole source negotiation. 

(i) If it is impossible to describe the property or services offered without revealing proprietary information or 

disclosing the originality of thought or innovativeness of the property or services sought, as determined by BART 

(ii) If the offeror is the City in which the property is located, or offeror has partnered with the City in a significant 

way. 

{iii) If the offeror is an adjacent landowner and the combination of the parcels results in the entire project 

maximizing allowed densities . 

(iv) BART Board of Directors finds that the proposal has unique and beneficial attributes that have not been provided 

in previous competitive Request for Qualifications or Proposal processes. 

(b) If development of the land is subject to FTA then an exception to the competitive RFP process may not 

be possible . 

pg. 6 July 24, 2019 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL I\U;'\'AGER APPROVAL: ~ l2u- .v'\ - V~ ,4- 2c~~ 

DATE: 8/5/2019 

Originator / Prepared by: Joseph Basuin o 

Dept : Planning, Developm ent a nd 

Const ruction 

I Status Routed 

GE:'\E RAL :\1ANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

Approve and forwward to the: Board 

BOARD INITIATED IT E:\1: No 

! Date Created 8/5/2019 

BARC 

Re-Authorization for the North Concord/Martinez Station Transit Oriented 
Development Exclusive Negotiating Agreement Award 

PURPOSE: 
To authorize the General Manager or his designee to execute an Exclusive Negotiating 
Agreement ("ENA") with Brookfield Residential for Transit-Oriented Development ("TOD") 
at the North Concord/Martinez BART station. 

DISCUSSION: 
BART owns approximately 20 acres at the North Concord/Martinez BART Station 
consisting of the parking lot and the transit center (the "BART Property"). Currently, BART 
staff is engaged with the City of Concord ("City") and community in developing the 
Concord Reuse Specific Plan ("Specific Plan"), initiated in 2017 which includes the BART 
Property. The Specific Plan, Environmental Impact Report ("EIR") and associated 
entitlements are expected to be completed in mid- 2020. The Specific Plan will establish 
zoning and environmental clearance for the former Concord Naval Weapons Station (the 
"Base"), the BART property, and the former Coast Guard Property to the south of BART. 
FivePoint will develop Phase I of the former Base, and the City of Concord has selected 
DeNova Homes to re-develop the former Coast Guard property. 
The BART property is a key area within the Specific Plan boundaries in which development 
interests are not represented by a developer. Staff have found that this places BART at a 
disadvantage in negotiating future uses, infrastructure needs, and circulation within the 
Specific Plan, which is far more detailed than a typical City planning document where no 
developers are directly seeking entitlements. For this reason, BART initiated a solicitation 
process during the summer of 201 8 seeking a team to advance the development process. 



North Concord ENA Award 

Based on the anticipated draft Specific Plan and BART policies, the District sought a 
financially feasible, long-tenn, mixed-use development, featuring commercial office, 
affordable and market-rate housing, with a focus on active access and a sustainable long
term parking strategy. 
On December 6, 2018, following a lengthy evaluation process, the BART Board authorized 
staff to enter into an ENA with a team comprised of Brookfield Residential and Novin 
Development Corporation ("Brookfield/Novin"). Unfortunately, Brookfield and Novin 
were unable to successfully reach agreement regarding the terms of this proposed 
partnership. In April 2019, Brookfield and Novin informed BART staff that they had 
dissolved their partnership. 
On April 17, 2019 staff reissued the Request for Qualifications ("RFQ") by invitation to the 
developers that previously responded. Brookfield Residential and Novin Development 
Corporation were invited to submit separate responses. All teams were welcome to add, 
replace, or remove team members, so long as the lead developers remained the same. The 
four teams invited were: 

• Brookfield Properties 
• Novin Development Corporation 
• The Michaels Organization 
• Essex Properties 

An invitation only RFQ provided expediency in the process, given the ongoing planning 
efforts and imminent release of a draft Specific Plan and EIR. Since the last solicitation 
process occurred less than a year ago, and economic conditions have not substantially 
changed in the area, it was not anticipated that new parties would be interested in the 
offering. BART' s solicitation and scoring process was also largely unchanged. On May 10, 
2019, BART received three submittals in response to the RFQ. Essex Properties did not 
respond to the RFQ. 
An evaluation committee comprised of seven individuals from BART and Contra Costa 
County reviewed and scored the written proposals, with additional analysis of financial 
strengths completed by Economic and Planning Systems, a consultant firm working with 
BART. Although BAR T' s original intent was to include City of Concord staff and 
Community Advisory Committee members on the evaluation panel, the City of Concord's 
attorney again determined that these parties had a conflict of interest, therefore the City 
declined to participate in the evaluation process. 
1bree development teams were invited to participate in oral interviews on June 4, 2019. The 
teams were: 

• Brookfield Residential 
• Novin Development Corporation 
• The Michaels Organization 

Proposals were scored using criteria in the following categories: 
• Direct relevant qualifications and experience of Developer Team. Experience with: 



North Concord ENA Award 

Master planning and mixed-use development; negotiating and executing complex land 
transactions; public agency partnerships, particularly transit; and large-scale 
infrastructure investment. 

• Preliminary development concept and proposed p roject approach. Demonstration 
that: Concept meets BART's goals and objectives for site while being sensitive to 
community transition; approach addresses real estate market context, development 
phasing and finance, and community concerns; development concept is compatible 
with the City's Area Plan; and proposed approach shows overall innovation and 
creativity. 

• Financial capability of Developer Team, including lender references. Demonstrated 
ability to secure funding and financing for a long term, multi-phase project; and 
provided lender references. 

• Roles and responsibilities of Developer Team. Provided organizational chart that 
meets required disciplines with relevant project manager experience and clear 
delineation of roles and responsibilities; and Small Business ("SB") participation 
commitment percentage. 

As unanimously identified by the selection committee, the top scoring proposal was from 
Brookfield Residential. The Brookfield team's higher rating was based on the basis of: 

• Assembling a strong local development team, which included prime consultants and a 
20% commitment to Small Business participation. 

• Extensive experience with multiple public agencies and large multi-phased projects. 
• Proposed project alignment with the Area Plan. 
• Financial strength indicating an ability to fund predevelopment and other expenses. 
• Past history of working with adjacent developers to finance infrastructure. 

Staff therefore requests authorization to enter into an ENA with Brookfield Residential for a 
period of 24 months with an option to extend for an additional 12 months if project 
milestones are met, to advance a transit-oriented development project at the North 
Concord/Martinez BART station. If staff determines that Brookfield Residential has 
substantially met the terms of the ENA, but is not ready to return to the Board with a project 
and ground lease option at the end of the 36-month ENA period, staff may return to the 
Board to request an extension of the ENA term with Brookfield Residential. This 
development is expected to be longer term in nature than a typical BART project due to the 
larger scale master planning efforts, and the large size of the property. Therefore a longer 
ENA period is requested to allow additional time to work within the City's specific plan 
process, while ensuring additional time beyond that process for other tasks needed to 
complete any additional entitlement process needed for the BART property specifically. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
If approved, BART Real Estate and Property Development Department staff will work with 
the selected developer to execute an ENA and initiate work on development scoping. BART 
Staff time (0.5-0.75 FTE) is programmed into the operating budget and the department work 



North Concord ENA Award 

plan already. BART will receive a $100,000 ENA fee to compensate BART staff time and 
consultant and legal fees during the term ofthis ENA, with a provision in the ENA that this 
amount will be increased to compensate for BART's expenses as negotiated. This action will 
not have any impact on unprogrammed District reserves. 
Revenues to BART associated with ground lease terms and ridership increases are yet to be 
determined, but staff will ensure that the combination of the ground lease and ridership 
revenues result in a net positive fiscal impact to BART. The BART Board will review the 
terms of the deal at key milestones to monitor its fiscal impact and ultimately approve the 
deal terms. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Do not authorize staff to proceed with an ENA with Brookfield Residential. 
2. Authorize staff to proceed with an ENA with a different team. 
3. Do not authorize staff to pursue the North Concord/Martinez TOD without further 
direction from the Board. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the following Motion. 

MOTION: 
Authorize the General Manager or his designee to enter into an Exclusive Negotiating 
Agreement with the development team led by Brookfield Residential for a term of 24 
months, with an option to extend the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement period an additional 
12 months if key milestones are substantially met. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: August 16, 2019 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: Federal and State Legislation for Consideration 

At the August 22 Board of Directors meeting, staff will present federal and state legislation for your 
consideration. 

Attached are analyses and text for each bill. The legislation being presented has a nexus to BART and 
aligns with the Board's adopted Federal and State Advocacy Program for 2019. 

FEDERAL 
H.R. 1313 
H.R. 2864 
H.R. 3437 

STATE 
AB67 
SB277 

LEGISLATION FOR SUPPORT 

Transit Security Grant Program Flexibility Act 
Rebuild America Act of 2019 
Saving Transit Art Resources Act 

Homeless Integrated Data Warehouse 
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program: Local Partnership Program 

Following the staff presentation, a request will be made of the Board to consider passing the draft 
motion shown below. 

If you have any questions, please contact Rodd Lee, Interim Assistant General Manager of External 
Affairs, at 510-464-6235. 

Attachments 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Executive Staff 

DRAFT MOTION: 

Robert Powers 

That the Board of Directors supports H.R. 1313, H.R. 2864, H.R. 3437, AB 67, and SB 277. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GEN~ .~IA.NAGER~ OVAL: \ 4 ~/ 2c,~ 9 IL.bJ-~ . c-v..---. 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approve and forward to the Board of Directors 

DATE: 5/ 10/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Paul Medved 

Dept: Planning, Development & 

Construction 

eneral Counsel Controll er /Treasurer District Secretary 

~ [ J [ l 

.?7-~ 
Signature/Date: g / 'i/,'f 

IRVINGTON STATION MODIFICATIONS AND ADDENDUM 2 TO THEW ARM 
SPRINGS BART EXTENSION FINAL SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL 

IMPACT REPORT 

PURPOSE: 
To consider Addendum 2 to the Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (FSEIR) 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the Warm Springs BART 
Extension (WSX Project), evaluating the potential environmental effects of modifications to 
the optional Irvington Station in the WSX Project (Irvington Station Modifications); adopt 
the attached Resolution finding that a subsequent or supplemental environmental impact 
report is not necessary and adopting the Irvington Station Modifications as considered in 
Addendum 2. 

DISCUSSION: 
The potential environmental effects of the WSX Project were first evaluated in a Final 
Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) that was certified by the BART Board of Directors on 
September 15, 1992 for the purposes of evaluating environmental impacts under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21 OOO, et seq.). The 
WSX Project, which at that time included two stations to be located in the Irvington and 
Warm Springs districts of Fremont, was adopted but did not go forward because of 
financial and other constraints. 

Following the passage of Measure B by Alameda County voters in 2000, the WSX Project1s 
scope was substantially modified. Among the modifications, the Irvington Station became an 
optional station subject to the City of Fremont identifying funding. The modified WSX 
Project, including the optional Irvington Station, was studied in the Final Supplemental 



lrvington Station Modifications and Addendum 2 to the WSX FSEIR 

Environmental Impact Report (FSEIR), which was certified on June 26, 2003 when the 
modified WSX Project and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) were 
adopted by the BART Board of Directors. On or about the same time the Board of 
Directors also authorized the General Manager to enter into agreements with affected public 
agencies, utilities and property owners and acquire property in support of the WSX Project. 

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA), acting as the lead agency pursuant to the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), published a Final Environmental Impact Statement and 
Section 4(f)/6(f) Evaluation (FEIS) for the WSX Project in June 2006 and issued a Record 
of Decision on October 24, 2006. The MMRP was revised in September 2006 following 
publication of the FEIS. 

On December 6, 2012, the Board of Directors considered the first Addendum to the FSEIR 
and adopted modifications to the WSX Project related to the addition of photovoltaic (PV) 
panels to several structures at the Warm Springs/South Fremont Station and elsewhere within 
the WSX Project. 

As described in the 2003 FSEIR and 2006 FEIS, the optional lrvington Station would be a 
two-story, side-platform station located just south of Washington Blvd approximately mid
way along the WSX alignment between the Fremont and Warm Springs/South Fremont 
Stations. The platforms would be located on either side of the at-grade BART trackway, and 
the concourse, located directly overhead, would be connected to three entry plazas offering 
multi-modal access to the station from both east and west sides. Pedestrian overpasses of a 
UPRR freight track to the west and of Osgood Road to the east were also included. Along 
with a full suite of station access provisions, a total of 960 parking spaces would be 
provided. The 2003 modified WSX Project also included mitigation measures associated 
with the preservation and interpretation of the remnants of the historic Gallegos Winery site 
located just to the east of Osgood Road and the documentation, rehabilitation and adaptive 
re-use of the Ford House located on Osgood Road south of Washington Blvd. 

Beginning in 2001 with an exchange of letters between the City of Fremont and BART, and 
thereafter in two Letters of Intent and four separate formal agreements, including the 2009 
Comprehensive Agreement between BART and the City of Fremont Relating to the WSX 
Project, the City and BART have committed to prepare for and pursue the construction of 
the Irvington Station as part of the WSX Project if and when funding is identified by the 
City. In 2011 the City revised its General Plan to include a Transit Oriented Development 
(TOD) "Overlay" in the vicinity of the station site and attempted to fund the station using 
Redevelopment (RDA) funds. However, plans to utilize RDA funding had to be abandoned 
when the State of California subsequently revoked the RDA authority from cities statewide. 
The City then worked closely with BART and the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission (Alameda CTC) to identify the necessary funding. In 2014 Alameda County 
voters passed Measure BB which included $120 million specifically designated for 
the Irvington Station. By virtue of these sustained coordination efforts, as well as other 



rrvington Station Modifications and Addendum 2 to the WSX FSEIR 

funding from the City of Fremont, when the Warm Springs Extension opened for passenger 
service on March 25, 2017, it did so with elements of infrastructure (steel sleeves positioned 
beneath the trackway so as to accommodate foundation tie-beams and personnel 
access) already in place to help facilitate construction of the future Irvington Station on an 
"infill" basis. 

In 2017, BART and the City began to take a fresh look at the 2003 Irvington Station 
concept plan with the intent of making the Irvington Station more responsive 
to current policy objectives and project requirements. These include improved adherence to 
the BART Station Access Policy as adopted by the BART Board in 2016, input received 
from BART Operations staff, consultations with the BART Accessibility Task Force, and 
feedback received from the BART Board of Directors following staff presentations given on 
May 10, 2018 and June 13, 2019. Important public feedback was received via three 
community meetings, two on-line surveys and multiple stakeholder meetings, including with 
the Irvington Business Association and the City of Fremont Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Technical Committee. Chief among the public concerns were traffic safety and congestion as 
well as parking impacts, particularly on residential streets. 

As a result, the Irvington Station Modifications include a number of important 
modifications: improved pedestrian and bicycle access and safety, more efficient passenger 
pick-up and drop-off arrangements, a reduction in automobile parking from 960 spaces to 
225-275 spaces, the addition of a new aerial walkway directly connecting the concourse to 
the sidewalk running along the west side of Osgood Rd, and creating a single paid area 
within the concourse to better control fare collection activities. Eliminating the remote 
parking lot to the east also eliminated the need for a pedestrian overpass over Osgood Rd, 
both of which will improve the cost effectiveness of the Irvington Station while still meeting 
ridership objectives. The City is in the process of developing an overall parking management 
plan to prevent spillover station parking in nearby areas. This plan will include a Residential 
Parking Permit Program for use in surrounding neighborhoods as well as other tools such as 
meters, short term parking spaces, and signage appropriate to non-residential areas. The 
Irvington Station Modifications will also require acquisition of substantially less private 
property than the 2003 Irvington Station design (3 parcels vs. 17), thus eliminating the impact 
to the historic Ford House, lessening impacts to the historic Gallegos Winery site and 
providing more opportunity for transit oriented development (TOD) adjacent to the station 
site. In addition, the City also prepared and, on July 16, 2019, the City Council approved a 
Station Area Plan with the goal of improving overall connectivity to the Irvington Station and 
guiding development consistent with its General Plan update of 2011. 

In drafting Addendum 2, BART environmental consultants and BART staff revisited the 
analyses conducted in the 1992 FEIR, 2003 FSEIR, 2006 FEIS, and first Addendum and 
evaluated the Irvington Station Modifications for all the required categories of impact 
(aesthetics, air quality, greenhouse gas emissions, biological and cultural resources, energy, 
seismicity, hydrology and water quality, land use and planning, transportation, etc.). The 



lrvington Station Modifications and Addendum 2 to the WSX FSEIR 

analysis did not identify any substantial changes to the affected environment; any new 
significant or substantially increased environmental effects not already identified in the 
previous environmental documents, or any change in the feasibility or effectiveness of 
previously identified mitigation measures. Based on the evaluation presented in Addendum 
2, there is no substantial evidence, in light of the whole record, that the conditions outlined in 
Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines requiring a subsequent EJR are met. Therefore, an 
EIR addendum is appropriate. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with the recommended action. 

Per the 2009 WSX Comprehensive Agreement between BART and the City of Fremont (the 
"Comprehensive Agreement") and the 2017 Irvington Station Letter of Intent between BART 
and the City of Fremont, the City of Fremont remains responsible for identifying and 
securing all capital funding necessary to design and construct the lrvington Station. The 
Comprehensive Agreement further confirms that "BART and the City also acknowledge and 
agree that, following completion of construction of the WSX Project, BART will assume all 
operation and maintenance responsibilities for all BART-owned facilities", including the 
lrvington Station. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
The alternative is not to adopt the lrvington Station Modifications. In that case, design of the 
Irvington Station would proceed based upon the station concept plan included in the WSX 
Project as previously approved by the Board of Directors in 2003. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following Motion: 

MOTION: 
Having reviewed and considered the information contained in Addendum 2, the 1992 FEIR, 
2003 FSEIR, 2006 FEIS and First Addendum, the BART Board of Directors hereby: 

Adopts the attached Resolution in the matter of making CEQA findings and adopting 
modifications to the Irvington Station, Warm Springs Extension Project (WSX Project). 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

In the Matter of Adopting the Irvington Station Modifications to the Warm Springs 
Extension Project (WSX Project) 

Resolution No. ---

WHEREAS, BART constructed a 5.4-mile extension of the BART system from the 
existing Fremont Station to the new Warm Springs/South Fremont Station (WSX Project or 
Project), which opened for passenger service on March 25, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, since its initial adoption by the Board of Directors in 1992, the WSX Project 
has included plans for a second station to be located midway along the Project alignment in the 
lrvington district of Fremont (Irvington Station); and 

WHEREAS, in 2002 the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to enter into 
agreements with affected public agencies, utilities and property owners in support of the WSX 
Project; and 

WHEREAS, in 2003 the Board of Directors adopted a revised WSX Project, which 
included the Irvington Station as an unfunded optional station, and authorized the General 
Manager to acquire the property necessary to construct the WSX Project; and 

WHEREAS, on numerous occasions beginning in 2001, BART and the City of Fremont 
(City) have documented their mutual interest in letters, Letters of Intent and in formal 
Agreements, including the 2009 Comprehensive Agreement Between BART and the City 
Relating to the WSX Project, for BART to construct the lrvington Station should funding be 
identified by the City; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of this sustained interagency cooperation and coordination, 
certain activities were performed, and physical elements constructed, which were paid for by the 
City and performed by BART, so as to enable the future addition of the Irvington Station in a 
cost-effective manner; and 

WHEREAS, the City has since worked with BART and Alameda County Transportation 
Commission (Alameda CTC) to secure $120 million in funding for the lrvington Station, a 
named project in Measure BB which was passed by Alameda County voters in November of 
2014; and 

WHEREAS, the City, as the Sponsoring Agency, with cooperation and assistance from 
BART, the Implementing Agency, has assumed responsibility for identifying and securing any 

1 



additional funding necessary for the Irvington Station' s complete buildout, which may be phased 
until such additional funding becomes available; and 

WHEREAS, Alameda CTC has, to date, entered into project funding agreements with the 
City for scoping, planning and environmental analyses, and with BART for design of the 
lrvington Station and preparation of property appraisals; and 

WHEREAS, on July 16, 2019 the Fremont City Council approved a Station Area Plan for 
the lrvington Station to guide nearby development based upon the General Plan update of2011 
and committed to closing sidewalk gaps, implementing its planned pedestrian and bicycle 
improvement projects in the station area and aggressively seeking funding for the East Bay 
Greenway and Sabercat Trail projects, two extensive Class I trails that will connect the Irvington 
Station to locations north, south and east of the station, including Ohlone College; and 

WHEREAS, BART and the City intend to enter into a further Comprehensive Agreement 
pursuant to which the lrvington Station and surrounding access infrastructure will be built or 
completed; and 

WHEREAS, the potential environmental effects of the WSX Project were first 
evaluated in a Final Environmental Impact Report (FEI R) that was certified by the Board of 
Directors on September 15, 1992 for the purposes of evaluating environmental impacts under 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

WIHEREAS, the Project was not constructed at that time and the Project was revisited 
and reevaluated in a Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (FSEI R), which was 
certified on June 26, 2003, when the WSX Project, including the optional Irvington Station, and 
a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) were adopted; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration (FT A), acting as the lead agency 
pursuant to the National Environmental Pol icy Act (NEPA), published a Final Environmental 
Impact Statement and Section 4(f) Evaluation (FEIS) for the WSX Project in June 2006 and 
issued a Record of Decision on October 24, 2006; and 

WHEREAS, Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines allows a lead agency to prepare 
an addendum to a previously certified EIR, rather than a subsequent EIR (SEIR), if some 
changes or additions to a project are necessary, as long as none of the conditions described in 
Section 15162 requiring the preparation of a SEIR have occurred. Section 15162 states that, 
when an EIR has been certified, no SEIR shall be prepared for the project unless the lead 
agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in the light of the whole record, that 
1) there are substantial changes proposed in the project which require major revisions of the 
previous EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the in the severity of previously identified significant effects; 2) 
substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken 

2 



which will require major revisions of the previous EIR due to the involvement of new 
significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the in the severity of 
previously identified significant effects; or 3) there is new information of substantial 
importance, which was not known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 
previous EIR was certified as complete that shows any of the following: a) the project will have 
one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR; b) significant effects 
previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the previous EIR; c) 
mitigations measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible 
and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or d) mitigation measures or 
alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the previous EIR would 
substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alterative; and 

WHEREAS, no federal funds are being contributed toward the WSX Project, no additional 
federal environmental evaluation is necessary at this time; and 

WHEREAS,BARfstaffhasrevisitedtheanalysisconductedin the 1992 FEIR,2003 FSEIR 
and the first Addendum and evaluated the potential effects of the Irvington Station Modifications as 
described in Addendum 2, surrounding circumstances, and new information; and 

WHEREAS, based upon the evaluation, none of the conditions described in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15162 requiring the preparation of a SEIR have occurred; and therefore, an 
addendum is appropriate: and 

WHEREAS, CEQA Guidelines Section 15 l 64(d) provides that the lead agency's 
decision-making body shall consider Addendum 2, together with the FSEIR, FEIR and first 
Addendum prior to making a decision on the Irvington Station Modifications. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BART Board of Directors, having reviewed and 
considered the information contained in Addendum 2 and the FSEI R, FEIR and first Addendum 
for the WSX Extension Project: 

1) Finds that, on the basis of substantial evidence contained in Addendum 2, the FSEIR, FEIR 
and First Addendum and in light of the whole record, that: 

a) there are no substantial changes proposed in the Trvington Station 
Modifications that will require major revisions to the FSEIR due to the 
involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of previously identified significant effects; and 
b) there are no substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which 
the Irvington Station Modifications are undertaken which will require major 
revisions of the FSEIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects 
or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

3 



c) there is no new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could 
not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the FSEIR was 
certified, showing that: 

i) the Irvington Station Modifications will have one or more significant effects not 
discussed in the FSEIR; 
ii) significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 
shown in the FSEIR; 
iii) mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible 
would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce significant effects 
of the Irvington Station Modifications but the project proponent declines to adopt 
the mitigation measure or alternative; or 
iv) mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those 
analyzed in the FSEIR would substantially reduce significant effects on the 
environment but the project proponent declines to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative; and 

2) Adopts the lrvington Station Modifications as considered in Addendum 2; and 
3) Authorizes staff to implement the Irvington Station Modifications, subject to funding 
availability as identified and secured by the City of Fremont. 

Attachment: Addendum 2 
FSEIR, FEIR and First Addendum are located here: 
https://www.bart.gov/about/projects/wsx/environmental 

4 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: August 14, 2019 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: FASTER Bay Area Overview 

As was mentioned at the June 13, 2018 Board meeting, a coalition of policy groups, led by the Bay 
Area Council, SPUR, and the Silicon Valley Leadership Group, are considering a transformational 
transportation funding measure - called FASTER Bay Area - that could be brought to Bay Area 
voters as early as November 2020. The proponents are evaluating a nine-county measure that could 
raise up to $100 billion (in the year of expenditure dollars) over 40 years. They have been interested 
in big, transformational projects that better connect jobs to housing through a more integrated 
transit system, and have begun to engage with transit district general managers, Congestion 
Management Agencies, MTC, and key stakeholders. 

At the August 22, 2019 Board meeting, the FASTER Bay Area proponents and BART staff will co
present an overview for discussion purposes. 

Please contact Val Menotti, Chief Planning & Development Officer, at (510) 287-4 794 should you 
have any questions. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Executive Staff 

Robert M. Powers 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMO RA.ND UM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: August 15, 2019 

FROM: Independent Police Auditor 

SUBJECT: Update re Revised Citizen Oversight Model Implementation 

As required by the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model) Chapter 3-01, the Office of the 
Independent Police Auditor (OIP A) engaged the OIR Group in January 2017 to conduct a review 
and evaluation of the BART oversight system intended to determine whether there was a need to 
adjust the system to improve its continued performance. The OIR Group completed its review in 
June 2017 and submitted a report to the Board of Directors (Board) including 54 recommendations 
for improvements. Over the course of two meetings in March and April 2018 the Board voted to 
implement 50 of the recommendations and requested a report from OIP A, the Chief of Police, and 
the General Manager to review the implementation process and fiscal impact of the revised Model. 
The revised Model was ratified by the Board at its June 28, 2018 meeting. 

Please refer to the attached OIP A Impact Assessment Matrix, which includes the language of each 
OIR Group recommendation that was incorporated into the revised Model and/or resulted in 
adjustments to BART Police Department (BPD) policies and/or OIP A internal practices. 
Generally, OIPA has seen a workload increase in some areas, requiring some shifting of priorities 
and some redistribution of responsibilities within the department, but very few recommendations 
have been deemed impractical to implement at this time using available OIPA resources. 

In the year since OIP A began working with BPD and revising BPD policies and OIP A practices 
to comply with the requirements of the revised Model, there has been no significant direct fiscal 
impact to OIPA and we did not exceed our budget during the 2018-2019 fiscal year despite some 
atypical expenses related to staff training, production of informational materials, and community 
outreach efforts. 

OIP A will defer to the General Manager to report whether bis department has experienced any 
fiscal impact from the implementation of the revised Model and related adjustments to policy and 
practice, buf discussions with the General Manager indicate that there has been no notable impact. 
BPD replied to OIPA inquiries regarding fiscal impact by stating that the changes to the Model 
have served to bolster transparency and accountability with no significant fiscal impact to the 
Police Department. The Office of the General Counsel (OGC) was also engaged in the 
incorporation of the implemented recommendations into the final language of the revised Model 
and experienced no fiscal impact beyond that engagement and effort by OGC staff. 

Though not specifically requested by the Board, it stands to reason that there has been some fiscal 
impact to the Office of the District Secretary (DSO) as that department has absorbed the staff 
support function for the BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB), including the addition of 

1 



a Principal Administrative Analyst (PAA) to perform those functions. 1 The DSO has estimated 
substantial annual related costs of approximately $10,000 including BPCRB member travel. to an 
annual conference (this $3500 line item will be ported from OIPA's budget), BPCRB Clipper 
Cards, BPCRB meeting refreshments, BPCRB signage and office supplies, DropBox document 
management/transmission accounts, and annual BPCRB membership fees to the National 
Association for Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement (NACOLE). The DSO is also paying 
overtime for two staff members to attend monthly BPCRB meetings. As a practical matter, DSO 
staff and managers other thari the PAA have spent time becoming familiar with BPCRB processes 
and files, including the Citizen Oversight Model. 

The Board also requested an opportunity to revisit the 4 OIR Group recommendations that were 
deferred and not implemented in 2018. These deferred recommendations include the following: 

Recommendation #1: The Model should be .revised to make clear that the scope of OIPA's 
authority extends to non-sworn employees of BART PD and to all potential misconduct involving 
sworn officers whether on or off duty. 

• Because OIP A is not authorized to independently investigate complaints of misconduct 
related to non-sworn BPD employees, we have deferred all complaints identifying BPD 
Fare Inspectors, Community Service Officers, and Dispatchers to the BPD Internal Affairs 
Division (IA) for investigation. OIP A continues to monitor those referred IA investigations 
to ensure that they are timely, thorough, fair, and objective. OIP A is not currently 
authorized to independently investigate any allegation of off-duty misconduct but retains 
the authority to review any administrative investigation conducted by IA, which could 
include review of off-duty conduct. 

Recommendation #3: Should OIP A move to . real-time monitoring, it should be involved in 
decisions regarding whether a matter should be forwarded to the District Attorney for criminal 
review, and the appropriate scoping of an investigation. 

• As a practical matter, OIP A is engaged in the real-time monitoring of IA investigations and 
OIP A has been and remains ethically obligated to forward information regarding any 
potentially criminal conduct to the District Attorney via the BPD chain of command, 
therefore implementation of this recommendation would have no impact on current 
practices. 

Recommendation #12: When a concluded investigation does not result in a sustained finding; 
OIP A should offer the complainant the opportunity to view any video account of the incident. 

• Though this would result in significant additional work for OIP A related to the 
maintenance of confidentiality (e.g. video redaction, audio redaction), changes to state law 
resulting from SB 1421 and AB 748 have increased public access to video related to 
significant uses of force and other sustained allegations of misconduct. 

Recommendation #22: The Model should be revised to require BART to apprise OIPA of any 
offers to settle cases after discipline has been imposed and provide the Auditor an opportunity for 
consultation. The Model should provide the Auditor the opportunity to appeal any intention to 

1 The addition of the PAA bas also enabled the DSO to provide support to the Transit Safety Advisory Committee. 

2 



settle the matter to the General Manager should the Auditor find that the settlement would amount 
to a serious erosion of individual accountability. The Model should require the Auditor to publicly 
report on any cases settled at the post-discipline stage and whether OIPA agreed with the decision 
to settle. 

• Implementation of this recommendation would provide the District an opportunity to 
collect the impressions of the Auditor in a limited number of circumstances, and any public 
reporting would not run afoul of either officers' privacy protections or O IP A' s requirement 
to maintain confidentiality of records where appropriate. 

The color-coded Impact Assessment Matrix mentioned above is attached hereto for your reference 
and convenience. If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me at 510-8 7 4-74 71. 

Russell G. Bloom 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 

3 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

Board of Directors 

Jeana Zelan Peterson 

DATE: August 13, 2019 

SUBJECT: Amendment to Money Purchase Pension Plan 

Attached please find a resolution to amend the District's Money Purchase Pension Plan to 
provide for additional contributions on behalf of the General Manager in accordance with the 
Board's direction at its July 25, 2019 meeting. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers (w/attachrnents) 
AGM, Administration (w/attachrnents) 

Jeana Zelan Peterson 

Motion: Adoption of the attached resolution "In the Matter of An Amendment to the Money 
Purchase Pension Plan." 

EMPDEN 120024.2 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

In the Matter of An 
Amendment to the Money 
Purchase Pension Plan 

Resolution No. ----

WHEREAS, at its July 25, 2019 meeting, the Board expressed its wish to provide 
additional contributions to the Money Purchase Pension Plan on behalf of the General Manager 
equal to $30,000 per year, provided the General Manager makes the maximum deferral 
contributions to the District' s Deferred Compensation Plan under Internal Revenue Code 
Sections 457(e)(15) and (18); and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 7507 requires that adoption of a 
retirement benefit change occur no less than two weeks after the actuarial impact upon future 
annual costs is made public at a public meeting; and 

WHEREAS, at the July 25, 2019 meeting it was publicly disclosed that the actuarial 
impact upon future annual costs to the District of this change will not exceed $30,000 per year; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the attached 
Amendment No. 14 to the February 1, 2013 Restatement of the Money Purchase Pension Plan, 
effective August 26, 2019, which adds subsection (f) to current Section 3.01 , and authorizes the 
Board President to sign the amendment on behalf of the Board. 

Adopted: _____ ________ _ 

EMPBEN 119831.2 



AMENDMENT FOURTEEN TO THE 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MONEY PURCHASE PENSION PLAN 
(As Restated Effective February 1, 2013) 

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Money Purchase Pension Plan (as 
Restated Effective February 1, 2013) (the "Plan") is hereby amended, effective August 26, 2019, 
as follows: 

Subsection (f) of Section 3.01 is added as follows: 

(f) On behalf of the General Manager appointed July 25 , 2019, an additional amount 
equal to $30,000 per year. The Employer contribution described in this subsection 
(f) shall be contributed to the General Manager's Plan Account ratably for each 
payroll period occurring during the Plan Year; provided, however, in the event the 
General Manager terminates employment during the Plan Year, the remaining 
balance of such contribution for such year shall be contributed in a lump-sum 
amount for the General Manager's final payroll period. Furthermore, such 
contribution is conditioned on the General Manager electing to defer to the San 
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District's Deferred Compensation Plan, for 
each Plan Year, the maximum annual applicable dollar amount described in 
Internal Revenue Code Sections 457(e)(15) and (18) (the "Maximum Deferral 
Amount"). In the event the General Manager does not, for any Plan Year, defer to 
the Deferred Compensation Plan the Maximum Deferral Amount, then any 
Employer contribution described in this subsection (f), for such Plan Year, shall 
be forfeited from the General Manager's Plan Account. 

The foregoing Amendment No. Fourteen to the Plan is adopted this __ day of August, 2019. 

EMPBEN 119832.4 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA 
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

By:-----------
Its: Board President 





Proposed Fee for 
Unsolicited Proposals for  
Property Development: 
Public Hearing


August 22, 2019
BART Board of Directors







Presentation Overview


1. New Unsolicited Proposal 
Review Fee – Public 
Hearing


2. Board Action on Fee will be 
under a separate agenda 
item (in conjunction with 
TOD Policy Amendment)


1BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department







Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee


• Board approval and noticed public hearing 
required 


• Board approved similar review fees in 2006
• Permit applications, Plan review, and Easements


• $149 hourly fee calculated using current 
salary/benefits for staff involved in review 
(including overhead)


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department
2







Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee: 
Calculation


• $149 per hour fee calculated using two data points:   
1.  Salary Costs 


• FY 20 salary base and fringe rates for employee classifications 
involved in reviewing Unsolicited Proposals (weighted by estimated 
involvement) 


• Results in an average employee cost of $112 per hour


2. Cost Allocation Plan Percentage Calculation (CAP Rate)
• Calculated to determine overhead costs
• Can vary year to year
• 33% has been approved by the FTA 
• $149 per hour = $112 (weighted salaries) x 1.33 (CAP rate)


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department
3







Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee: 
Calculation Continued


• Fee will be updated every fiscal year using the effective 
salary information
• Employee classifications, weighting, and CAP rate will remain stable


• Fee collection process and other related information to be 
presented later in this meeting (TOD Policy Amendment)


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department
4





		Slide Number 1

		Presentation Overview

		Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee

		Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee: Calculation

		Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee: Calculation Continued






Quarterly Service Performance 
Review


Fourth Quarter, FY 2019
April - June, 2019


Engineering & Operations Committee
August 22, 2019


1







2







3


SUMMA RY CHART 4TH QUA RTER FY 2019 
PERFORM ANCE INDICATORS CURRENT QUARTER PRIOR QTR ACTUALS YEAR TO DATE 


LA ST THIS QTR 
UPDATED 08/1 5/1 9 ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS QUA RTER LA ST YEAR A CTUAL STANDARD STATUS 


Average Riders hip - Wee kday 426 ,697 423 ,385 MET 404 ,136 416 ,7 06 414,131 416 ,371 NOT MET 
Customers on Time 


Peak 91.49 % 94 .00 % NOT MET 90.84 % 93 .29 % 91 .72 % 94.00% NOT MET 
Da ily 92 .05 % 94 .00 % NOT MET 91 .97 % 94 .18 % 92.72 % 94.00% NOT MET 


Trains on Time 
Peak 85 .75 % N/A N/A 84.79 % 90 .28 % 87.21 % N/A N/A 
Da ily 87 .72 % 91 .00 % NOT MET 88.73 % 91 .20% 89.45 % 91 .0% NOT MET 


Peak Period Trans bay Car Throughput 
A M Pea k 97 .27 % 97 .50 % NOT MET 96.15% 95 .95 % 94.35% 97.50% NOT MET 
PM Pea k 98 .29 % 97 .50 % MET 98.37 % 96 .60% 96.22 % 97.50% NOT MET 


Car Ava il ab ility at 4 AM (0400) 644 631 MET 625 589 618 6 13 MET 
M ean Time Betw een Service De lays 5,138 4,000 MET 4,7 56 4,663 4,93 1 4,000 MET 
Elevat ors in Service 


Station 98 .60 % 98 .00 % MET 97.97 % 98.40% 98.71 % 98.00% MET 
Ga rage 97 .67 % 97 .00 % MET 96.10% 98 .03% 96.99 % 97.00% NOT MET 


Escalators in Service 
Street 94.4 3% 93.00 % MET 90.03% 86 .70% 91 .99 % 93.00% NOT MET 
Platform 96 .93% 96.00 % MET 96.73% 95 .33% 97.03% 96.00% MET 


A utomatic Fare Co ll ection 
Gates 99 .38% 99 .00 % MET 99.57 % 99 .57 % 99.52 % 99.00% MET 
V endors 98 .72 % 95 .00 % MET 98.67% 98 .22 % 98.71 % 95.00% MET 


Waysid e Train Contr ol System 1.73 1.00 NOT MET 0.68 0.78 0.96 1.00 MET 
Computer Contro l Syste m 0.16 0.08 NOT MET 0.24 3 0.027 0.198 0.08 NOT MET 
Traction Pow er 0.23 0.20 NOT MET 0.10 0.06 0.21 0.20 NOT MET 
Trac k 0.27 0.30 MET 0.08 0.01 0.14 0.30 MET 
Transportation 0.58 0.50 NOT MET 0.41 0.54 0.51 0.50 NOT MET 
En vironm e nt Outs id e Stations 0.00 N/A N/A 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A N/A 
En vironm e nt In sid e Stations 0.00 N/A N/A 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A N/A 
Station Vandalism 0.00 % N/A N/A 0.00 % 0.00% 0.00% N/A N/A 
Station Se rvices 0.00 N/A N/A 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A N/A 
Train P.A. Ann ounce m e nts 0.00 N/A N/A 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A N/A 
Train Exte rior App ea rance 0.00 N/A N/A 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A N/A 
Train In te rior Appea ranc e 0.00 % N/A N/A 0.00 % 0.00% 0.00% N/A N/A 
Train Te rn perature 0.00 % N/A N/A 0.00 % 0.00% 0.00% N/A N/A 
Cust om er Com plain ts 


Com plaints per 100,000 Passe nge r Trip s 13.14 5.07 NOT MET 12 .17 7.80 11.42 5.07 NOT MET 


Safety 
Station lncid ents /M illion Patrons 1.16 2.00 MET 2.19 1.20 1.59 3.75 MET 
V ehicle Incid ents /Milli on Patrons 0.46 0.60 MET 0.63 0.36 0.4 7 0.95 MET 
Los t Tim e Inju r ies /Illn esses /Pe r OSHA 7.25 6 .50 NOT MET 3.96 5.88 5.95 7.00 MET 
OSHA -Reco rd abl e lnjuri es /llln es s es /Pe r OS HA 11 .07 12.00 MET 8.07 8.34 10.84 12.65 MET 
Un sche duled Door Openin gs /Million Ca r Miles 0.200 0.200 NOT MET 0.050 0.200 0.100 0.250 MET 
Ru le Violat ion s Summ ary/Milli on Car Miles 0.300 0.250 NOT MET 0.260 0.200 0.25 3 0.3 75 MET 


Po lic e 
BA RT Po lice Prese nc e 12.5% 11 .9% MET 10.4 % 10.5% 0.0% 0.0% N/A 
Quality of Life pe r mill ion rid ers 77.02 N/A N/A 92 .32 44.59 63 .97 N/A N/A 
Crim es Again st Pe rson s pe rm illion ride rs 4.03 2.00 NOT MET 4.55 3.87 4.36 2.00 NOT MET 
Auto Bur glaries pe r 1,000 parkin g spa ces 4.90 6 .00 MET 6 .07 5.88 5.04 7.00 MET 
Auto The ft s p er 1,000 parkin g spaces 1.30 2.25 MET 1.39 2.42 1.32 4.13 MET 
Po lice Response T im e per Eme rge ncy Incid ent (Minutes ) 4.94 5.00 MET 5.08 4.36 5.12 5.00 NOT MET 
Bik e Th efts (Quarter ly Tota l and YTD Quarter ly Average ) 76 100.00 MET 41 99 74 125.00 MET 


LEGEND: Goa l m e Goa l not m et but within 5% Goa l not m et by m ore th an 







4







5


FY19 Fourth Quarter Overview


 Ridership has begun to flatten this quarter with a 2.3% increase over last 
quarter


 On time performance during the peak was up slightly while all day 
performance was down slightly


 ROW Equipment Reliability: Car, and Track, met goal; Computer Systems, 
Train Control and Traction Power did not meet goal


 Station Equipment Availability: Elevators (Station and Garage), Escalators 
(Platform and Street), Ticket Machines and Fare Gates met goal


 Passenger Environment: Station Cleanliness, Grounds, Vandalism, 
Customer Service, Train Cleanliness, Fare Evasion and Homeless 
improved; Train Temperature declined slightly


 Total Customer Complaints increased 15.6% over last quarter 







eBART Service Report


6


Av
er


ag
e 


W
ee


kd
ay


 T
rip


s







Customer Ridership


7


370,000


380,000


390,000


400,000


410,000


420,000


430,000


440,000


450,000


460,000


470,000


480,000


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


Av
er


ag
e 


W
ee


kd
ay


 T
rip


s


Total ridership decreased by 1.6% compared to same quarter last year
Average weekday ridership (413,362) was up 2.3% over last quarter
Core weekday ridership down by 0.7% from same quarter last year
SFO Extension weekday ridership down by 1.7% from same quarter last year
Average peak ridership up by 1.2% compared to same quarter last year
During Q4 there was one Top 10 Ridership Day:


• 6/30/2019: 234,891 – SF Pride Celebration & Parade; Giants vs. Diamondbacks 
(#9 Sunday)


Saturday and Sunday down by 5.6% and 8.1%, respectively, from same quarter last year





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


413031


425647


416795


425218


420286


426130


412411


416977


415370


416829


432972


427370


426829


428400


399130


422284


385570


395107


395860


396889


407339


413115


409516


407311


414411


408197


412165


410842


413525


411550





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			413031			425647


			May			416795			425218


			June			420286			426130


			July			412411			416977


			Aug			415370			416829


			Sept			432972			427370


			Oct			426829			428400


			Nov			399130			422284


			Dec			385570			395107


			Jan			395860			396889


			Feb			407339			413115


			Mar			409516			407311


			April			414411			408197


			May			412165			410842


			June			413525			411550












On-Time Service - Customer


8


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


O
n-


Ti
m


e 
Se


rv
ic


e-
Cu


st
om


er


 Goal not met – Actual 92.05% / Goal 94.00%
 Up .08% from prior quarter, down 2.3% from this quarter last year


1 14-Jun-19 B.F Merge I-Lk False Occupancy (0916-1737) Equip 198
2 10-Jun-19 M,K & C Lines Congestion(Multiple Delays From F.O.'s Systemwide)(1540-1933) Congestion 95
3 24-Jun-19 Lake Merritt Trainline(FOTF Post Brake In)(0925-1254) Vehicle 88
4 20-Jun-19 Daly City BPD Hold (Weapon Suspect)(1536-1815) People 70
5 11-Jun-19 L15 I-Lock Track Dip(Track Inspection)(1421 - EOR) Equip 60
6 08-Apr-19 E.C.D. Norte Train Struck A Person On Trackway(0718-1135) People 58
7 06-Jun-19 W. Oakland Gas Line Leak (None BART Construction Off Property)(1434-1743) PG&E 57
8 10-Jun-19 Rich. Yd. Routing (Switch)(1515-2111) Equip 56
9 12-Jun-19 L15 I-Lock Track (Rail Kink)(Rail Replacement)(0351-2323) Equip 54


10 23-Apr-19 Daly City False Occupancy(TC Room is Hot)(1706 - 2111) Equip 53





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


0.9478333333


0.95


0.9501935484


0.95


0.9271333333


0.95


0.9423870968


0.94


0.9281034483


0.94


0.9368076923


0.94


0.935


0.94


0.9271333333


0.94


0.9361935484


0.94


0.9350967742


0.94


0.9035714286


0.94


0.9189310345


0.94


0.9339


0.94


0.9238064516


0.94


0.9037


0.94





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			0.9478333333			0.95


			May			0.9501935484			0.95


			June			0.9271333333			0.95


			July			0.9423870968			0.94


			Aug			0.9281034483			0.94


			Sept			0.9368076923			0.94


			Oct			0.935			0.94


			Nov			0.9271333333			0.94


			Dec			0.9361935484			0.94


			Jan			0.9350967742			0.94


			Feb			0.9035714286			0.94


			Mar			0.9189310345			0.94


			April			0.9339			0.94


			May			0.9238064516			0.94


			June			0.9037			0.94












On-Time Service - Train


9


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


O
n-


Ti
m


e 
Se


rv
ic


e 
-T


ra
in


 Goal not met – Actual 87.7% / 91% Goal
 Down 1.14% from prior quarter, down 3.9% from this quarter last year
 40.4% of late trains were late due to multiple small delays, each under 5 minutes


POLICE ACTIONS 23.0%of delayed trains
TRAIN CONTROL 17.8%of delayed trains
TRANSPORTATION 6.0%of delayed trains
VANDALISM 5.8%of delayed trains
PATRON ILL 5.7%of delayed trains
CONGESTION 4.7%of delayed trains
PERSON ON TRACKWAY 3.6%of delayed trains
MULTIPLE CAUSE 3.0%of delayed trains
TRACK 2.6%of delayed trains
TRACTION POWER 2.4%of delayed trains





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


0.9164177512


0.92


0.9220899199


0.92


0.8973327688


0.92


0.9157916842


0.91


0.9021055783


0.91


0.921260274


0.91


0.9085341365


0.91


0.8836142522


0.91


0.9099680171


0.91


0.9041987914


0.91


0.8760533078


0.91


0.8797295032


0.91


0.8991068475


0.91


0.8901646447


0.91


0.840870161


0.91





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			0.9164177512			0.92


			May			0.9220899199			0.92


			June			0.8973327688			0.92


			July			0.9157916842			0.91


			Aug			0.9021055783			0.91


			Sept			0.921260274			0.91


			Oct			0.9085341365			0.91


			Nov			0.8836142522			0.91


			Dec			0.9099680171			0.91


			Jan			0.9041987914			0.91


			Feb			0.8760533078			0.91


			Mar			0.8797295032			0.91


			April			0.8991068475			0.91


			May			0.8901646447			0.91


			June			0.840870161			0.91












Car Equipment - Reliability


10


2500


3000


3500


4000


4500


5000


5500


6000


6500


7000


7500


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


M
ea


n 
Ti


m
e 


Be
tw


ee
n 


Se
rv


ic
e 


De
la


ys
 (H


ou
rs


)


 Goal met – Actual 5,138 hours / Goal 4,000 hours
 Record year for  fleet reliability; MTBSD at 5200 hours





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


4804


4000


5043


4000


4240


4000


4915


4000


4845


4000


5387


4000


4910


4000


4302


4000


5331


4000


4253


4000


5089


4000


5051


4000


5216


4000


6743


4000


4057


4000





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			4804			4000


			May			5043			4000


			June			4240			4000


			July			4915			4000


			Aug			4845			4000


			Sept			5387			4000


			Oct			4910			4000


			Nov			4302			4000


			Dec			5331			4000


			Jan			4253			4000


			Feb			5089			4000


			Mar			5051			4000


			April			5216			4000


			May			6743			4000


			June			4057			4000












Car Equipment – Availability @ 0400 hours


11


475


500


525


550


575


600


625


650


675


700


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


N
um


be
r o


f C
ar


s


 Goal met – Actual 644 / Goal 631 (Average for Quarter) 
 85 FOTF cars conditionally accepted (34 D cars & 51 E cars)
 5th FOTF Train (Orange Line) started in May 2019





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


586.7666666667


595


595.7741935484


595


585.1333333333


595


579.935483871


595


585.8064516129


595


590.8333333333


603


614.935483871


603


606.4666666667


601


631.7419354839


604


640.064516129


606


630.9642857143


627


605.1935483871


627


649.5666666667


627


650.5483870968


633


632.6


633





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			586.7666666667			595


			May			595.7741935484			595


			June			585.1333333333			595


			July			579.935483871			595


			Aug			585.8064516129			595


			Sept			590.8333333333			603


			Oct			614.935483871			603


			Nov			606.4666666667			601


			Dec			631.7419354839			604


			Jan			640.064516129			606


			Feb			630.9642857143			627


			Mar			605.1935483871			627


			April			649.5666666667			627


			May			650.5483870968			633


			June			632.6			633












Wayside Train Control System


12


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results
Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal not met – Actual 1.73 / Goal 1.00
 Short circuit at Bay Fair resulted in 198 late trains on June 14
 Heat Issues contributed to increased failures in June


Includes False Occupancy & Routing, Delays Per 100 Train Runs





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


0.49


1


0.67


1


1.19


1


0.78


1


1.08


1


0.43


1


0.41


1


1.15


1


0.41


1


0.81


1


0.58


1


0.64


1


1.29


1


1.07


1


2.84


1





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			0.49			1


			May			0.67			1


			June			1.19			1


			July			0.78			1


			Aug			1.08			1


			Sept			0.43			1


			Oct			0.41			1


			Nov			1.15			1


			Dec			0.41			1


			Jan			0.81			1


			Feb			0.58			1


			Mar			0.64			1


			April			1.29			1


			May			1.07			1


			June			2.84			1












13


Includes Coverboards, Insulators, Third Rail Trips, Substations, Delays Per 100 Train Runs


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal not met – Actual .23 / Goal .2
 Multiple Insulator Failures on M-Line contributed to Quarter performance
 Replaced 1000 feet of 3rd rail and 100 Insulators on M-line


Traction Power 





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


0.05


0.2


0.01


0.2


0.11


0.2


0.06


0.2


0.06


0.2


0.01


0.2


0.71


0.2


0.51


0.2


0.15


0.2


0.08


0.2


0.04


0.2


0.17


0.2


0.29


0.2


0.05


0.2


0.36


0.2





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			0.05			0.2


			May			0.01			0.2


			June			0.11			0.2


			July			0.06			0.2


			Aug			0.06			0.2


			Sept			0.01			0.2


			Oct			0.71			0.2


			Nov			0.51			0.2


			Dec			0.15			0.2


			Jan			0.08			0.2


			Feb			0.04			0.2


			Mar			0.17			0.2


			April			0.29			0.2


			May			0.05			0.2


			June			0.36			0.2












Track


14


Includes Rail, Track Tie, Misalignment, Switch, Delays Per 100 Train Runs


0.0
0.1
0.2
0.3
0.4
0.5
0.6
0.7
0.8


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun


Results


Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal met – Actual .27 / Goal .30
 One Heat Related Issues on the L-Line (Rail Kink)
 Rail Replacement Program on Schedule





Chart1


			April			Jan


			May			Feb


			June			Mar


			July			April


			Aug			May


			Sept			June


			Oct			July


			Nov			Aug


			Dec			Sept


			Jan			0.3


			Feb			0.3


			Mar			0.3


			Apr			0.3


			May			0.3


			Jun			0.3





Results


Goal


0.03


0.3


0.01


0.3


0


0.3


0.03


0.3


0.37


0.3


0.01


0.3


0


0.3


0.01


0.3


0.21


0.3


0


0.19


0.04


0.01


0.03


0.76





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Jan			0.13			0.3


			Feb			0.00			0.3


			Mar			0.00			0.3


			April			0.03			0.3


			May			0.01			0.3


			June			0.00			0.3


			July			0.03			0.3


			Aug			0.37			0.3


			Sept			0.01			0.3


			Oct			0.00			0.3


			Nov			0.01			0.3


			Dec			0.21			0.3


			Jan			0.00			0.3


			Feb			0.19			0.3


			Mar			0.04			0.3


			Apr			0.01			0.3


			May			0.03			0.3


			Jun			0.76			0.3












Computer Control System


15


Includes ICS computer & SORS, Delays per 100 train runs


0.0
0.1
0.2
0.3
0.4
0.5
0.6
0.7
0.8
0.9
1.0
1.1
1.2


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal not met – Actual 0.16 / Goal 0.08
 Loss of power to network switches at Colma Station due to human 


error on April 30
 Communications link hardware (circuit board) failure on May 10





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


0.02


0.08


0.03


0.08


0.03


0.08


0.02


0.08


0.06


0.08


0


0.08


0.01


0.08


1.05


0.08


0.01


0.08


0.03


0.08


0.04


0.08


0.66


0.08


0.24


0.08


0.15


0.08


0.1


0.08





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			0.02			0.08


			May			0.03			0.08


			June			0.03			0.08


			July			0.02			0.08


			Aug			0.06			0.08


			Sept			0			0.08


			Oct			0.01			0.08


			Nov			1.05			0.08


			Dec			0.01			0.08


			Jan			0.03			0.08


			Feb			0.04			0.08


			Mar			0.66			0.08


			April			0.24			0.08


			May			0.15			0.08


			June			0.1			0.08












Transportation


16


Includes Late Dispatches, Controller-Train Operator-Tower Procedures and Other Operational Delays 
Per 100 Train Runs


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results
Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal not met – Actual .58 / Goal .5
 Slight increase in procedural errors – Transportation reorganization 


will allow for better focus on training, compliance and mitigation





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


0.73


0.5


0.49


0.5


0.4


0.5


0.4


0.5


0.51


0.5


0.59


0.5


0.42


0.5


0.7


0.5


0.51


0.5


0.2


0.5


0.53


0.5


0.51


0.5


0.43


0.5


0.46


0.5


0.86


0.5





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			0.73			0.5


			May			0.49			0.5


			June			0.4			0.5


			July			0.4			0.5


			Aug			0.51			0.5


			Sept			0.59			0.5


			Oct			0.42			0.5


			Nov			0.7			0.5


			Dec			0.51			0.5


			Jan			0.2			0.5


			Feb			0.53			0.5


			Mar			0.51			0.5


			April			0.43			0.5


			May			0.46			0.5


			June			0.86			0.5












Elevator Availability - Stations


17


80%


85%


90%


95%


100%


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Active


Goal


All


 Goal met - Actual 98.6% / Goal 98%
 One major outage at Walnut Creek due to failure of underground hydraulic 


lines





Chart1


			April			April			0.987


			May			May			0.98


			June			June			0.985


			July			July			0.991


			Aug			Aug			0.992


			Sept			Sept			0.988


			Oct			Oct			0.993


			Nov			Nov			0.99


			Dec			Dec			0.994


			Jan			Jan			0.978


			Feb			Feb			0.965


			Mar			Mar			0.962


			April			April			0.966


			May			May			0.994


			June			June			0.994





Active


Goal


All


0.987


0.98


0.98


0.98


0.985


0.98


0.991


0.98


0.992


0.98


0.988


0.98


0.993


0.98


0.99


0.98


0.994


0.98


0.988


0.98


0.977


0.98


0.974


0.98


0.97


0.98


0.994


0.98


0.994


0.98





Sheet1


			Month			Active			Goal			All


			April			0.987			0.98			0.987


			May			0.98			0.98			0.98


			June			0.985			0.98			0.985


			July			0.991			0.98			0.991


			Aug			0.992			0.98			0.992


			Sept			0.988			0.98			0.988


			Oct			0.993			0.98			0.993


			Nov			0.99			0.98			0.99


			Dec			0.994			0.98			0.994


			Jan			0.988			0.98			0.978


			Feb			0.977			0.98			0.965


			Mar			0.974			0.98			0.962


			April			0.97			0.98			0.966


			May			0.994			0.98			0.994


			June			0.994			0.98			0.994












Elevator Availability - Garage


18


 Goal met – Actual 97.7% / Goal 97%  


80%


85%


90%


95%


100%


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results
Goal





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


0.972


0.98


0.984


0.98


0.985


0.98


0.967


0.97


0.953


0.97


0.971


0.97


0.973


0.97


0.968


0.97


0.994


0.97


0.982


0.97


0.953


0.97


0.948


0.97


0.956


0.97


0.987


0.97


0.987


0.97





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			0.972			0.98


			May			0.984			0.98


			June			0.985			0.98


			July			0.967			0.97


			Aug			0.953			0.97


			Sept			0.971			0.97


			Oct			0.973			0.97


			Nov			0.968			0.97


			Dec			0.994			0.97


			Jan			0.982			0.97


			Feb			0.953			0.97


			Mar			0.948			0.97


			April			0.956			0.97


			May			0.987			0.97


			June			0.987			0.97












Escalator Availability - Street


19


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


 Goal met – Actual 94.4% / Goal 93%
 Major repairs this quarter include:


 Montgomery station for a bull gear replacement
 Embarcadero station for a step chain replacement
 12th St station for a step chain replacement





Chart1


			April			April			April


			May			May			May


			June			June			June


			July			July			July


			Aug			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar			Mar


			April			April			April


			May			May			May


			June			June			June





Results


Goal


Weighted Availability


0.873


0.95


0.86


0.849


0.95


0.8159


0.879


0.95


0.8515


0.89


0.93


0.8678


0.904


0.93


0.8723


0.901


0.93


0.8699


0.936


0.93


0.9002


0.918


0.93


0.8933


0.956


0.93


0.9567


0.911


0.93


0.8805


0.89


0.93


0.85


0.9


0.93


0.8591


0.952


0.93


0.918


0.945


0.93


0.9122


0.936


0.93


0.9103





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal			Weighted Availability


			April			0.873			0.95			0.86


			May			0.849			0.95			0.8159


			June			0.879			0.95			0.8515


			July			0.89			0.93			0.8678


			Aug			0.904			0.93			0.8723


			Sept			0.901			0.93			0.8699


			Oct			0.936			0.93			0.9002


			Nov			0.918			0.93			0.8933


			Dec			0.956			0.93			0.9567


			Jan			0.911			0.93			0.8805


			Feb			0.89			0.93			0.85


			Mar			0.9			0.93			0.8591


			April			0.952			0.93			0.918


			May			0.945			0.93			0.9122


			June			0.936			0.93			0.9103












Escalator Availability - Platform


20


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


Weighted Availability


 Goal met – Actual 96.9% / Goal 96%
 Major repairs included:


 12th Street for a bull gear replacement
 Montgomery for a step crash repair





Chart1


			April			April			April


			May			May			May


			June			June			June


			July			July			July


			Aug			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar			Mar


			April			April			April


			May			May			May


			June			June			June





Results


Goal


Weighted Availability


0.968


0.96


0.9736


0.944


0.96


0.9583


0.948


0.96


0.9556


0.961


0.96


0.9623


0.986


0.96


0.9747


0.961


0.96


0.9584


0.976


0.96


0.9658


0.972


0.96


0.9664


0.978


0.96


0.9746


0.979


0.96


0.9722


0.969


0.96


0.97


0.954


0.96


0.9451


0.967


0.96


0.9478


0.969


0.96


0.9625


0.972


0.96


0.9732





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal			Weighted Availability


			April			0.9680			0.9600			0.97


			May			0.9440			0.9600			0.96


			June			0.9480			0.9600			0.96


			July			0.9610			0.9600			0.96


			Aug			0.9860			0.9600			0.97


			Sept			0.9610			0.9600			0.96


			Oct			0.9760			0.9600			0.97


			Nov			0.9720			0.9600			0.97


			Dec			0.9780			0.9600			0.97


			Jan			0.9790			0.9600			0.97


			Feb			0.9690			0.9600			0.97


			Mar			0.9540			0.9600			0.95


			April			0.9670			0.9600			0.95


			May			0.9690			0.9600			0.96


			June			0.9720			0.9600			0.97












AFC Gate Availability


21


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


 Goal met  - Actual 99.4% / Goal 99.0%
 Installed pilot duplex mod at Richmond
 Continuing cinch mod to assist in fare evasion 





Chart1


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June





Results


Goal


0.996


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.995


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.995


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.9955


0.99


0.995


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.995


0.99


0.9919


0.99


0.9942


0.99


0.9953


0.99





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			0.996			0.99


			May			0.996			0.99


			June			0.995			0.99


			July			0.996			0.99


			Aug			0.995			0.99


			Sept			0.996			0.99


			Oct			0.996			0.99


			Nov			0.9955			0.99


			Dec			0.995			0.99


			Jan			0.996			0.99


			Feb			0.996			0.99


			Mar			0.995			0.99


			April			0.9919			0.99


			May			0.9942			0.99


			June			0.9953			0.99












AFC Vendor Availability


22


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar


Results


Goal


 Goal met  - Actual 98.7% / Goal 95.0%
 Continue to add clipper load machines in the paid area of 


stations – 30 Stations complete
 Clipper only pilot active at 19th Street and Embarcadero 


Stations 





Chart1


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar





Results


Goal


0.968


0.95


0.968


0.95


0.971


0.95


0.977


0.95


0.983


0.95


0.9866


0.95


0.987


0.95


0.986


0.95


0.987


0.95


0.987


0.95


0.9886


0.95


0.988


0.95


0.987


0.95


0.9871


0.95


0.986


0.95





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Jan			0.968			0.95


			Feb			0.968			0.95


			Mar			0.971			0.95


			April			0.977			0.95


			May			0.983			0.95


			June			0.9866			0.95


			July			0.987			0.95


			Aug			0.986			0.95


			Sept			0.987			0.95


			Oct			0.987			0.95


			Nov			0.9886			0.95


			Dec			0.988			0.95


			Jan			0.987			0.95


			Feb			0.9871			0.95


			Mar			0.986			0.95












Environment - Outside Stations


23


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• FY19 Q1 changes in the PES questionnaire: Appearance of 
BART Landscaping was combined with Walkways and Entry 
Plaza


• Significant increase in Appearance Of BART Landscaping, 
Walkways & Entry Plaza Just Outside Station 


• Will establish goal for FY20


FY18 Q4 FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY19 Q4
Environment Outside Stations (composite) 62.6% 65.3% 63.2% 65.4%
Appearance Of BART Landscaping, Walkways & 
Entry Plaza Just Outside Station (weight 67%) 58.1% 61.6% 58.5% 62.4%


BART Parking Lot Cleanliness (weight 33%) 74.2% 71.7% 72.7% 72.6% 71.4%


indicates a statistically significant increase from the prior quarter







Environment - Inside Stations


24


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• FY19 Q1 changes in the PES questionnaire: added Cleanliness of 
Concourse, Escalator Cleanliness, Stairwell Cleanliness; dropped
Cleanliness of Other Areas


• Significant increases in Cleanliness of Station Platform, Cleanliness of 
Concourse, Stairwell Cleanliness and Elevator Cleanliness


• Will establish goal for FY20


FY18 Q4 FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY19 Q4
Environment Inside Stations (composite) 62.2% 63.8% 61.3% 64.2%
Cleanliness Of Station Platform (weight 40%) 63.3% 67.6% 68.8% 65.7% 69.8%
Cleanliness Of Concourse  (weight 25%) 62.7% 64.1% 63.1% 65.3%
Escalator Cleanliness  (weight 10%) 63.7% 66.0% 64.6% 66.2%
Stairwell Cleanliness  (weight 7.5%) 56.8% 59.9% 57.1% 60.2%
Elevator Cleanliness  (weight 10%) 42.8% 63.7% 57.9% 53.3% 58.1%
Restroom Cleanliness  (weight 7.5%) 35.2% 43.4% 44.6% 41.7% 40.6%


indicates a statistically significant increase from the prior quarter







Station Vandalism


25


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• FY19 Q1 changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating 
Excellent and Good


• Will establish goal for FY20


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY19 Q4


Station kept free of graffiti
71.6% 73.8% 71.4% 72.4%







Train Interior Cleanliness


26


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• FY19 Q1 Changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating 
Excellent and Good


• Significant increase in Train Interior Cleanliness 
• Will establish goal for FY20


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY19 Q4


Train Interior Cleanliness (composite) 70.8% 68.3% 67.1% 69.6%


Train Interior Cleanliness (weight 65%) 61.7% 58.3% 57.1% 61.1%


Train Interior kept free of graffiti (weight 35%) 87.7% 86.9% 85.5% 85.6%


indicates a statistically significant increase from the prior quarter







Train Temperature


27


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• FY19 Q1 changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating 
Excellent and Good


• Significant decrease in Comfortable Temperature Onboard 
train


• Will establish goal for FY20


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY19 Q4


Comfortable Temperature Onboard Train 79.7% 80.9% 83.5% 81.2%


indicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter







Customer Service


28


• New Performance Indicator
• Customer service from Station Agent replaces Availability of 


Brochures and Availability of Station Agents 
• PA Announcements for Transfer, Next Station and Destination 


combined into one attribute 
• Will establish goal for FY20


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY19 Q4


Customer Service (composite, all weighted equally) 74.9% 74.9% 73.9% 74.5%


Customer service from Station Agent (if used today) 69.8% 69.8% 69.4% 68.4%
Onboard next stop, destination and transfer 
announcements 76.5% 77.7% 75.7% 77.2%
Onboard delay announcements (if this train was 
delayed today) 78.5% 77.3% 76.7% 77.8%







Homelessness 


29


• New Performance Indicator
• Building historical data  
• Will establish goal for FY20


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY19 Q4
How well BART is addressing 
homelessness 23.7% 23.4% 22.8% 23.4%







Homeless Counts in the Station


BART Marketing & Research 30


Counts are conducted at the four downtown SF stations on the second Tuesday of each 
month at three time periods (6:00am-8:00AM*, 2:00pm-4:00pm and 8:00pm-10:00pm). 
The graph represents the totals for the three time periods.


*Starting in Feb 2019, morning counts are conducted one hour later than before due to the change in station opening time


142


111


78


93


87


119
111


85


107
116


107


65
51


47


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


140


160


May 18 Jun. 18 Jul.  18 Aug. 18 Sept. 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec. 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19


Downtown San Francisco Station Counts
May 2018-June 2019







Fare Evasion


• New Performance Indicator
• Building historical data
• Will establish goal for FY20


31


Ratings guide: 
Scale:
• Yes
• No
• I don’t know


Rating = % Yes


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2 FY19 Q3 FY19 Q4
Rider saw someone not pay 
their fare 18.1% (Yes) 17.0% (Yes) 20.2% (Yes) 19.4% (Yes)







Customer Complaints


32


Complaints Per 100,000 Customers


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


14


16


18


April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June


Results


Goal


Pe
r 1


00
,0


00
 C


us
to


m
er


s


 Total complaints increased by 543 (15.6%) from last quarter
 Complaints increased in all category except for Service, “Apps”, “Bike 


Program”, “Biohazard”, “Quality of Life”, and “Service”, which decreased
 Compliments increased to 174 from 147 last quarter, and 137 same 


quarter last year





Chart1


			April			5.07


			May			5.07


			June			5.07


			July			5.07


			Aug			5.07


			Sept			5.07


			Oct			5.07


			Nov			5.07


			Dec			5.07


			Jan			5.07


			Feb			5.07


			Mar			5.07


			April			5.07


			May			5.07


			June			5.07





Results


Goal


6.944539361


7.2853179388


9.1561034334


9.2167610306


9.4458500433


11.5809047105


8.3888957253


9.3792315174


13.6848499929


10.8272387753


13.4993903989


12.2618855952


11.3921434142


11.7219059448


16.4372637652





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			April			6.944539361			5.07


			May			7.2853179388			5.07


			June			9.1561034334			5.07


			July			9.2167610306			5.07


			Aug			9.4458500433			5.07


			Sept			11.5809047105			5.07


			Oct			8.3888957253			5.07


			Nov			9.3792315174			5.07


			Dec			13.6848499929			5.07


			Jan			10.8272387753			5.07


			Feb			13.4993903989			5.07


			Mar			12.2618855952			5.07


			April			11.3921434142			5.07


			May			11.7219059448			5.07


			June			16.4372637652			5.07












Patron Safety - Station


33


Station Incidents per Million Patrons


0


1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results


Benchmark


St
at


io
n 


In
ci


de
nt


s/
M


ill
io


n 
Pa


tr
on


s


 Goal met, Actual 1.16 / Goal 2.0





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Benchmark


1.2


5.5


1.73


5.5


1.28


5.5


2.19


2


1.16


2





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 4			1.2			5.5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			1.73			5.5


			FY2019 Qtr 2			1.28			5.5


			FY2019 Qtr 3			2.19			2


			FY2019 Qtr 4			1.16			2












Patron Safety - Vehicle


34


Vehicle Incidents per Million Patrons


0


1


2


3


4


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results


Benchmark


Ve
hi


cl
e 


In
ci


de
nt


s/
M


ill
io


n 
Pa


tr
on


s


 Goal met, Actual .46 / Goal .60





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Benchmark


0.36


1.3


0.46


1.3


0.31


1.3


0.63


0.6


0.46


0.6





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 4			0.36			1.3


			FY2019 Qtr 1			0.46			1.3


			FY2019 Qtr 2			0.31			1.3


			FY2019 Qtr 3			0.63			0.6


			FY2019 Qtr 4			0.46			0.6












Employee Safety


35


Lost Time Injuries/Illnesses per OSHA Incidence Rate


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


14


16


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results


Benchmark


Lo
st


 T
im


e 
In


ju
rie


s/
Ill


ne
ss


 p
er


 O
SH


A 
Ra


te


 Goal not met, Actual 7.25 / Goal 6.50





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Benchmark


5.88


7.5


5.74


7.5


6.84


7.5


3.96


6.5


7.25


6.5





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 4			5.88			7.5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			5.74			7.5


			FY2019 Qtr 2			6.84			7.5


			FY2019 Qtr 3			3.96			6.5


			FY2019 Qtr 4			7.25			6.5












Employee Safety


36


OSHA-Recordable Injuries/Illnesses per OSHA Incidence Rate


0


4


8


12


16


20


24


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Re sults


Benc hmark


O
SH


A 
Re


co
rd


ab
le


 In
ju


rie
s/


Ill
ne


ss
es


/O
SH


A 
Ra


te


 Goal met, Actual 11.07 / Goal 12





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Benchmark


8.34


13.3


11.21


13.3


12.99


13.3


8.07


12


11.07


12





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 4			8.34			13.3


			FY2019 Qtr 1			11.21			13.3


			FY2019 Qtr 2			12.99			13.3


			FY2019 Qtr 3			8.07			12


			FY2019 Qtr 4			11.07			12












Operating Safety


37


Unscheduled Door Openings per Million Car Miles


0.000


0.100


0.200


0.300


0.400


0.500


0.600


0.700


0.800


0.900


1.000


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results


Benchmark


U
ns


ch
ed


ul
ed


 D
oo


r O
pe


ni
ng


s/
M


ill
io


n 
Ca


r M
ile


s


 Goal met, Actual 2 / Goal 2 





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Benchmark


0.2


0.3


0.1


0.3


0.05


0.3


0.05


0.2


0.2


0.2





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 4			0.2			0.3


			FY2019 Qtr 1			0.1			0.3


			FY2019 Qtr 2			0.05			0.3


			FY2019 Qtr 3			0.05			0.2


			FY2019 Qtr 4			0.2			0.2












Operating Safety


38


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results


Benchmark


Rule Violations per Million Car Miles


Ru
le


 V
io


la
tio


ns
 p


er
 M


ill
io


n 
Ca


r M
ile


s


 Goal not met, Actual .26 / Goal .25





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Benchmark


0.2


0.5


0.3


0.5


0.15


0.5


0.26


0.25


0.3


0.25





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 4			0.2			0.5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			0.3			0.5


			FY2019 Qtr 2			0.15			0.5


			FY2019 Qtr 3			0.26			0.25


			FY2019 Qtr 4			0.3			0.25












BART Police Presence 


39


10.5% 11.0%
11.0% 10.4%


12.5%


0%


10%


20%


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results


Goal (11%
Avg.)


Ratings Guide:
• Yes
• No
• I Don’t Know
Rating = % Yes


 Goal met


Police Presence Composite (All items equally weighted) 12.5%
Police seen on train 7.2%
Police seen outside the station 17.2% 
Police seen in the station 11.6%
Police seen on train after 7:00PM and Weekends 7.7%
Police seen outside the station after 7:00PM and Weekends 17.7%
Police seen in the station after 7:00PM and Weekends 13.2%


indicates a statistically significant increase from the prior quarter







Quality of Life Contacts*


40


0


50


100


150


200


250


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results


En
fo


rc
em


en
t A


ct
io


n 
of


 
Cr


im
es


 p
er


 M
ill


io
n 


Tr
ip


s


*Quality of Life Violations: Disturbing the Peace, Vagrancy, Public Urination,
Fare Evasion, Loud Music/Radios, Smoking, Eating/Drinking and Expectoration


 Quality of Life Contacts are down from the last quarter but up 
from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


44.5903126896


40.3755237816


46.1663724627


92.3233797168


77.0206357175





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 4			44.5903126896			0


			FY2019 Qtr 1			40.3755237816			0


			FY2019 Qtr 2			46.1663724627			0


			FY2019 Qtr 3			92.3233797168			0


			FY2019 Qtr 4			77.0206357175			0












Crimes Against Persons


41


Crimes Against Persons include: Homicide, Rape, Robbery and Aggravated Assaults


0


1


2


3


4


5


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results
Goal


Cr
im


es
 p


er
 M


ill
io


n 
Tr


ip
s


 Goal not met, Actual 4.03 / Goal 2
 The number of incidents per Million trips are down from last quarter 


but up from same quarter last year





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Goal


3.867527121


2


3.8281493375


2


5.0180839633


2


4.5474287833


2


4.0293814569


2





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 4			3.867527121			2


			FY2019 Qtr 1			3.8281493375			2


			FY2019 Qtr 2			5.0180839633			2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			4.5474287833			2


			FY2019 Qtr 4			4.0293814569			2












Auto Burglary


42


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


FY2018 Q4 FY2019 Q1 FY2019 Q2 FY2019 Q3 FY2019 Q4


Results


Goal


Cr
im


es
 p


er
 1


00
0 


Pa
rk


in
g 


Sp
ac


es


 Goal met, Actual 4.9 / Goal 6.0
 The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are down from 


last quarter and down from same quarter last year





Chart1


			FY2018 Q4			FY2018 Q4


			FY2019 Q1			FY2019 Q1


			FY2019 Q2			FY2019 Q2


			FY2019 Q3			FY2019 Q3


			FY2019 Q4			FY2019 Q4





Results


Goal


5.88


8


4.39


8


4.7919293821


8


6.07


6


4.89702


6





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Q4			5.88			8


			FY2019 Q1			4.39			8


			FY2019 Q2			4.7919293821			8


			FY2019 Q3			6.07			6


			FY2019 Q4			4.89702			6












Auto Theft


43


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


FY2018 Q4 FY2019 Q1 FY2019 Q2 FY2019 Q3 FY2019 Q4


Results


Goal


Cr
im


es
 p


er
 1


00
0 


Pa
rk


in
g 


Sp
ac


es


 Goal met, Actual 1.3 / Goal 2.25
 The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are down from 


last quarter and from same quarter last year





Chart1


			FY2018 Q4			FY2018 Q4


			FY2019 Q1			FY2019 Q1


			FY2019 Q2			FY2019 Q2


			FY2019 Q3			FY2019 Q3


			FY2019 Q4			FY2019 Q4





Results


Goal


1.95


6


1.66


6


1.3871374527


6


0.92


2.25


1.30307


2.25





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Q4			1.95			6


			FY2019 Q1			1.66			6


			FY2019 Q2			1.3871374527			6


			FY2019 Q3			0.92			2.25


			FY2019 Q4			1.30307			2.25












Average Emergency Response Time


44


0


2


4


6


8


10


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results
Goal


Re
sp


on
se


 T
im


e 
(in


 M
in


ut
es


)


 Goal  met, Actual 4.94 / Goal 5
 Average Emergency Response Time was down from prior quarter 


and slightly up from the same quarter last year





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Goal


4.36


5


5.31


5


5.15


5


5.08


5


4.94


5





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 4			4.36			5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			5.31			5


			FY2019 Qtr 2			5.15			5


			FY2019 Qtr 3			5.08			5


			FY2019 Qtr 4			4.94			5












Bike Theft


45


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2 FY2019 Qtr 3 FY2019 Qtr 4


Results
Goal


To
ta


l  
Q


ua
rt


er
ly


 B
ik


e 
Th


ef
ts


 Goal met, Actual 76 / Goal 100
 There were 76 bike thefts, up by 35 from last quarter.





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2


			FY2019 Qtr 3			FY2019 Qtr 3


			FY2019 Qtr 4			FY2019 Qtr 4





Results


Goal


99


150


122


150


57


150


41


100


76


100





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 4			99			150


			FY2019 Qtr 1			122			150


			FY2019 Qtr 2			57			150


			FY2019 Qtr 3			41			100


			FY2019 Qtr 4			76			100










		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		eBART Service Report

		Customer Ridership

		�On-Time Service - Customer�

		�On-Time Service - Train�

		Car Equipment - Reliability

		Car Equipment – Availability @ 0400 hours

		Wayside Train Control System

		Traction Power 

		Track

		Computer Control System

		Transportation

		Elevator Availability - Stations

		Elevator Availability - Garage

		Escalator Availability - Street

		Escalator Availability - Platform

		AFC Gate Availability

		AFC Vendor Availability

		�Environment - Outside Stations�

		Environment - Inside Stations

		Station Vandalism

		Train Interior Cleanliness

		Train Temperature

		Customer Service

		Homelessness 

		Homeless Counts in the Station

		Fare Evasion

		Customer Complaints

		Patron Safety - Station

		Patron Safety - Vehicle

		Employee Safety

		Employee Safety

		Operating Safety

		Operating Safety

		BART Police Presence 

		�Quality of Life Contacts*�

		�Crimes Against Persons�

		�Auto Burglary�

		Auto Theft

		Average Emergency Response Time

		Bike Theft






BART TOD Policy 
Amendment and New 
Review Fee: Unsolicited 
Proposals for  Property 
Development


August 22, 2019
BART Board of Directors







Presentation Overview


1. Background
2. Proposed TOD Policy 


Amendment: Unsolicited 
Proposals


3. New Unsolicited Proposal 
Review Fee


4. Board Action


1BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department







Unsolicited Proposals for 
Property Development


• Currently no specific review process exists
• BART receives inquiries on a regular basis


• Pro: can respond to innovative and/or market driven proposals
• Con: disrupts workplan and redirects from other priorities


• Recommendation:
• Board adopt a TOD Policy amendment to address Unsolicited 


Proposals
• Board adopt a new fee to recover staff costs associated with 


review 
• Board authorize the General Manager to enter into 


reimbursement agreements to recover costs associated with 
review


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department 2







Unsolicited Proposal – Proposed 
Policy Amendment


• Modify Strategy A: “Manage Resources Strategically to Support 
Transit-Oriented Development:”
4*. (NEW): Develop a procedure that will allow BART to 
respond to unsolicited proposals for property development on 
BART-owned land. Although BART does not encourage 
unsolicited proposals, they can be a valuable means for BART 
to partner with local communities and/or the development 
community to produce innovative or unique developments that 
deliver benefits in excess of what is typically provided by the 
market.


*existing number 4 becomes number 5


3BART Planning Development and Construction Department







Unsolicited Proposal Two Step 
Review Process


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department 4


Step 1 
Technical 
Review 
(~40 staff 


hours)


Step 2 
Substantive 


Review
(150-250 staff 


hours)


Proposal 
Rejected


Unsolicited 
Proposal 


Submitted to 
BART


Reject 
Proposal


Competitive 
RFP/RFQ


Direct staff 
to negotiate 


ENA 
(Exclusive 
Negotiation 
Agreement)


Board Notification


Board Notification


Board Notification


Board 
ActionMeets criteria


Does not meet criteria







Step 1 (Technical Review)
Review Criteria


• Aligned with BART’s TOD guidelines, performance targets 
and policies


• Staff capacity exists
• Proposer qualifications (experience & financial capability)
• No long term operational need for site or specified need 


can be accommodated within project
• Analysis of proposal vs. current zoning or AB2923
• Meets four or more of defined criteria


• Community benefits, ridership, innovation, partnerships, adjacent 
land, regional use, affordable housing, catalytic project, 
concentration of jobs, etc.


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department 5







Step 2 (Substantive Review) 
Review Criteria


• Provides opportunity not readily available through the market
• Innovative or unique
• Robust transit and community benefits, including ridership
• High quality design & significant multimodal access 


improvements
• Robust community outreach plan and City support
• Significant ridership
• Economic and regulatory feasibility
• Financial offer
• Proven development team experience and capitalization
• Small business participation


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department 6







Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee 
and Reimbursement Agreement


• $149 hourly fee calculated using current 
salary/benefits for staff involved in review (including 
overhead)


• Board approved similar review fees in 2006
• Permit applications, Plan review, and Easements


• Reimbursement agreement required
• Ensures all expenses associated with review are reimbursed to BART
• $25,000 deposit required at each review step


• When deposit account balance falls to $5,000, more funds will be 
requested


• All unused funds will be returned at the end of each step unless 
Proposer chooses to roll funds over to next step


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department
7







Recommended Motions


1. Amend the Transit-Oriented Development Policy


2. Adopt the resolution for Unsolicited Proposal review 
fee


3. Authorize General Manager to enter into reimbursement 
agreements


BART Planning, Development, and Construction Department 8





		Slide Number 1

		Presentation Overview

		Unsolicited Proposals for Property Development

		Slide Number 4

		Unsolicited Proposal Two Step Review Process

		Step 1 (Technical Review)�Review Criteria

		Step 2 (Substantive Review) Review Criteria

		Unsolicited Proposal Review Fee and Reimbursement Agreement

		Recommended Motions






H.R. 1313 Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: H.R. 1313 - Transit Security Grant Program Flexibility Act 


SPONSOR(S): Representatives King (R-NY) and Payne (D-NJ) 


BACKGROUND: 
The Transit Security Grant Program (TSGP) provides funds to eligible publicly owned operators of public 
transportation systems (intra-city bus, commuter bus, ferries, and all forms of passenger rail) to protect 
critical surface transportation infrastructure and the traveling public from acts of terrorism and to increase 
the resilience of transit infrastructure. H.R. 1313 is a direct response to feedback received from TSGP 
recipients, who have noted that the period of performance and the time in which grant funds must be 
expended has hindered their ability to complete some projects. The legislation is bipartisan and passed the 
House on May 15, 2019. The bill is now in the Senate awaiting action. 


PURPOSE:· \ 
The TSGP Flexibility Act would extend the current length of time in which grant funds must be expended. 
Specifically, the bill would grant transit agencies 36.months rather than the current 24 months to use TSGP 
funds. Tn:e period would be at least 55 months for security improvements to public transportation systems 
that are in final design or under construction or for stations and other public transportation infrastructure, 
including those owned by state or local governments. H.R. 1313 would also allow grants provided for 
operational purposes to be used for backfilling staff as part of security training. The Government 
Accountability Office would be required to conduct a comprehensive review and assessment of the TSGP 
within a year of the bill's enactment and complete a second report within five years. 


BART IMPACT: 
Previously, BART has asked for extensions when using TSGP grants for capital projects. In general, 
complying with the procurement process as required by California law, the complex permit and letter of 
concurrence process, and the complexity of engineering, design, and installation on certain projects has 
necessitated extensions. 


KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
None. 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
BART supported an identical bill last session, H.R. 549, which was not taken up in the Senate. 


STATUS: 
Passed the House on 5/15/19; Referred to the Senate Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental 


. Affairs. 


RECOMMENDATION: 
l&I Support 


Analysis completed on 8/8/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 







AUTHENTICATED9 
U.S. GOVERNMENT 


INFORMATION 


GPO 


116TH CONGRESS H R 1313 
1ST SESSION • • 


IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES 


MAY 15, 2019 


IIB 


Received; read twice and referred to the Committee on Homeland Security and 
Govermnental Affairs 


AN ACT 
To amend the Implementing Recommendations of the 9/ 


11 Commission Act of 2007 to clarify certain allowable 


uses of funds for public transportation security assist


ance grants ~ncl establish periods of performance for 


such grants, and for other purposes. 


l Be it enacted by the Senate cind House of Representa-


2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 







2 


1 SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE. 


2 This Act may be cited as the "Transit Security Grant 


3 Program Flexibility Act" . 


. 4 SEC. 2. ALLOWABLE USES OF FUNDS FOR PUBLIC TRANS-


5 PORTATION SECURITY ASSISTANCE GRANTS. 


6 Subparagraph (A) of section 1406(b)(2_) of the Imple-


7 menting Recommendations of the 9/11. Commission Act of 


8 2007 (6 U.S.C. 1135(b)(2); Public Law 110-53) is 


9 amended by inserting "and as~ociated backfill" after "se-


10 curi ty training''. 


11 SEC. 3. PERIODS OF PERFORMANCE FOR PUBLIC TRANS-


12 PORTATION SECURITY ASSISTANCE GRANTS. 


13 Section 1406 of the Implementing Recommendations 


14 of the 9/11 Commission Act of 2007 (6 U.S.C. 1135; Pub-


15 lie Law 110-53) is amended-


16 (1) by redesignating subsection (m) as sub-


17 section (n); and 


18 (2) by inserting after subsection (1) the fol-


19 lo-wing new subsection: 


20 "(m) PERIODS OF PERFORMANCE.-


21 "(1) IN GENERAL.-Except as provided in para-


22 graph (2), funds provided pursuant to a grant 


23 awarded under this section for a use specified in 


24 subsection (b) shall remam available for nse by a 


25 grant recipient for a period of not fewer than 3 6 


26 months. 


HR 1313 RFS 







3 


1 "(2) EXCEPTION.-Funcls provided pursuant to 


2 a grant awarded under this section for a use speci-


3 fied in subparagraph (M) or (N) of subsection (b) ( 1) 


4 shall remain available for use by a grant recipient 


5 for a period of not fewer than 55 months.". 


6 SEC. 4. GAO REVIEW. 


7 (a) IN GENERAL.-The Comptroller General of the 


8 United States shall conduct a review of the public trans-


9 portation security assistance grant program under section 


10 1406 of the Implementing Recommendations of the 9/11 


11 Commission Act of 2007 (6 U.S.C. 1135; Public Law 


12 110-53). 


13 (b) SCOPE.-The review required under paragraph 


14 ( 1) shall include the following: 


15 (1) An assessment of the type of projects funcl-


16 eel under the public transportation security grant 


17 program referred to in such paragraph. 


18 (2) An assessment of the manner in which such 


19 projects address threats to public transportation in-


20 frastructure. 


21 (3) An assessment of the impact, if any, of this 


22 Act (including the amendments made by this Act) on 


23 types of projects funded under the public transpor-


24 tation security assistance grant program. 


HR 1313 RFS 







4 


1 ( 4) An assessment of the management and ad-


2 ministration of public transportation security assist-


3 ance grant program funds by gTantees. 


4 ( 5) Recommendations to improve the manner in 


· 5 which public transportation security assistance grant 


6 program funds address ·vulnerabilities in public 


7. transportation infrastructure. 


8 (6) Recommendations to improve the manage-


9 ment and administration of the public transportation 


10 security assistance grant progTam. 


11 (c) REPORT.-Not later than 1 year after the elate 


12 of the enactment of this Act and again not later than five 
I 


13 years after such elate of enactment, the Comptroller Gen-


14 eral shall submit to the Committee on Homeland Security 


15 of the House of Representatives and the Committee on 


16 Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs of the Sen-


17 ate a report on the review required under this section. 


18 SEC. 5. DETERMINATION OF BUDGETARY EFFECTS. 


19 The budgetary effects of this Act, for the purpose of 


20 complying with the Statutory Pay-Ks-You-Go Act of 2010, 


21 shall be determined by reference to the latest statement 


22 titled "Budgetary Effects of PAYGO Legislation" for this 


23 Act, submitted for printing in the CongTessional Record 


24 by the Chairman of the Committee on the Budget of the 


HR 1313 RFS 







5 


1 · House of Representatives, provided that such statement 


2 has been submitted prior to the vote on passage. 


Passed the House of Representatives May 14, 2019. 


Attest: 


HR 1313 RFS 


CHERYL L. JOHNSON, 


Clerk. 







H.R. 2864 Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: H.R. 2864 - Rebuild America Act of 2019 


SPONSOR(S): Rep. Blumenauer (D-OR) 


BACKGROUND: 
In December 2015, Congress passed the Fixing America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, which 
authgrized $70 billionin spending for federal transit, passenger rail, and highway programs through FY20. 
Historically, the Highway Trust Fund (HTF) has financed federal spending for highways and mass transit 
through revenue regenerated by taxes on gasoline and diesel fuel. The federal gas tax was last adjusted in 
1993 and since then the HTF has needed significant transfers of general fund revenues to remain solvent. 
According.to the U.S. Department of Transportation, the nation faces a $90 billion backlog in public transit 
state of good repair, with the need to invest a minimum of $26.4 billion per year on maintenance and to 
accommodate future ridership growth. While the FAST Act provides modest increases in investment, it does 
not fully address the nation's state of good repair needs or long-term solvency of the HTF. 


PURPOSE: 
H.R. 2864 would raise federal gasoline and diesel taxes by five cents a year over the next five years and index 
them to inflation after 2024. The bill would also increase allocations to the HTF Mass Transit Account by one 
cent a year over the next five years and index it to inflation after 2024. This increased funding would provide 
the foundation for long-term solvency of the HTF and help ensure that investments in transportation 
infrastructure are prioritized. Lastly, the bill signals Congress' intentions to replace the gas tax with a more 
stable funding source for U.S. infrastructure needs over the next decade. 


BART IMPACT 
H.R. 2864 is aligned with the Board's adopted goals of advocating for robust public transit funding within a 
federal surface transportation reauthorization bill. BART currently receives funding from various programs 
authorized by the FAST Act including Urbanized Area Formula and State of Good Repair, which could see 
increases in current funding levels. BART also supports a long-term authorization at funding levels no less 
than what is in year five of the FAST Act and restoring HTF solvency through new revenue sources. 


KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
Support: National Association of Counties, American Traffic Safety Services Association, U.S. Chamber of 
Commerce, American Trucking Associations. No known opposition. 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
In the 115th Congress, BART supported H.R. 1664, A Penny for Progress by Rep. Defazio (D-OR), which 
aimed to restore HTF solvency through indexing the gas tax to inflation capped at 1.5 cents per year. 


STATUS 
Introduced 5/21/19; Referred to.House Committee on Way and Means. 


RECOMMENDATION: 
~ Support 


Analysis completed on 8/8/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 







AUTHENTICATEDV} 
U.S. GOVERNMENT 


INFORMATION 


CPO 


116TH CONGRESS H R 2864 
1ST SESSION • • 


To amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 to increase the excise tax 
on gasoline, diesel, and kerosene fuels. 


( 


IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 


MAY 21, 2019 


Mr. BLUMENAUER introduced the following bill; which was referred to the 
Committee on Ways and Means 


A BILL 
To amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 to increase 


the excise tax on gasoline, diesel, and kerosene fuels. 


I 


1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-


2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 


3 SECTION, 1. SHORT TITLE. 


4 This Act may be cited as tqe ''Rebuild America Act 


5 of 2019". 


6 SEC. 2. SENSE OF CONGRESS. 


7 It is the sense of Congress that by 2029 the gas tax 


8 should be repealed and replaced with a more sustainable, 


9 stable funding source. 







2 


1 SEC. 3. TAX ON MOTOR FUELS. 


2 (a) GASOLINE OTHER THAN AVIATION GASOLINE.-


3 Section 4081(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code of 


4 1986 is amended to read as follows: 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


"(i) in the case of gasoline other than 


· aviation gasoline-


" (I) for ta.-x: imposed before 2020, 


18.3 cents per gallon, 


'' (II) for tax imposed during 


2020, 23.3 cents per gallon, 


'' (III) for tax imposed during 


2021, 28.3 cents per gallon, 


'' (IV) for tax imposed during 


2022, 33.3 cents per gallon, 


'' (V) for tax imposed during 


2023, 38.3 cents per gallon, and 


"(VI) for tax imposed after 2023, 


18 43.3 cents per gallon,". 


19 (h) DIESEL FUEL OR KEROSENE.-Section 


20 4081(a)(2)(A)(iii) of such Code is amended to read as fol-


21· lows: 


22 


23 


24 


25 


•HR 2864 1H 


"(iii) in the case of diesel fuel or ker-


osene-


"(I) for tax imposed before 2020, 


24.3 cents per gallon, 







i II .,_,-,., 


3 


1 ''(II) for tax imposed during 


2 2020; 29.3 cents per gallon, 


3 "(III) for tax imposed during 


4 2021, 34.3 cents per gallon, 


5 ''(IV) for tax imposed during 


,f!;/., 2022, 39.3 cents per gallon, 


7 ''(V) for tax imposed during 


8 2023, 44.3 cents per gallon, and 


9 "(VI) for tax imposed after 2023, 


10 49.3 cents per gallon.". 


11 (c) INCREASE FOR INFLATION.-Section 4081(a)(2) 


12 of such Code is amended by adding at the encl the fol-


13 lowing: 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


"(E) ADJUSTMENT FOR INFLATION.-In 


the case of any calendar year beginning after 


2024, the rates of tax contained in clauses (i) 


and (iii) of subparagraph (A) shaU each be in


creased by an amount equal to-


•HR 2864 IH 


" ( i) such rate, multiplied by 


"(ii) the cost of living adjustment de


termined under section 1 ( f) ( 3) for the cal


endar year, determined by substituting 


'calendar year 2023' for 'calendar year 


2016' in subparagraph (A)(ii) thereof. 


/ 







4 


1 Any increase under the preceding sentence shall 


2 he rounded to the nearest O .1 cents.". 


3 (cl) DIESEL-WATER FUEL EMULSION.-Section 


4 408l(a)(2)(D) of such Code is amended by striking" '19.7 


5 cents' for '24.3 cents'" and inserting "a rate equal to 71 


6 percent of the rate in effect under such subparagraph 


7 (without regard to this subparagraph)". 


8 (e) TERMINATION.-Section 4081(cl)(.1) of such Code 


9 is amended by striking "September 30, 2022" and insert-


10 ing "December 31, 2029". 


11 (f) ALLOCATION IN ACCOUNTS IN HIGI-IWAY TRUST. 


12 FUND.-


13 (1) IN GENERAL.-Section 9503(e)(2)(A) of the 


14 Internal Revenue Code of 1986 is amended to read 


15 as follows: 


16 '' (A) except as otherwise provided in this 


17 sentence-


18 "(i) 2.86 cents per gallon with respect 


19 to taxes imposed during calendar years he-


20 fore 2020, 


21 "(ii) 3.86 cents per gallon ·with re-


22 spect to taxes imposed during calendar 


23 year 2020, 


•HR 2864 IH 







1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


'6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


5 


"(iii) 4.86 cents per gallon with re-


spect to taxes imposed during calendar 


year 2021, 


" ( iv) 5.86 cents per gallon ·with re-


spect to taxes imposed during calendar 


year 2022, 


"(v) 6.86 cents per gallon with respect 


to ta,"X:es imposed during calendar year 


2023, and 


"(vi) 7.86 center per gallon with re


spect to taxes imposed after calendar year 


2023,". 


(2) ADJUSTMENT FOR INFLATION.-Section 


14 9503(e) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 is 


15 amended by adding at the encl the following new 


16 paragraph: 


17 "(6) ADJUSTMENT FOR INFLATION.-In the 


18 case of any calendar year beginning after 2024, the 


19 rate of ta,"X: contained in paragraph (2)(A) shall be 


20 increased by an amount equal to-


21 "(A) such rate, multiplied by 


22 "(B) the cost of living adjustment cleter-


23 mined under section l(f)(3) for the calendar 


24 year, determined by substituting 'calendar year 


•HR 2864 IH 







6 


1 2023' for 'calendar year 2016' in subparagraph 


2 (A) (ii) thereof. 


3 Any increase under the preceding sentence shall be 


4 rounded to the nearest O .1 cents.". 


5 (g) EFFECTIVE DATE.-The amendments made by 


6 this section shall apply to fuel removed, entered, or sold 


7 after December 31, 2018. 


8 SEC. 4. FLOOR STOCKS TAX. 


9 (a) IMPOSITION OF TAX.-In the case of taxed fuel 


10 to which a qualified person holds title on January 1, 2020, 


11 there is hereby imposed on such fuel a tax at a rate of 


12 5 cents per gallon. 


13 (b) TAXED FUEL DEFINED.-The term "ta.··rnd fnel" 


14 means taxable fuel ( as such term is defined in section 


15 4083(a)(l)), other than aviation fuel, on which tax was 


16 imposed (and not credited or refunded) under section 


17 4081 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 before Janu-


18 ary 1, 2020. 


19 (c) QUALIFIED PERSON DEFINED.-For purposes of 


20 this section-


21 (1) IN GENERAL.-The term "qualified person" 


22 means a person who, on January 1, 2020, holds title 


23 to not less than 2,000 gallons of taxed fuel (other 


24 than fuel held in the tank of a motor vehicle or mo-


25 torboat) held for sale. 


•HR 2864 IH 







7 


1 (2) AGGREGATION RULE.-. For purposes of the 


2 2,000 gallon requirement, all members of the same 


3 controlled group of corporations (within the meaning 


4 of section 2 6 7 ( f)) and all persons under common 


5 control (within the meaning of section 52(b) but cle-


6 terminecl by treating an· interest of more than 50 · 


7 percent as a controlling interest) shall be treated as 


8 1 person. 


9 (cl) OTHER PROVISIONS OF LAw.-All provisions of 


10 law, including penalties, applicable with respect to the 


11 taxes imposed by section 4081 of the Internal Revenue 


12 Code of 1986 shall, insofar as applicable and not incon-


13 sistent with the provisions of this section, apply with re-


14 spect to the taxes imposed by subsection (a) to the same 


15 extent as if such taxes were imposed by such section 4081. 


0 


•HR 2864 IH 







m 
H.R. 3437 Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: H.R. 3437- Saving Transit Art Resource& Act (STAR Act) 


SPONSOR(S): Representatives Adams (D-NC), Pingree (D-ME), Kilmer (D-WA), Blumenauer (D-OR), 
Titus (D-NV), Grijalva (D-AZ), Cardenas (D-CA), Butterfield (D-NC), Garcia (D-TX) 


I 


BACKGROUND: 
Prior to 2013, federal transit law permitted the use of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grant funds for 
costs associated with including art in public transportation projects. This was one of several types of projects 
termed "transit enhancements" for which transit agencies were required to spend a certain amount of their 
FTA formula grant funds. 


Beginning in FY 2013, federal transit law no longer included art as an eligible project expense. In response 
to this change, FTA advised that while works of art not integral to a facility, such as sculptures, would no 
longer be eligible, transit agencies could continue to use FT A funds to support the employment of an artist 
as a member of a design team, or other costs associated with art, provided that the artistic elements were 
integrally related to the facility or served a functional transit-related purpose. 


With the enactment of the Fixing America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act in FY 2016, Congress 
established a new prohibition on the use of FTA funds for "incremental costs of incorporating art or non
functional landscaping into facilities, including the costs of an artist on the design team." 


PURPOSE: 
, The ST AR Act would reinstate federal flexibility that allows local transit authorities to incorporate art into 


federally-funded transit projects. 


BART IMPACT: 
In August 2015, the BART Board adopted the District's first Art in Transit Policy. The policy was amended 
in June 2018 to include a funding strategy for the art program, which includes 2% of construction costs for 
certain capital projects - mostly related to station construction, and 0.75% for certain publicly visible 
construction outside of station areas. Under the FAST Act, if any federal transportation funds are used in a 
project, art cannot be incorporated. This can and has created .complications to projects when an artist is 
brought into the design team early in a project, and subsequently federal funding is"identified as part of the 
project construction funding package. Additionally, high visibility projects that would otherwise benefit 
from art program funding are excluded from receiving funding no matter the amount or percentage of federal 
funding due to the requirement to federalize all associated project fund sources. 


BART's Art Program is based on identified best practices 'in the field of art and transportation, including 
those developed by the American Public Transportation Association (APTA). The previous federal 
allowance for art in stations supported art throughout the San Francisco and Oakland Airport extensions. 
H.R. 3437 would allow the necessary flexibility for the BART Art Program to impactfully incorporate art 
into stations and other public facing locations as envisioned in the Art Policy. 







KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
Support: Americans for the Arts Action Fund, Americans for the Arts, U.S. Conference of Mayors. 
Additionally, APTA will include support of this bill in its upcoming recommendations to its Board of 
Directors as part of the FAST Act reauthorization. No known opposition. 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
None. 


STATUS: 
Introduced on 6/24/19; Referred to the House Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure and the House 
Subcommittee on Highways and Transit. 


RECOMMENDATION: 
181 Support 


Analysis completed on 8/8/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 







AUTHENTICATED9 
U.S. GOVERNMENT 


INFORMATION 


GPO 


I 


116TH CONGRESS H R 3437 
1ST SESSION • • 


To amend title 49, United States Code, to allow certain funds to be nsed 
for incremental costs of incorporating art into facilities, and for other 
purposes. 


IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 


JUNE 24, 2019 


Ms. ADAJ.VIS (for herself, Ms. PINGREE, Mr. KILMER, Mr. BLUMENAUER, Ms. 
TITUS, and Mr. GRIJALVA) introdnced the following bill; which was re
ferred to the Committee on Transportation and Infrastrnctnre 


A BILL 
To amend title 49, United States Code, to allow certain 


1 


'· 


funds to be use<l for incremental costs of incorporating 


art into facilities, and for other purposes. 


\ 
Be it enacted by the Senate cind House of Representa-


2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 


3 SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE. 


4 This Act may he cite<l as the "Saving Transit Art 


5 Resources Act" or the "STAR Act". 


6 SEC. 2. ALLOWING ART. 


7 (a) IN GENERAL.-Section 5323(h) of title 49, 


8 United States Code, is amended-







2· 


1 ( 1) in paragraph ( 1) by inserting ''or'' after the 


2 semicolon; 


3 (2) by striking paragraph (2); and 


4 (3) by reclesignating paragraph (3) as para-


s graph (2). 


6 (b) No SPECIAL RULE.-Section 5309 of such title 


7 is amended by striking subsection (p). 


0 


•HR 3437 1H 







AB 67 (Rivas) Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: AB 67 - Homeless integrated data warehouse 


AUTHOR(S): L. Rivas (D-Los Angeles) and Chiu (D-San Francisco) 


BACKGROUND: 
In 2016; the state created the Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council (Council) made up of all state 
departments and agencies that provide services to people experiencing homelessness or at risk of 
homelessness. One of the Council's goals is to create a statewide data system that collects local data through 
Homeless Management Information Systems (HMIS), and match data on homelessness to programs 
impacting homeless recipients of state assistance, such as Medi-Cal and CalWORKs. Several other states, 
including Michigan, Connecticut, and New York have built statewide data warehouses to integrate local 
homeless data with state information and better inform policies to address homelessness. 


PURPOSE: 
AB 67, pending appropriation of funds by the Legislature, would require the Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD), in coordination with the Council, to create a statewide data warehouse to 
de~elop a composite portrayal of the homeless population in the state, as well as services currently provided 
to people who are homeless. The bill would also require HCD, in collaboration with other state agencies, to 
draft and carry out a strategy to integrate available information to provide longitudinal, cost-based studies, 
as specified. The data warehouse would need to comply with all relevant state and federal laws relating to 
privacy and personally identifying information, and participating agencies would be required to input and. 
update their data quarterly once the warehouse is completed. 


BART IMPACT: 
AB 67 supports the efforts of BART, local jurisdictions, and non-profit agencies to address the homelessness 
crisis in the Bay Area. BART currently employs a full-time Crises Intervention Coordinator and jointly 
funds homelessness outreach teams in San Francisco and Contra Costa Counties with plans to expand teams 
into Alameda and San Mateo Counties in FY20. This bill does not include direct funding opportunities for 
BART; however, the proposed data warehouse could inform BAR T's current efforts to address homelessness 
and related quality of life issues. A state database could help local homeless assistance networks improve 
collaboration, decrease administrative and program costs, determine effective intervention efforts, identify 
gaps in services, and enhance planning and policy efforts to reduce homelessness. 


KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
Support: California Apartment Association, California School of Employees Association, Housing 
California, City of Santa Monica, County of San Bernardino, Junior Leagues of California State Public 
Affairs Committee 


Opposition: None on file as of 5/17 /19 (Senate Housing Committee) 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
This legislation is a re-introduction of AB 2161 (Chiu) from 2018. BART supported the bill, which was 
held on suspense in the Senate Appropriations Committee. 







STATUS: 
Gutted and Amended on 4/11/19; Passed the Assembly Housing and Community Development Committee 
on 8-0 on 4/24/19; Passed the Assembly Appropriations Committee 16-1 on 5/16/19; Amended on 5/17/19; 
Passed the Assembly Floor 70-4 on 5/23/19; Passed the Senate Housing Committee 8-2 on 7/2/19; Amended 
on 7/5/19; Referred to the Senate Appropriations Suspense File on 8/12/19. 


RECOMMENDATION: 
181 Support 


Analysis completed on 8/13/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 







AMENDED IN SENATE JULY 5, 2019 


AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MAY 17, 2019 


AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 11, 2019 


AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY FEBRUARY 26, 2019 


CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE-2019-20 REGULAR SESSION 


ASSEMBLY BILL No. 67 


Introduc~d by Assembly Members Luz Rivas and Chiu 
(Principal coauthor: Assembly Member Quirk-Silva) 


(Coauthor: Assembly Member Gonzalez) 


December 3, 2018 


An act to add Chapter 5.9 (commencing with Section 13605) to Part 
3 of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, relating to 
homelessness. 


LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 


AB 67, as amended, Luz Rivas. Homeless integrated data warehouse. 
Existing law establishes various programs, including, among others, 


the Emergency Housing and Assistance Program, to provide assistance 
to homeless persons. Existing law also establishes the Homeless 
Coordinating and Financing Council to, among other things, create a 
statewide data system or warehouse that collects local data through 
homeless management information systems, with the ultimate goal of 
matching data on homelessness programs to programs impacting 
homeless recipients of state programs, as specified. 


This bill would require the Department of Housing and Community 
Development to create a state homeless integrated data warehouse, in 
coordination with state and local partners, including the Homeless 


95 







AB67 -2-


Coordinating and Financing Council, to develop a composite portrayal 
of the homeless population in the state and the services provided to this 
population or to those at risk of becoming homeless. The bill would 
require that the information compiled for the database include the data 
neeessary necessary, if available, to make certain findings, including, 
among other things, the number of individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness, their access to benefits, and the stated reasons for their 
homelessness .. The bill would require the department to coordinate with 
other state agencies to draft and carry out a strategy to integrate 
information to provide longitudinal, cost-based studies with relevant 
data, as specified. The bill would require the database to comply with 
all relevant state and federal-laws regarding privacy and personally 
identifying information and encourage would direct participating local 
agencies that provide serviees to homeless persons and use homeless 
management information systems to to enter into data-sharing 
agreements and collaborate with the department, as specified. The bill 
wo1.1-ld specify that these provisions would become operative if the 
Legislature appropriates sufficient funds, including funds from private 
donations if available, to the department for these purposes. 


Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. 
State-mandated local program: no. 


The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 


1 SECTION 1. Chapter 5.9 (commencing with Section 13605) 
2 is added to Part 3 of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions 
3 Code, to read: 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 


10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 


CHAPTER 5.9. HOMELESS INTEGRATED DATA WAREHOUSE 


13605. (a) The Department of Housing and Community 
Development shall do all of the following: 


( 1) Create a state homeless integrated data warehouse, in 
coordination with state and local partners, including, but not 
limited to, the Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council 
established by Section 8257, to compile data from collaborative 
agencies' Homeless Management Information Systems. This data 
warehouse shall serve the purpose of developing a composite 
portrayal of the homeless population in the state, as well as the 
services currently provided to individuals and families who are 


95 







-3- AB67 


1 homeless or who are at risk of becoming homeless and who are 
2 receiving prevention services. Information.if available, information 
3 compiled for the warehouse shall include, but not be limited to, 
4 the data necessary to determine all of the following: 
5 (A) Basic demographic information regarding individuals 
6 experiencing homelessness or who are at risk ofhomelessness.-lf 
7 available, demographie Demographic information should include 
8 ethnic and racial identity, sexual orientation, gender identity, and 
9 gender expression. 


10 (B) The number of individuals with disabilities and the number 
11 of families with a head of household experiencing a disability who 
12 have been homeless for at least one year or at least four times in 
13 the last three years. 
14 (C) Homeless individuals' access to benefits. 
15 (D) The number of individuals and families experiencing 
16 homelessness. 
17 (E) The number and entry and exit dates of individuals and 
18 families living in emergency housing. 
19 (F) The number and entry and exit dates of homeless individuals 
20 and families living in transitional housing. 
21 (G) The number and entry and exit dates of homeless individuals 
22 and families living in permanent housing. 
23 (H) Last known location or ZIP Code of homeless individuals 
24 or families when housed. 
25 (I) Stated reasons for homelessness. 
26 (J) Disability status of people experiencing homelessness. 
27 (K) Veteran status of people experiencing homelessness. 
28 (L) If a·,r-ailable, the The number of unaccompanied youth 
29 experiencing homelessness. 
30 (2) Cooperate and collaborate with each of the following state 
31 agencies, as necessary, to draft and carry out a strategy to integrate 
32 information from the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation, 
33 the State Department of Education, the State Department of Health 
34 Care Services, the State Department of State Hospitals, the State 
35 Department of Social Services, and the Department of Veterans 
36 Affairs into the warehouse, to provide longitudinal, cost-based 
37 studies to determine all of the following information: 
38 (A) The number of people imprisoned each year who were 
39 . homeless upon arrest and the cost of their imprisonment. 


95 







AB67 -4-


1 (B) The number of parolees experiencing homelessness each 
1 2 year and the cost of their parole. 


3 (C) The number of children in California schools experiencing 
4 homelessness. 
5 (D) Claims for Medi-Cal emergency department, hospital, and 
6 nursing home services among people experiencing homelessness, 
7 and the costs of those claims each year. 
8 (E) The number of ehildren reeeiving foster eare services whose 
9 family members are homeless and the cost of the foster care 


10 provided to those children each year. 
11 (E) (i) Commencing upon the statewide implementation of the 
12 Child Welfare Services-New System (CWS-NS), also known as th? 
13 Child Welfare Services-California Automated Response-°;and 
14 Engagement System (CWS-CARES), deidentified informatio'n 
15 regarding all of the following: 
16 (I) The number of parents, guardians, or former foster youth 
17 who were or are experiencing homelessness, or are at risk of 
18 becoming homeless, at any time while receiving voluntary, 
19 informal, or court-supervised child welfare services through a 
20 county child welfare agency, probation department, or an Indian 
21 tribe tha.t has entered into an agreement with the State Department 
22 of Social Services pursuant to Section I 0553.1. 
23 (II) The number of nonminor dependents who were homeless, 
24 or at risk of becoming homeless, prior to reentering foster care. 
25 (111) The total cost of providing services to the individuals 
26 described in subclauses (I) and (11) on an average, cost-per-case 
27 basis. 
28 (ii) The information collected pursuant to clause (i) shall be 
29 used by the State Department of Social Services to inform the 
30 provision of services and improve outcomes for children, youth, 
31 and families served by the child welfare system. 
32 (F) Relevant information regarding the number of people who 
33 are homeless experiencing homelessness while receiving services 
34 through programs administered by the State Department of State 
35 Hospitals, the State Department of Social Services, and the 
36 Department of Veterans Affairs, and the cost and outcomes of 
37 those services. 
38 (G) The number of people living in housing funded through 
39 programs administered by the state, including, but not limited to, 


95 


./ 







-5- AB67 


I by the Department of Housing and Community Development who 
2 were homeless upon admission. 
3 (3) Facilitate the creation of a users' group to ensure quality, 
4 relevance, and appropriate access to the integrated data. This group 
5 should include, but not be limited to, a minimum of 5 and a 
6 maximum of 15 select members of contributing federal Continuum 
7 of Care Program Collaborative Applicants. 
8 (b) The data warehouse To the extent permitted by federal law, 
9 participating agencies shall enter into data-sharing agreements 


10 or memoranda of understanding with the Department of Housing 
I I and Community Development to facilitate the sharing of data for 
12 the purposes of this section. The data warehouse, all state and 
13 local agencies, and any other person or entity with access to 
14 information in or derived from the warehouse, shall comply with 
15 all relevant state and federal laws regarding privacy and personally 
16 identifying information. information when inputting, accessing, 
17 using, disclosing, transporting, or in any other way interacting 
18 with the information or integrated data contained in, or disclosed 
19 from, the data warehouse. 
20 ( c) Upon completion of a data warehouse that includes the data 
21 specified in subdivision (a), participating agencies shall input and 
22 update its data, at a minimum, each quarter. Participating agencies 
23 shall be granted access to data contained within the data 
24 warehouse. 
25 ( d) Local agencies providing services to homeless persons that 
26 use a homeless management information system are encouraged 
27 to collaborate with the Department of Housing and Community 
28 Development in developing the data warehouse pursuant to this 
29 chapter. 
30 (e) For the purposes of this section, "homeless" has the same 
31 meaning as in Section 91. 5 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal 
32 Regulations. 
33 te} 
34 (I) This chapter shall become operative if the Legislature 
3 5 appropriates sufficient funds, including funds from private 
36 donations if available, to the department for the purposes of this 
37 section. 


0 


95 







SB 277 (Beall) Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: SB 277 -Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program: Local Partnership Program 


AUTHOR(S): Beall (D-Sa~ Jose) and Frazier (D-Fairfield) 


BACKGROUND: 
On April 6, 201 7, the Legislature passed SB 1 (Beall, Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017), otherwise known as the 
Road Repair and Accountability Act. SB 1 continuously appropriates $200 million annually to the Local 
Partnership Program (LPP), which is administered by the California Transportation Committee (CTC). The 
program provides local and regional transportation agencies that have passed sales tax measures, developer 
fees, or other imposed transportation fees with funding for road maintenance and rehabilitation, and other 
transportation improvement projects. LPP funds are currently split with 50% allocated to eligible entities 
via formula and 50% distributed through a competitive grant process in which all eligible entities can 
compete. 


PURPOSE: 
SB 277 would change the current 50/50 funding framework within the Local Partnership Program. 
Specifically, the bill would direct the CTC to separate LPP funds into two subaccounts: 


• 85% of funds would be deposited into the Local Partnership Formula (LPF) Subaccount and annually 
apportioned to eligible entities by through a prescribed formula. 


• 15% of funds would be deposited. into the Small Counties and Uniform Developer Fees 
Competitive Subaccount. The competitive grant program would be for eligible smaller agencies that 
have either approved uniform developer fees or a population under 750,000. 


SB 277 also requires the CTC, by April 1, 2020, in conjunction with transportation planning agencies and 
county transportation commissions, to develop separate guidelines for the apportionment or allocation of 
funds deposited in the LPF Subaccount and competitive subaccount. 


BART IMPACT: 
BART received approximately $1.9 million in LPP funds for FY18 and FY19. In 2018, BART submitted a 
grant application for $50 million from the LPP competitive program to help fund the Train Control 
Modernization Project but was not successful. Under the formula proposed by SB 277, BART could receive 
an increase in LPP formulaic funding, providing a more stable, on-going source of state support for the 
District. 


KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
Support: Greater Riverside Chambers of Commerce; Orange County Transportation Authority; Riverside 
County Transportation Commission; San Bernardino Associated Governments; San Bernardino County 
Transportation Authority; Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority; Self-Help Counties Coalition; 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) 


Opposition: San Luis Obispo Council of Governments; Santa Barbara County Association of Governments; 
Stanislaus Council of Governments 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
None. 







STATUS: 
Bill was substantially amended in the Assembly on 6/4/19 and again on 7/1/19; Passed the Assembly 
Transportation Committee 12-0 on 7 /8/19; Referred to the Assembly Appropriations Suspense File on 
8/14/19. 


RECOMMENDATION: 
l&I Support 


Analysis completed on 8/14/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 







AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY JULY 1, 2019 


AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY JUNE 4, 2019 


AMENDED IN SENATE MARCH 18, 2019 


SENATE BILL 


· Introduced by Senator Beall _ 
(Principal coauthor: Asse~bly ~be'rFta'zier) 


, . . ·t:): · · 1 
_._. 


February 13, 2019 


No. 277 


An act to amend Section 2032 of, to amend and repeal Section 2033 
of, and to add Section 203 3 .1 to, the Streets and Highways Code, relating 
to transportation. 


LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 


SB 277, as amended, Beall. Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program: Local Partnership Program. 


Under existing law, the California Transportation Commission 
allocates various state and federal transportation funds through specified 
state programs to local and regional transportation agencies to implement 
projects consistent with the requirements of those programs. Existing 
law cont1nuously appropriates $200,000,000 annually from the Road· 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account for allocation by the 
commission for a program commonly known as the Local Partnership 
Program to local or regional transportation agencies that have sought 
and received voter approval of taxes or that have imposed certain fees, 
which taxes or fees are dedicated solely for road maintenance and 
rehabilitation and other transportation improvement projects. Existing 
law requires the commission, in cooperation with the Department of 
Transportation, transportation planning agencies, county transportation 


96 







SB 277 -2-


commissions, and other local agencies, to develop guidelines for the 
allocation of those moneys. 


This bill would require the c6mmission to apportion these funds on 
a formula basis to those of the loeal and regional transportation agencies 
deseribed above that also . have responsibility for funding, proeuring, 
and eonstrueting transportation improvements v,rithin theirjurisdietions. 
annually deposit 85% of these funds into the Local Partnership Formula 
Subaccount, which the bill would create, and 15% of these funds in the 
Small Counties and Uniform Developer Fees Competitive Subaccount, 
which the bill would create. The bill would require the commission to 
apportion the funds in the Local Partnership Formula Subaccount 
pursuant to a specified formula to local or regional transportation 
agencies that meet certain eligibility requirements. The bill would 
require the commission to allocate funds in the Small Counties and 
Uniform Developer Fees Competitive Subaccount through a competitive 
grant program to local or regional transportation agencies that meet 
other eligibility requirements. The bill would require the commission, 
in conjunction with transportation planning agencies and county 
transportation commissions, and in consultation with other local 
agencies, to develop separate guidelines for the apportionment or 
allocation of-these the funds in each subaccount that, among other 
things, establish an apportionment formula, identify guaranteed 
minim.um. apportionments, and establish the types of eligible projects 
consistent with specified requirements. In order to receive an 
apportionment of funds.from the Local Partnership Formula Subaccount 
from the commission in a funding cycle, the bill would require an 
eligible entity to submit to the commission a list of projects proposed 
to be funded with the funds. The bill would require the commission to 
approve a project list submitted by a local or regional transportation 
agency unless a project identified in the project list is not consistent 
with the project eligibility guidelines. 


Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. 
State-mandated local program: no. 


The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 


1 · SE\TION 1. Section 2032 of the Streets and Highways Code 
2 is amended to read: 
3 2032. (a) (1) After deducting the amounts appropriated in the 
4 annual Budget Act, as provided in Section 2031.5, two hundred 


96 







-3- SB277 


1 million dollars ($200,000,000) of the remaining revenues deposited 
2 in the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account shall be set 
3 aside annually for eligible entities. The Controller shall each month 
4 set aside one-twelfth of this amount, except in fiscal year 2017-18, 
5 the Controller shall set aside one-eighth of this amount, to 
6 accumulate a total of two hundred million dollars ($200,000,000) 
7 in each fiscal year. The Controller may adjust the amount in the 
8 final month or months of each fiscal year if necessary to achieve 
9 the annual amount specified in this subdivision. 


10 (2) Eligible projects under this subdivision include, but not are 
11 limited to, sound walls for a freeway that was built before 1987 
12 without sound walls and with or without high-occupancy vehicle 
13 lanes if the completion of the sound walls has been deferred due 
14 to lack of available funding for at least 20 years and a noise barrier 
15 scope summary report has been completed within the last 20 years. 
16 (3) Notwithstanding Section 13340 of the Government Code, 
17 the funds available under this subdivision in each fiscal year are 
18 hereby continuously appropriated for apportionment on a formula 
19 basis to eligible entities or allocation by the commission for road 
20 maintenance and rehabilitation and other transportation 
21 improvement projects pursuant to Section 2033 or 2033.1, as 
22 applicable. 
23 ( 4) For purposes of this subdivision, an "eligible entity" means 
24 a local or regional transportation agency that has responsibility for 
25 funding, procuring, or constructing transportation improvements 
26 within its jurisdiction, and that does either of the follov1ing: 
27 following, as further specified in subdivision (b) of Section 2033.1: 
28 (A) Has sought and received voter approval for the imposition 
29 of taxes or fees dedicated solely to transportation improvements 
30 and administers those taxes or fees. 
31 (B) Has imposed uniform developer fees, as defined by 
32 subdivision (b) of Section 8879 .67 of the Government Code. 
33 (b) After deducting the amounts appropriated in the annual 
34 Budget Act pursuant to Section 2031.5 and the amount allocated 
35 in subdivision (a), beginning in the 2017-18 fiscal year, one 
36 hundred million dollars ($100,000,000) of the remaining reveimes 
3 7 shall be available annually for expenditure, upon appropriation by 
3 8 the Legislature, on the Active Transportation Program created 
3 9 . pursuant to Chapter 8 ( commencing with Section 23 80) of Division 
40 3 to be allocated by the California Transportation Commission 


96 







SB277 -4-


1 pursuant to Section 2381. The Controller shall each month set 
2 aside one-twelfth of this amount, except in the 2017-18 fiscal year, 
3 when the Controller shall set aside one-eighth of this amount, to 
4 accumulate a total of one hundred million dollars ($100,000,000) 
5 in. each fiscal year. The Controller may adjust the amount in the 
6 final month or months of each fiscal year if necessary to achieve 
7 the annual amount specified in this subdivision. 
8 ( c) After deducting the amounts appropriated in the annual 
9 Budget Act pursuant to Section 2031.5 and the amounts allocated 


10 in subdivisions (a) and (b), beginning in the 2017-18 fiscal year, 
11 four hundred million dollars ($400,000,000) of the remaining 
12 revenues shall be available annually for expenditure, upon 
13 appropriation by the Legislature, by the department for bridge and 
14 culvert maintenance and rehabilitation. The Controller shall each 
15 month set aside one-twelfth of this amount, except in the 2017-18 
16 fiscal year, when the Controller shall set aside one-eighth of this 
17 amount, to accumulate a total of four hundred million dollars 
18 ($400,000,000) in each fiscal year. The Controller may adjust the 
19 amount in the final month or months of each fiscal year if necessary 
20 to achieve the annual amount specified in this subdivision. 
21 (d) After deducting the amounts appropriated in the .annual 
22 Budget Act pursuant to Section 2031.5 and the amounts allocated 
23 in subdivisions (a), (b), and (c), beginning in the 2017-18 fiscal 
24 year, twenty-five million dollars ($25,000;000) of the remaining 
25 revenues ;shall be transferred annually to the State Highway 
26 Account for expenditure, upon appropriation by the Legislature, 
27 · to supplement the freeway service patrol program. The Controller 
28 shall each month set aside one-twelfth of this amount, except in 
29 the 2017-18 fiscal year, when the Controller shall set aside 
30 one-eighth of this amount, to accumulate a total of twenty-five 
31 million dollars ($25,000,000) i:q. each fiscal year. The Controller 
32 may adjust the amount in the final month or months of each fiscal 
33 year if necessary to achieve the annual amount specified in this 
34 subdivision. 
3 5 ( e) After deducting the amounts appropriated in the annual 
36 Budget Act pursuant to Section 2031.5 and the amounts allocated 
37 in subdivisions (a), (b), (c), and (d), in the 2017-18, 2018-19, 
38 2019-20, 2020-21, and 2021-22 fiscal years, from revenues in 
3 9 the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account that are not 
40 subject to Article XIX of the California Constitution, five million 


96 







-5- SB277 


1 dollars ($5,000,000) shall be appropriated in each fiscal year to 
2 the California Workforce Development Board to assist local 
3 agencies to implement policies to promote preapprenticeship 
4 training programs to carry out the projects that are funded by the 
5 account pursuant to Section 2038. Funds appropriated pursuant to 
6 this subdivision in the Budget Act but remaining unexpended at 
7 the end of each applicable fiscaJ year shall be reappropriated for 
8 the same purposes in the following year's Budget Act, but all funds 
9 appropriated or reappropriated pursuant to this subdivision in the 


10 Budget Act shall be liquidated no later than June 30, 2027. 
11 (f) After deducting the amounts appropriated in the annual 
12 Budget Act pursuant to Section 2031.5 and the amounts allocated 
13 in subdivisions (a), (b), (c), (d), and (e), beginning in the 2017-18 
14 fiscal year, twenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000) of the 
15 remaining revenues shall be available annually for expenditure, 
16 upon appropriation by the Legislature, by the department for local 
17 planning grants, as described in Section 2033.5. The Controller 
18 shall each month set aside one-twelfth of this amount, except in 
19 the 2017-18 fiscal year, when the Controller shall set aside 
20 one-eighth of this amount, to accumulate a total of twenty-five 
21 million dollars ($25,000,000) in each fiscal year. The Controller 
22 may adjust the amount in the final month or months of each fiscal 
23 year if necessary to achieve the annual amount specified in this 
24 subdivision. 
25 (g) After deducting the amounts appropriated in the annual 
26 Budget Act pursuant to Section 2031.5 and the amounts allocated 
27 in subdivisions (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f), beginning in the 
28 2017-18 fiscal year and each fiscal year thereafter, from the 
29 remaining revenues, five million dollars ($5,000,000) shall be 
30 available, upon appropriation, to the University of California for 
31 the purpose of conducting transportation research and two million 
32 dollars ($2,000,000) shall be available, upon appropriation, to the 
33 California State University for the purpose of conducting 
34 transportation research and transportation-related workforce 
3 5 education, training, and development. Before the start of each 
36 fiscal year, the Secretary of Transportation and the chairs of the 
3 7 Assembly Committee on Transportation and the Senate Committee 
3 8 on Transportation and Housing may set out a recommended priority 
39 list ofresearch components to be addressed in the upcoming fiscal 
40 year. 


96 







SB277 -6-


1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 


10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20· 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 


· 35 
36 
37 
38 
39 


(h) Notwithstanding Section 13340 of the Government Code, 
the balance of the revenues deposited in the Road Maintenance 
and Rehabilitation Account are hereby continuously appropriated 
as follows: 


(1) Fifty percent for allocation to the department for maintenance 
of the state highway system or for purposes of the state highway 
operation and protection program. 


(2) Fifty percent for apportionment to cities and counties by the 
Controller pursuant to the formula in clauses (i) and (ii) of 
subparagraph (C) of paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 
2103 for the purposes authorized by this.chapter. 


SEC. 2. Section 2033 of the Streets and Highways Code is 
amended to read: 


2033. (a) On or before January 1, 2018, the commission, in 
cooperation with the department, transportation planning agencies, 
county transportation commissions, and other local agencies, shall 
develop guidelines for the allocation of funds pursuant to 
subdivision ( a) of Section 2032. 


(b) The guidelines shall be the complete and full statement of 
the policy, standards, and criteria that the commission intends to 
use to determine how these funds will be allocated. 


( c) The commission may amend the adopted guidelines after 
conducting at least one public hearing. 


( d) The guidelines may include streamlining of project delivery 
by authorizing local or regional transportation agencies to seek 


. commission approval of a letter of no prejudice that allows the 
agency to expend its own funds in advance of an allocation of 
funds by the commission, and to be ·reimbursed at a later time for 
eligible expenditures. A letter of no prejudice shall only . be 
available to local or regional transportation agencies for moneys 
that have been identified for future allocation to the applicant 
agency. Moneys designated pursuant to subdivision ( a) of Section 
2032 shall-enly be reimbursed only when there is funding available 
in an amount sufficient to make the reimbursement. 


( e) The guidelines developed pursuant to this section shall-enly 
apply only to programming cycle 1 and 2 of the formulaic program, 
as described in commission resolution G-17-33, and programming 
cycle 1 of the competitive program, as described in commission 
resolution G-17-33. 


96 







-7- SB 277 


1 (f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, 
2 and as of that date is repealed. 
3 SEC. 3. Section 2033.1 is added to the Streets and Highways 
4 Code, to read: 
5 2033.1. (a) (1) On For purposes of apportioning· and 
6 allocating the funds that are continuously appropriated in each 
7 fiscal year pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 2032, the 
8 commission shall segregate the funds into two separate 
9 subaccounts as follows: 


10 (1) Eighty-five percent of the funds shall be deposited into the 
11 Local Partnership Formula Subaccount, which is hereby created. 
12 (2) Fifteen percent of the funds shall be deposited into the Small 
13 Counties and Uniform Developer Fees Competitive Subaccount, 
14 which is hereby created. 
15 (b) (1) The commission shall apportion the funds in the Local 
16 Partnership Formula Subaccount to eligible entities, as defined 
17 in subparagraph (A) of paragraph (4) of subdivision (a) of Section 
18 2032, pursuant to the formula established in subdivision (I) and 
19 in accordance with the other applicable requirements of this 
20 section. 
21 (2) The commission shall allocate the funds in the Small 
22 Counties and Uniform Developer Fees Competitive Subaccount 
23 through a competitive grant program to eligible entities, as defined 
24 in subparagraph (A) of paragraph (4) of subdivision (a) of Section 
25 2032 that have a population of less than 750,000, and to eligible 
26 entities, as defined in subparagraph (BJ of paragraph (4) of 
27 subdivision (a) of Section 2032, in accordance with the applicable 
28 requirements of this section. For the purpose of calculating 
29 population, the commission shall use the most recent informqtion 
3 0 available from the Department of Finance. 
31 (c) (1) On or before April 1, 2020, the commission, in 
32 conjunction with transportation planning agencies and county 
33 transportation commissions, and in consultation with other local 
34 agencies, shall develop separate guidelines for the apportionment 
35 or allocation, as applicable, of funds pursuant to subdivision (a) 
36 of Seetion 2032. deposited in the Local Partnership Formula 
3 7 Subaccount and the Small Counties and Uniform Developer Fees 
3 8 Competitive Subaccount. 
39 (2) ':fhe--Each set of guidelines shall be the complete and full 
40 statement of the policy, standards, and criteria that the commission 


96 







SB277 -8-


1 intends to use to determine how-tltese the funds in each subaccount 
2 will be apportioned. 
3 (3) 'fhe-Each set of guidelines shall do, but are not limited to 
4 doing, all of the following regarding the appointment of these 
5 ftmds-!-following: 
6 (A) Identify guaranteed minim.urn apportionment for eligible 
7 entities. 
8 (BJ 
9 (A) Identify eligible local matching funds. 


10 (C) Establish an apportiomnent formula for these funds. 
11 $} 
12 (BJ Establish the types of eligible. projects consistent with 
13 subdivisionih}. (d). 
14 tEJ : 
15 (C) Authorize an eligible entity to retain its apportionment/ram 
16 the Local Partnership Formula Subaccountto accumulate and use 
17 that apportionment in a subsequent year for a larger expenditure. 
18 An eligible entity may only retain its apportionment for five years. 
19 ( 4) The guidelines may include streamlining of project delivery 
20 by authorizing eligible entities to seek commission approval of a 
21 letter of no prejudice that allows the entity to expend its own funds 
22 in advance of an apportionment of funds by the commission, and 
23 to be reimbursed at a later time for eligible expenditures. A letter 
24 of no prejudice shall only be available to eligible entities for 
25 moneys that have been identified for future apportionment to the 
26 applicant entity. Moneys designated pursuant to subdivision (a) 
27 of Section 2032 shall-oo:ly be reimbursed only when there is 
28 funding available .in · an amount sufficient to ma~e the 
29 reimbursement. 
30 (5) The commission may amend the adopted guidelines after 
31 conducting at least one public hearing. 
32 th:) , 
33 (d) A project is eligible to receive funding pursuant to 
34 subdivision (a) of Section 2032 if it is eligible pursuant to 
35 subdivision (b) of Section 2030 and is consistent with Section 2 
36 of Article XIX of the California Constitution. 
37 fe7 
38 (e) (1) In order to receive an apportionme:Qt olfunds pursuant 
39 to subdivision (a) of Seetion 2032 from the Local Partnership 
40 Formula Subaccount from the commission in a funding cycle, an 


96 







-9- SB277 


1 eligible entity shall submit to the commission a list of projects 
2 proposed to be funded with these funds. All projects proposed to 
3 receive funding shall be adopted by resolution by the eligible entity 
4 at a regular public meeting. The list of projects proposed to be 
5 funded with these funds shall include a description and the location 
6 of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the project's 
7 completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement. 
8 (2) The commission shall approve a project list submitted by 
9 an eligible entity pursuant to paragraph (1) unless a project 


10 identified in the project list is not consistent with project eligibility 
11 requirements. 
12 (d) For purposes of this seetion, "eligible entity" has the same 
13 meaning as defined in subdivision (a) of Seetion 2032. 
14 (I) To establish the apportionments from the Local Partnership 
15 Formula Subaccount for each eligible entity, the commission shall 
16 do all of the following before the commencement of a funding 
17 cycle: 
18 (1) Determine the total amount of annual revenue generated 
19 from voter-approved sales taxes, voter-approved parcel or property 
20 taxes, and voter-approved bridge tolls dedicated to transportation 


, 21 improvements according to the most recent available data reported 
22 to the Department of Tax and Fee Administration, the Controller, 
23 or the Bay Area Toll Authority. 
24 (2) Establish a northern California and southern California 
25 share by attributing the proportional share of revenues from 
26 voter-approved sales taxes, voter-approved parcel or property 
27 taxes, and voter-approved bridge tolls dedicated to transportation 
28 improvements and imposed in counties in northern California to 
29 the northern share, and by attributing the proportional share of 
30 revenues from voter-approved sales taxes imposed in counties 
31 located in southern California to the southern share. The 
32 determination of whether a county is located in northern or 
33 southern California shall be based on the definitions set forth in 
34 Section 187. 
35 (3) Program funds made available to the southern share, based 
36 on the determination in paragraph (2), shall be apportioned to 
37 each eligible entity responsible for programming and allocating 
3 8 revenues from the sales tax in proportion to the following: 
39 (A) Seventy-five percent based on the population of the county 
40 in which the entity is located compared to the total population of 


96 







SB277 -10-


1 southern California counties with voter-approved sales taxes 
2 dedicated to transportation improvements. For the purpose of 
3 calculating population, the commission shall use the most recent 
4 information available from the Department of Finance. 
5 (B) Twenty-five percent based on the total amount of sales tax 
6 revenue generated from the total number of sales tax measures 
7 dedicated to transportation improvements administered by an 
8 eligible entity compared to the total amount of sales tax revenue 
9 generated from voter-approved sales tax measures dedicated to 


10 transportation improvements in southern California. For the 
11 purpose of calculating sales tax reve$7ue; the commission shall use 
12 the most recent information,. available from Department of Tax and 
13 Fee Administration. · · 
14 (4) Program funds made available to the northern share, based 
15 on the determination in paragraph (2), shall be apportioned as 
16 follows: 
17 (A) Program funds generated by voter-approved bridge tolls 
18 and voter-approved parcel or property taxes dedicated to 
19 transportation improvements shall be apportioned to the entity 
20 responsible for programming and allocating revenues from the 
21 toll or tax based on the proportional share of revenues generated 
22 by the toll or tax by that entity in comparison to the total revenues 
23 generated by voter-approved sales taxes, voter-approved parcel 
24 or property taxes, and voter-approved bridge tolls dedicated to 
25 transportation improvements in northern California. 
26 (B) Program funds generated by voter-approved sales taxes 
27 dedicated to transportation improvements shall be apportioned to 
28 each eligible entity responsible for programming and allocating 
29 revenues from the sales tax in proportion to the following: 
30 (i) Seventy-five percent based on.the population of the county 
31 in which the entity is located compa~ed to the total population of 
32 northern California counties with voter-approved sales taxes 
33 dedicated to transportation improvements. For the purpose of 
34 calculating population, the commission shall use the most recent 
3 5 information available from the Department of Finance. 
36 (ii) Twenty-five percent based on the total amount of sales tax 
3 7 revenue generated from the total number of sales tax measures 
3 8 dedicated to transportation improvements administered by an 
39 eligible entity compared to the total amount of sales tax revenue 
40 generated from voter-approved sales tax measures dedicated to 


96 







-11- SB277 


I transportation improvements in northern California. For the 
2 purpose of calculating sales tax revenue, the commission shall use 
3 the most recent information available from the Department of Tax 
4 and Fee Administration. 
5 (e) The guidelines developed pursuant to this 
6 (g) This section shall apply to programming cycles beginning 
7 after the programming cycles described in subdivision ( e) of 
8 Section 2033, as it read on January 1, 2020. 


0 


96 








Federal and State 
Legislation for 
Consideration
August 22, 2019
BART Board of Directors







Federal Legislation for SUPPORT


H.R. 1313 – Transit Security Grant Program Flexibility Act


• Extends the current length of time to spend Transit Security 
Grant Program (TSGP) funds from 24 to 36 months, and in 
some instances as long as 55 months.  


• Allows grants provided for operational purposes to be used for 
backfilling staff as part of security training.


• Requires the Government Accountability Office to conduct a 
review of TSGP within a year of enactment and a subsequent 
review in five years.


2Government and Community Relations







Federal Legislation for SUPPORT


3Government and Community Relations


H.R. 2864 – Rebuild America Act of 2019


• Incrementally increases federal gasoline and diesel taxes by 
five cents a year for five years.  After 2024, indexes tax rate to 
inflation.


• Incrementally increases allocations to the Mass Transit Account 
of the Highway Trust Fund by one cent per year for five years.  
After 2024, indexes allocations to inflation.


• Signals Congress’ intent to replace the gas tax with a more 
stable funding source for U.S. infrastructure needs over the 
next decade.







Federal Legislation for SUPPORT


H.R. 3437 – Saving Transit Art Resources (STAR) Act


• Reinstates federal flexibility that allows local transit authorities 
to incorporate art into federally-funded transit projects. 


• Repeals language within the Fixing America’s Surface 
Transportation (FAST) Act, prohibiting the use of federal funds 
for the incorporation of art into facilities, including employing 
an artist on the design team. 


4Government and Community Relations







State Legislation for SUPPORT


5Government and Community Relations


AB 67 (Rivas and Chiu) – Homeless integrated data warehouse


• Requires the Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 
to create a state homeless integrated data warehouse, in coordination with 
state and local partners, including the Homeless Coordinating and 
Financing Council.


• Database must include information on the number of individuals and 
families experiencing homelessness, their access to benefits, and the stated 
reasons for their homelessness.


• Requires HCD to coordinate with other state agencies a strategy to 
integrate information to provide longitudinal, cost-based studies.


• Becomes operative pending appropriation of funds by the Legislature. 







State Legislation for SUPPORT


6Government and Community Relations


SB 277 (Beall) – Local Partnership Program


• Replaces current Local Partnership Program guidelines where 
50% of funds are distributed via formula and 50% through a 
competitive grant program.


• Establishes a new framework where 85% of funds go to 
eligible entities through a defined formula and 15% goes to a 
statewide competitive program for smaller agencies. 


• Requires the CA Transportation Commission, on or before 
April 1, 2020, to develop separate guidelines for the 
apportionment or allocation of funds.





		Federal and State Legislation for Consideration

		Federal Legislation for SUPPORT

		Federal Legislation for SUPPORT

		Federal Legislation for SUPPORT

		State Legislation for SUPPORT

		State Legislation for SUPPORT






A FASTER Bay Area
A Seamless Transportation System Based On:


Freedom
Affordability
Speed
Transparency
Equity
Reliability


1







The Bay Area Today
The Bay Area is home to one of the most 
dynamic economies in the world.  


However, the region's infrastructure is based 
on pre-1960's models unable to keep pace w/ 
population & economic growth. 


Silicon Valley had a 21% increase in commute 
time, the largest increase for innovation 
regions in the Leadership Group’s 
Competitiveness Project (2010-2017). 


46 % of respondents to a recent Bay Area 
Council poll stated they are considering 
leaving the region altogether.


2







FASTER Bay Area Vision
Radically reduce the time it takes to get around the region


Significantly increase the speed, frequency, reliability, coverage and connectedness of 
the region’s transit networks


Address transportation inequities in the Bay Area, and build a transportation network 
that can deliver shared prosperity.


Create a resilient and environmentally sustainable transportation network


Support more housing throughout the region and ensure existing residents benefit 
from the transportation investments


Provides job training for a skilled workforce 


Fund operations for capital projects that come out of the measure 3







Key Public Opinion Research Findings
● Voters recognize the transportation challenges facing the region, and there  is 


significant interest in regional transportation improvement


● Voters are seeking a modern, reliable, and accessible transit system that connects 
the Bay Area


● Conceptual willingness to raise taxes for transportation investments is above 
two-thirds, the threshold needed for passage 


● Differences in support between funding mechanisms are slight, and within the 
margin of error


● A regional measure is viable in the right environment; however, organized and 
funded opposition will likely result in defeat


4







Funding Mechanism
Based on our research, the One Cent Sales Tax generated substantial funding, has the 
flexibility to fund operations, is politically viable, and is a funding source that has historically 
garnered broad support for transportation investments in the Bay Area. 


It is expected to generate $100.6 billion over 40 years.


Pros


● Use of proceeds are not restricted and straightforward tax that voters understand 
● The revenue is sufficient to fund a long-term strategic plan for capital improvements 


and operating budgets
● Bay Area employers contribute significantly in sales tax, with more than 35 percent of 


sales tax paid by businesses (roughly $550 million annually from this measure)
● Sales taxes are not paid on three big expensense: housing, health care and groceries


Cons


● Regressive
● May be perceived to compete with local sales tax measures 


5







Process
Summer:  Develop FASTER Core Vision and Key Outcomes


Sept/Oct: Develop Draft Framework for Proposed Funding Categories 


○ Collect ideas and  feedback from town hall meetings in all Bay Area counties, technical 
experts, stakeholders, elected officials, and the general public


○ Based on feedback define funding categories/buckets 
○ Create performance measures for each key outcomes
○ Presentation to MTC


Nov/Dec: Develop Final FASTER Framework 


○ Proposed programs and projects with funding levels
○ Proposed supercharging policies
○ Final proposed revenue mechanism
○ Presentation to MTC


Jan 2020: Legislature considers FASTER proposal


Late Spring/Summer: MTC Places on Ballot


6







Feedback from Outreach to Date 


● Focus on transit.
● Focus on major investments which will transform our transit 


system. Don’t spread it around like peanut butter.
● Integrate regional rail into a seamless system
● Regional express bus running on fast express lanes
● Discount fares for low-income riders and for regional trips
● Great walk and bicycle access to transit stops
● Flexible transportation using new technologies
● Fix and speed up existing transit systems 


7







Next Steps


Focused on a one cent sales tax for November 2020 ballot 


Exploring rebates, affordable fares, and other options to address 
regressivity 


Working with transit agencies on projects that have some funding and 
could be completed in 5-10 years


Submit your ideas: www.FASTERbayarea.org


Contact us: info@FASTERbayarea.org


8



https://www.fasterbayarea.org/






0


FASTER Bay Area
DRAFT Transit Operators’ Proposal


August ___, 2019


FASTER 
Bay Area
BART Board
August 22, 2019







1FASTER Bay Area


Participating Agencies
Ten Bay Area transit agencies have now joined forces to
build more seamless connections that are reliable,
efficient, and equitable.







2FASTER Bay Area


Vision (draft)


A Bay Area where an integrated, world-class transit network 
promotes equity, economic vitality and sustainable 
development, provides an alternative to congestion, and 
seamlessly connects people to destinations, for many 
generations. 







3FASTER Bay Area


Guiding Principles (draft) 
Connected. Promote economic vitality and sustainable development by 
expanding the region’s transit network through transformative projects that 
provide alternatives to congested corridors and connect to major economic 
centers. 


Safe & Reliable. Prioritize safe operations and state of good repair needs of 
transit agencies in order to maintain and improve the customer experience with 
comfortable and reliable optimized service. 


Sustainable & Resilient. Reduce transit agencies vulnerability to climate 
variability and extreme events and natural disasters. Prioritize environmentally-
sustainable transportation solutions. 


Equitable. Provide quality transit options for everyone. Making transit more 
affordable, accessible and convenient for low-income, seniors, students, and 
people with disabilities.


Technology & Innovation. Advance innovative uses of technologies, 
partnerships, policies and services to enable more people to move about easily 
and efficiently. Enable transit agencies to adapt to the uncertain and rapidly 
changing economic and technological environments. 







4FASTER Bay Area


Proposed Targets: Funding Categories (draft) 


Transformational
75%


Modernize
15%


Enhance Service 
& Capacity


5%


Equitable, Safe & 
Resilient


5%







5FASTER Bay Area


Proposed Investment Framework (draft)
Out of Traffic. Reduce conflicts with auto traffic; improved 
travel time and reliability.


1. Regional Rail: More exclusive right-of-way (BART + Caltrain)
2. Express Network: Freeway express lanes (bus) + Ferry
3. High-Capacity Transit: Urban with improved lane protection


Cores & Corridors. Connects people & places.


Integrated. Improve connectivity between systems.
1. Gap Closure
2. Hubs / Stations
3. Fare Integration + Communications


Sustainable Operations. Funding for operations + renovation.







6FASTER Bay Area


BART Advocacy Framework
Transformational


o New Transbay Rail Crossing


Modernize
o Transit Operations Facility
o Station Modernization


Enhance Service & Capacity
o Transit Operating & Capital Needs (regional)
o BART Core Capacity+
o Fare Integration + Communications (regional)


Equitable, Safe & Resilient 
o Next Generation Faregates
o Means-Based Fare (regional)
o Accessible Investments & Services (regional)
o Caldecott Tunnel & Earthquake Resiliency








REVISED BART CITIZEN OVERSIGHT MODEL  
OFFICE OF THE INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR (OIPA) IMPACT ASSESSMENT MATRIX  


(AUGUST 2019) 
 


Color Key: 1 2 3 4 5 
 
 


# Recommendation (Verbatim from OIR Group Report) Location in Revised 
Model 


Impact/Adjustments to OIPA Workload OIPA Impact 
Scale 
(1-5) 


1.  The Model should be revised to make clear that the 
scope of OIPA’s authority extends to non-sworn 
employees of BART PD and to all potential 
misconduct involving sworn officers whether on or 
off duty. 


N/A 
Implementation 
Deferred by Board 


No adjustment. OIPA continues to receive complaints regarding fare 
Inspectors, Community Service Officers (CSOs), and Dispatchers. All such 
complaints are referred to Internal Affairs for investigation. 
Implementation of this recommendation would increase the OIPA 
investigative workload as OIPA would likely elect to independently 
investigate complaints alleging bias by Fare Inspectors or any non-sworn 
BPD employee. Therefore, the workload assessment contained herein 
relates only to the impact to OIPA over the past year. 


1 


2. 
 


OIPA should consider modifying its monitoring 
function of BART PD internal affairs investigations to 
“real-time” monitoring, offering recommendations 
on the strength of investigations and 
appropriateness of dispositions prior to BART PD 
completing the process. 


1-04(J)(iii) Real-time monitoring creates additional work for OIPA as we are more 
frequently engaged in the initial determination of appropriate 
allegations (requiring preliminary review of video, data, and reports), 
and because we review evidentiary analysis and findings prior to 
notification to officer(s) in order to adhere to timeliness requirements per 
Gov’t Code 3304. 


2 


3.  Should OIPA move to real-time monitoring, it should 
be involved in decisions regarding whether a matter 
should be forwarded to the District Attorney for 
criminal review, and the appropriate scoping of an 
investigation. 


N/A 
Implementation 
Deferred by Board 


No adjustment to date (as OIPA has always been ethically required to 
forward information regarding any potentially criminal activity to the 
District Attorney via the BPD chain of command). 


1 


4. OIPA should make its reported data on 
investigations and recommended discipline clearer 
and should publicly report its involvement and 
auditing functions in detail, setting out its assessment 
of the quality of each investigation and the 
appropriateness of each disposition and disciplinary 
determination. The Model should be modified to 
provide OIPA the express authority to report any 
resistance by BART PD to conduct additional 
investigation to the attention of the Board of 
Directors, the General Manager, the BART Police 
Citizen Review Board, and the public. 


1-04(D)(iv) Additional time and work generating monthly reports to include more 
discussion of auditing function. OIPA also now includes language 
describing any resistance by BPD to OIPA recommendations for 
improvement of BPD investigative processes and/or investigative 
findings. 


2 


5. The Model should be revised to provide any persons 
the ability to file a complaint with OIPA and/or the 
BART Police Citizen Review Board against any BART 
PD employee. 


1-04(A) 
2-07(A) 


Increases the number of intake interviews, monitored investigations, and 
independent investigations. OIPA independently investigated 12 
complaints during FY19 and 10 complaints during FY18. This number is 
unpredictably variable going forward, but there is a correlation between 
expansion of the definition of a qualified complainant and an increased 
number of investigations. 


2 







Page | 2  
 


# Recommendation (Verbatim from OIR Group Report) Location in Revised 
Model 


Impact/Adjustments to OIPA Workload OIPA Impact 
Scale 
(1-5) 


6. The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the 
ability to investigate any allegation of misconduct 
that implicates the policies of BART PD. 


1-03 Requires additional preliminary assessment of allegations. Because OIPA 
was formerly required to investigate certain allegations, there was 
limited up-front analysis of the seriousness of allegations or determination 
re whether “less-serious” allegations nevertheless warranted 
independent investigation by OIPA. 


3 


7. OIPA and BART PD should develop an investigative 
paradigm whereby OIPA would determine whether 
to investigate any complaint allegations received 
initially by the Office and BART PD would defer 
investigating allegations that the Auditor opted to 
investigate. 


1-04(A)(i) 
OIPA also 
recommended a 
policy revision to 
BPD (#1020) and 
there is an existing 
MOU Between 
OIPA and BPD. 


Does not require additional work in and of itself because this merely 
eliminates parallel investigations by BPD’s Internal Affairs Bureau of 
complaints that would be investigated by OIPA. This MOU minimizes the 
work of IA investigators and alleviates subject officers of the burden of 
cooperating with two separate investigative processes. 


1 


8. OIPA should develop a handbook to provide 
guidance and expectations for its internal 
investigations. 


N/A Significant additional work to codify all internal practices. Has not been 
completed due to limited resources and prioritization of other required 
activities. 


4 


9. OIPA should set out investigative timelines in its 
internal protocols that not only meet the statutory 
requirements but also reflect a commitment to 
prompt and efficient resolution of cases. 


N/A Does not require additional work. Timeline and 180-day target 
completion date has always existed. 


1 


10. The Model should be clarified to reflect that upon 
the conclusion of an OIPA investigation, OIPA should 
recommend a finding of sustained, not sustained, 
exonerated, or unfounded. 


1-04(B)(i) Does not require additional work. These findings have always been 
employed by OIPA. 


1 


11. OIPA should tailor its closing letters to each individual 
case and provide the complainant additional 
information about the investigative steps taken to 
reach its conclusion. 


N/A Requires minimal additional work to customize correspondence. OIPA 
now tailors each closing letter to include information about investigative 
methods without revealing protected personnel information per CA 
Penal Code.  


1 


12. When a concluded investigation does not result in a 
sustained finding, OIPA should offer the complainant 
the opportunity to view any video account of the 
incident. 


Implementation 
Deferred by Board. 


Not implemented by Board. Would result in significant additional work 
related to the maintenance of confidentiality (e.g. video redaction, 
audio redaction). Therefore, the workload assessment contained herein 
relates only to the impact to OIPA over the past year. 


1 







Page | 3  
 


# Recommendation (Verbatim from OIR Group Report) Location in Revised 
Model 


Impact/Adjustments to OIPA Workload OIPA Impact 
Scale 
(1-5) 


13. The Model should be revised to instruct that the BART 
Police Citizen Review Board’s vote tally by member 
on the Auditor’s case recommendations and 
findings should be made public. In cases in which a 
non-unanimous majority agrees with the Auditor’s 
case recommendations and findings, the dissenters 
should set out their rationale for diverging from the 
majority’s determination. 


1-04(B)(iii) Requires no additional work by OIPA. 1 


14. The Model should be revised to provide the Auditor 
the discretion to present BART PD internal 
investigations to the BART Police Citizen Review 
Board in order to receive input and feedback. 


1-05(D) Would require additional presentation preparation by OIPA. (Has not 
been employed to date). 


3 


15. The Model should be changed to require the Chief 
to timely put forward the reasons and arguments for 
appeal in writing and provide the Auditor and the 
Chair of the BART Police Citizen Review Board the 
opportunity to respond in writing, to be present at 
any appeal meeting, and to respond to any 
additional arguments set forth by the Chief at the 
appeal meeting. The Model should be further 
revised to require the General Manager to set out 
her/his findings in writing. 


1-04(B)(iv) Requires minimal additional preparatory work by OIPA. (Meeting 
preparation would essentially consist of re-presentation of a completed 
investigative report).  


2 


16. The Model should be changed to require the Auditor 
to publicly report the results of any such appeal 
meeting consistent with state law confidentiality 
requirements. 


1-05(C) Would require minimal additional work generating language for public 
reporting. (Has not been employed to date). 


2 


17. The Model should be changed so that when the 
BART Police oversight entities disagree on a case 
disposition, the General Manager will convene a 
meeting and, after receiving input from the 
oversight entities and the Chief of Police, render a 
disposition determination. 


1-04(B)(iv) Requires minimal additional work by OIPA (and meeting attendance). 2 


18. The Model should be revised to provide 
complainants the right to appeal to OIPA the 
findings of any internal affairs investigation 
conducted by BART PD. 


1-04(I) Complainants have always had a path to appeal, and this does not 
require any additional work by OIPA for which we were not already 
responsible prior to the Model revision. 


1 







Page | 4  
 


# Recommendation (Verbatim from OIR Group Report) Location in Revised 
Model 


Impact/Adjustments to OIPA Workload OIPA Impact 
Scale 
(1-5) 


19. BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure 
that the Police Department’s required notification 
letter to the complainant regarding case outcome 
also informs the complainant of his/her right to 
appeal the finding to OIPA. 


Practice 
recommendation 
was sent to BPD by 
OIPA. 


This required minimal work conferring on language in Internal Affairs 
letters but is now complete and requires no ongoing effort from OIPA. 


1 


20. OIPA should regularly report on the number of 
appeals received and the results of those appeals. 


1-04(N) OIPA has always reported these data, and this does not, therefore, 
require any additional work by OIPA. 


1 


21. The Model should be revised to require the Chief of 
Police to consult with the Auditor prior to modifying 
any initial disposition or disciplinary determinations. 
The Model should provide the Auditor an appeal 
process to the General Manager should he believe 
that any modification would result in a serious 
erosion of accountability. The Model should require 
the Auditor to publicly report on any modification of 
an initial disposition or disciplinary modification and 
whether he agreed with the modification. 


1-04(B)(vi) This would require some additional work by the IPA related to the review 
of the case materials, discussion with the Chief, and generation of 
language for reporting. 


2 


22. The Model should be revised to require BART to 
apprise OIPA of any offers to settle cases after 
discipline has been imposed and provide the 
Auditor an opportunity for consultation. The Model 
should provide the Auditor the opportunity to 
appeal any intention to settle the matter to the 
General Manager should the Auditor find that the 
settlement would amount to a serious erosion of 
individual accountability. The Model should require 
the Auditor to publicly report on any cases settled at 
the post-discipline stage and whether OIPA agreed 
with the decision to settle. 


Implementation 
Deferred by Board. 


Not implemented by the Board of Directors. Therefore, the workload 
assessment contained herein relates only to the impact to OIPA over the 
past year. 


1 


23. The Model should be revised to require the Auditor 
to report on any arbitration determinations that 
modify or rescind initial disposition and disciplinary 
decisions and to evaluate the reasons for any 
modification. The Model should require the Auditor 
to identify any systemic issues that formed the basis 
for any modification and work with BART PD to 
remediate those issues. 


1-04(B)(vi) Some additional work would be required by OIPA related to the review 
of materials and the identification of systemic implications.  
 
 
Significant additional work related to remediation of any identified 
systemic issues.  


3 


4 







Page | 5  
 


# Recommendation (Verbatim from OIR Group Report) Location in Revised 
Model 


Impact/Adjustments to OIPA Workload OIPA Impact 
Scale 
(1-5) 


24. OIPA should publicly report on every investigation 
from inception to conclusion, providing information 
about the case result and the degree to which OIPA 
and the BART Police Citizen Review Board 
recommendations were implemented. 


2-08(A)(iv) This does not require any additional work by OIPA. OIPA has always 
reported on the results of all investigations.  


1 


25. OIPA should be provided authority to review claims 
and lawsuits to ensure allegations of misconduct are 
thoroughly investigated. 


1-04(C)(i) This will require significant additional work by OIPA to review all related 
case files, transcripts, and materials to ensure that all allegations are 
identified and fully investigated. 


5 


26. OIPA should review any significant settlements and 
adverse judgments involving BART PD performance 
and work with BART PD to develop corrective 
actions intended to remediate any systemic issues. 


1-04(C)(ii) Some additional work would be required by OIPA related to the review 
of materials and the identification of systemic implications.  
 
Significant additional work related to remediation of any identified 
systemic issues.  


3 


4 


27. OIPA should report publicly on its work in reviewing 
civil litigation. 


1-04(C)(iii) Some additional work generating additional component of Annual 
Report 


2 


28. OIPA should redouble its efforts to create a 
mediation process that is attractive to complainants 
and officers and provides an effective alternative 
dispute resolution process. 


1-04(H) 
 


This process is in place and OIPA believes we have fully explored the 
issues underlying the unwillingness of complainants and subject officers 
to avail themselves of the option. Therefore, minimal additional work 
would be required and would consist only of maintaining an awareness 
of the successes and failures of other existing mediation programs. 
 


1 


29. The Model should be enhanced to ensure that OIPA 
is timely notified of any critical incident including all 
officer-involved shootings (on duty or off duty) 
regardless of whether the use of deadly force 
resulted in injury or death, any use of force resulting 
in significant injury, and any in-custody death. 


1-04(J)(i) 
 


This required some additional work to revise applicable BPD policy, but 
this work is now completed and is not ongoing. 


1 


30. The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the 
authority for and responsibility of reviewing use of 
force incidents by BART PD, regardless of whether 
the incident is a subject of a complaint. 


1-04(E)(i) Review of all use of force incidents requires significant additional work 
by OIPA. Despite ongoing efforts, it has proven difficult to fully and 
carefully review each incident (Approximately 440 incidents in 2017-
2018. Reviewed for justification, camera activations, supervisory review 
quality, internal review system effectiveness, mental health 
considerations, Constitutional violations, etc.) 


3 


31. OIPA should regularly participate in BART PD’s use of 
force review boards. 


1-04(E)(ii) Requires some additional time and preparation but has not been 
implemented to date.  


2 







Page | 6  
 


# Recommendation (Verbatim from OIR Group Report) Location in Revised 
Model 


Impact/Adjustments to OIPA Workload OIPA Impact 
Scale 
(1-5) 


32. OIPA should report publicly on its use of force review 
program including the outcome of BART PD’s use of 
force review boards. 


1-04(E)(iii) Will require and has required significant additional work and public 
report cannot be generated until after completion of review process 
described above in connection with Recommendation #30. 


5 


33. OIPA should report publicly on the internal review of 
any officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, or 
serious uses of force. 


Practice 
recommendation.  


Will require significant work, but this is reporting that would have been 
completed and produced pursuant to Senate Bill 1421 (effective 
January 1, 2019) regardless of public reporting recommendation. 


5 


34. The Model should be revised to provide authority 
and responsibility for OIPA to regularly participate in 
BART PD’s early identification process. 


1-04(F) OIPA already participates insofar as OIPA has access to early warning 
system and communicates with BPD to ensure that flagged officers are 
promptly reviewed. There is some additional work related to the 
presentation and discussion of concerns with BPD command staff. 


2 


35. OIPA should report regularly on the status of the 
Department’s early identification system and results. 


1-04(F)(ii) Will require some additional work but has not been implemented or 
reported to date. 


2 


36. The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the 
authority, access to data and records, staffing, and 
responsibility to conduct systemic audits of BART PD 
functions that impact the quality of the Department 
and the service provided to its public. 


1-04(G) Any systemic audit will require significant additional work. (See for 
example systemic review of all use of force incidents (Recommendation 
#30)). 


4 


37. The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the 
authority and responsibility to monitor any audits 
conducted by BART PD regarding similar issues and 
report publicly the results of those audits. 


1-04(G)(ii) Monitoring and reporting on any systemic audit by BPD will require 
significant additional work.  


4 


38. The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the 
authority and responsibility to be involved in any 
policy or training initiatives being developed by 
BART PD and to report publicly on any reforms. 


1-04(K)(iii) OIPA has typically participated in major policy initiatives, so this should 
not require significant additional work by OIPA going forward. However, 
BPD’s effort to streamline its policy manual over the past year has 
generated additional work reviewing a significant number of amended, 
revised, and rescinded policies. 


3 


39. The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the 
express authority to forward policy 
recommendations to the General Manager and/or 
Board of Directors. In situations in which OIPA’s 
recommendations are not accepted by BART PD, 
OIPA should consider whether to forward its 
recommendations for further consideration to 
BART’s governing entity. 


1-04(K)(ii) Would only require some additional work by OIPA in the event that 
recommendations are not accepted by BPD, which has not occurred to 
date. 


2 







Page | 7  
 


# Recommendation (Verbatim from OIR Group Report) Location in Revised 
Model 


Impact/Adjustments to OIPA Workload OIPA Impact 
Scale 
(1-5) 


40. In its annual report, OIPA should include an update 
on any previous outstanding recommendations and 
the degree to which the recommendations were 
endorsed by the Review Board and accepted by 
BART PD. 


1-04(K)(iv) Will require some additional work by OIPA related only to the preparation 
of the annual report. 


2 


41. BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure 
that BART PD’s General Orders [policies] 
incorporate the authority of its oversight entities 
and the duty of members to cooperate in the 
execution of that authority. 


Policy 
recommendation 
delivered to BPD 
by OIPA 


This required some additional work to revise applicable BPD policy, but 
this work is now completed and is not ongoing. 


1 


42. OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board 
should attempt to schedule a meeting at least 
annually with the two BART Police Associations. The 
oversight entities should annually report on whether 
such meetings occurred. 


1-04(L) 
2-07(E) 
 
 


This is in keeping with past practice by OIPA and does not, therefore, 
require any additional work by OIPA. 


1 


43. The Model should be revised to expressly clarify the 
independent yet complementary roles of the BART 
Police Citizen Review Board and OIPA. 


1-05(A) This language change to the Citizen Oversight Model does not require 
any additional work by OIPA. 


1 


44. BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant 
position for the BART Police Citizen Review Board to 
assist with administrative tasks now assigned to OIPA. 


1-08(C) These tasks are now managed entirely by the DSO and required some 
additional work related to training DSO staff and transferring 
responsibilities. This work is completed but may need to be revisited in 
light of recent (June 2019) changes to DSO personnel assignments. 


1 


45. The Model should be revised to acknowledge that 
the BART Police Citizen Review Board is one 
potential source of information when the Board of 
Directors is seeking input on the performance of 
OIPA. 


2-08(D) This language change does not require any additional work by OIPA. 1 


46. The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the 
opportunity for input when a BART Police Citizen 
Review Board member seeks reappointment. 


2-05(E) This language change does not require any significant additional work 
by OIPA. 


1 


47. The Model should clarify that former BART PD 
personnel are ineligible to serve on the BART Police 
Citizen Review Board. 


2-03(E) This language change does not require any additional work by OIPA. 1 







Page | 8  
 


# Recommendation (Verbatim from OIR Group Report) Location in Revised 
Model 


Impact/Adjustments to OIPA Workload OIPA Impact 
Scale 
(1-5) 


48. A Training Curriculum Should Be Devised for 
Incoming BART Police Citizen Review Board 
Members, and In-Service Training Should Be 
provided at least semi-annually to current Review 
Board members. 


2-07(K)(v-vi) This does not require any additional work by OIPA other than when the 
BPCRB requests that the IPA provide a training session (historically 
1x/year). 


1 


49. The BART Police Citizen Review Board should 
consider rotating its meetings to a wider array of 
locales served by BART. 


2-07(F) This does not require any additional work by OIPA other than traveling to 
an off-site location to present monthly and investigative reports to the 
BPCRB. 


1 


50. Procedures should be adopted by the BART Police 
Citizen Review Board intended to ensure that the 
Model’s commitment to outreach is achieved. To 
that end, each incoming member should be alerted 
to outreach expectations by his/her appointing 
authority. On an annual basis, each Review Board 
member should report publicly on the outreach 
he/she has undertaken the previous year. Finally, the 
degree of each member’s public outreach will be 
considered prior to reappointing the Review Board 
member to an additional term. 


Practice 
recommendation 
for BPCRB and 
Board of Directors; 
2-05(F) 
2-07(F) 


This does not require any additional work by OIPA. 1 


51. The Model should be revised to authorize excused 
absences for good cause that would not count 
against the absence limitations. 


2-04(B) This does not require any additional work by OIPA. 1 


52. The Model should be revised to expressly authorize 
OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board to 
make public statements about their oversight work. 


1-04(O) 
2-07(I) 


This does not require any additional work by OIPA. 1 


53. The Model should be revised to call for periodic 
reviews of BART’s oversight entities at a minimum of 
four-year intervals. 


3-01 
 


This requires significant additional work by OIPA every 3 years to facilitate 
the external review process. 


4 


54. The Model should be revised to clarify whether a 
newly-seated BART Director may unilaterally remove 
his or her predecessor’s BPCRB appointee and 
specify any time limits for doing so. 


2-02(B)(vi) This does not require any additional work by OIPA. 1 


 







